CITY OF COOS BAY CITY COUNCIL MEETING

November 6, 2012 — 7:00 p.m.

Council Chambers — 500 Central Avenue — Coos Bay, Oregon

1) Flag Salute
2) Public Comments
3) Consent Calendar
a) Approval of the minutes of October 16, 2012
b) Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) allowing reimbursement
for law enforcement services
4) Review of Wind Energy Conversion Systems
5} Discussion on Priorities of City Ordinances
6) Consideration of Award of Contract for Wastewater Treatment Plant#2 Pre-Design

7) Review of the Animal Control Ordinance for Special Permits

8) Review of Current Residency Reguirements for City Committees, Boards, and
Commissions

9} Consideration of Approval of Amendments to the Rules of the City Council for the
City of Coos Bay — Approval will Require Adoption of Resolution 12-23

10) City Attorney’'s Report
11) City Manager's Report
12) Council Comments

13} Adjourn

All citizens addressing the City Council under regular agenda items or public comments
are required by City Council Rule 4.8.4 to sign-in on the forms
provided on the agenda table and podium.

If you require a listening enhancement device please contact the City Recorder.
Please silence electronic devices — Thank youl.



MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
October 16, 2012

The minutes of the proceedings of a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Coos Bay,
Coos County, Oregon, held at 7 p.m. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, 500 Central Avenue,
Coos Bay, Oregon.

Those Attending

Those present were Mayor Crystal Shoji and Councilors Jennifer Groth, Jon Hanson, Stephanie
Kramer, Gene Melton, and Mike Vaughan. Councilor John Muenchrath was absent. City staff
present were City Manager Rodger Craddock, City Attorney Karen Costello, Finance Director
Susanne Baker, Economic Revitalization Administrator Joyce Jansen, Public Works and
Development Director Jim Hossley, Library Director Sami Pierson, Fire Chief Stan Gibson and
Police Chief Gary McCullough.

Flag Salute

Mayor Shoji opened the meeting and asked Collin Maya to lead the Council and assembly in the
salute to the flag.

Public Comments
No comments were given.
Consent Calendar

Mayor Shoji reviewed the consent calendar which consisted of 3a: approval of the minutes of
October 2, 2012; 3b: acceptance of September 2012 accounts payable and payroll check
registers; 3c: acceptance of the September 2012 combined cash report; 3d. acceptance of a
DUII Traffic Safety Enforcement Grant; and 3e: acceptance of a Safety Belt Enforcement Grant.
Councilor Melton moved to approve the consent calendar which consisted of approving the
minutes of October 2, 2012, accepting the September 2012 accounts payable and payroll check
registers, accepting the September 2012 combined cash report, accepting a DUIl Traffic
Enforcement Grant, and accepting a Safety Belt Enforcement Grant. Councilor Kramer
seconded the motion which carried with Mayor Shoji and Councilors Groth, Hanson, Kramer,
Melton, and Vaughan voting aye. Councilor Muenchrath was absent.

Review of the Empire Business District Design Standards

Public Works and Development Director Jim Hossley stated at the February 21, 2012 Council
meeting staff was directed to proceed with revising the design standards for the Empire
business district area. In March 2012 the City contracted with John Morgan of the Morgan CPS
Group, Inc. to develop clear and objective standards and a two-prong approach for review of
applications. On September 3, 2012 the City received draft design standards from Mr. Morgan
which focused on creating administrative review standards for the first prong portion of the
application review. Mr. Morgan proposed the first prong would be evaluated by staff prior to
approving a building permit; it would be “yes” and “no” questions for elements such as: window
styles, size and placement, door locations, color pallet, siding, or roofing materials. Mr. Hossley

97
Agenda Item #3a




City Council Minutes — October 16, 2012

noted the Mr. Morgan’s proposed process met the clear and objective test as required by
Oregon law.

Mr. Hossley stated the second prong would be for applicants proposing new buildings or would
be deviating from the clear and objective standards for reasons such as the location of the
building, unique use, a creative idea, etc. The applicant would be required to advocate for their
project design before the Design Review Committee and the Planning Commission. Discussion
commenced regarding the progress to date on the first prong, Mr. Morgan's timeframe for
completion, and the desire to have a more thorough draft by December for the Planning
Commission to review.

Review of the Parks Master Plan Survey

Public Works and Development Director Jim Hossley stated in late 2011 the Parks Commission
requested City staff to upgrade the existing Parks Master Plan. In early 2012, City staff created
a paper and online Parks Master Plan survey and advertised the survey through local media
sources. The Parks Commission established zones for commissioners to actively communicate
and promote the survey in the community. Mr. Hossley stated though there were not as many
survey respondents as desired, 80% who did respond felt that parks were important; the
opportunity to enjoy the outdoors was the most selected answer; and a dog park was the most
requested new park. Information from the survey would be provided to the Parks Commission
to formulate recommendations on policy for the Council to consider for approval. Discussion
commenced on the various levels of parks within the city limits; maintenance of the parks; and
consideration to be given to be able to maintain existing parks versus establishing new parks.

Consideration of Approval of Amendments to the Rules of the City Council for the City of
Coos Bay — Approval Would Require Adoption of Resolution 12-23

City Manager Rodger Craddock stated the current Council Rules were adopted by Resolution
00-40. On March 6, 2012 a Charter/Rule Making Advisory Committee was formed and
comprised of Mayor Shoji, Councilors Kramer and Muenchrath. The committee met four times
over the last four months to review the Coos Bay City Charter, current Coos Bay Council Rules,
and various council rules from other jurisdictions. Mr. Craddock advised the Charter/Rule
Making Advisory Committee were recommending the following changes to the current Council
Rules: reformatting the Council Rules to be consistent with the City Charter; adding an a section
for authorization, amendment, waiver; rules for calling an emergency meeting; censor; updated
the order of the agenda as currently being conducted; clarification on how to place an item on
the agenda; Councilor Groth suggested the interaction with staff, Section 4(4) two hour rule
should be made consistent throughout the document; minimum votes required; Council liaison
role defining; clarifying role of Council when interacting with staff. Consensus was to send the
policy back to the advisory group for clarification on items and adopt a resolution at another
meeting. Councilor Groth suggested staff provide the ordinances with the demographic
requirements of each committee for consideration to change in order to broaden the pool of
possible candidates.

City Attorney’s Report

City Attorney Karen Costello sat in for Nate McClintock, no comments were given.

o8

Agenda ltem #3a



City Council Minutes — October 16, 2012

City Manager’s Report

City Manager Rodger Craddock provided a disk containing the completed Timber Management
Plan and stated the State of Oregon Building Codes Division would be relocating in the near
future from Coquille to Coos Bay City Hall.

Council Comments

Councilor Kramer encouraged everyone to vote. Councilor Hanson was pleased with the City
Hall rededication ceremony and was impressed with staff. Councilor Vaughan stated the
fundraising kick-off for the Egyptian Theater Association was successful and the Surf Riders
Foundation held a fundraiser, Stand-Up for the Bay. Councilor Melton was pleased with the
information received at the League of Oregon Cities. Mayor Shoji recognized Council candidate
Dennis Dater and suggested historical, pre-European development pictures be displayed at City
Hall.

Adjourn

There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Shoji adjourned the
meeting. The next regular Council meeting was scheduled for November 6, 2012 in the Council
Chambers at City Hall.

Crystal Shoji, Mayor
Attest:

Susanne Baker, City Recorder

99

Agenda ltem #3a



CITY OF COOS BAY CITY COUNCIL

Agenda Staff Report
MEETING DATE AGENDA ITEM NUMBER
November 6, 2012
TO: Mayor Shoji and City Councilors
FROM: Rodger Craddock, City Manager
ISSUE Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement Allowing for Reimbursement for Law

Enforcement Services

BACKGROUND

Personnel from the Coos Bay Police Department have participated in and supported the
enforcement activities of the South Coast Interagency Narcotics Team (SCINT) since its inception in
1988. Over the past three decades, detectives from the Coos Bay Police Department have been
routinely assigned to SCINT as narcotics detectives. Generally those assignments have been
funded out of the Police Department'’s budget.

Over the years, various personnel from the Oregon State Police and the Coos County Sheriff's
Office have served as SCINT's director. Funding of the Director of SCINT has been though a
combination of contributing agency and grants funds. Currently Captain Mitts, CBPD, is serving as
the Director of SCINT. Coos County has secured grant funds to assist in funding SCINT’s
enforcement activities and the attached IGA between Coos County and the City of Coos Bay allows
for partial reimbursement (nearly 72%) of Captain Mitts employment costs while assigned as the
director of SCINT.

ADVANTAGES

The IGA provides for partial reimbursement to the City which allows the City to retain previously
budgeted general fund dollars for future use.

DISADVANTAGES

None
BUDGET

The IGA provides for a monthly reimbursement of $8,512.93 while Captain Mitts is assigned as the
director of SCINT.

RECOMMENDATION

It it pleases the Council, approve the IGA with Coos County for Law Enforcement Services.

Agenda Item #3b



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES
COOS COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE

This Intergovernmental Agreement is entered into on the last date set forth below, between
Coos County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, by and through its Board of Commissioners,
hereafter "County" and the City of Coos Bay, a municipal corporation, by and through its City Manager,
hereafter "City",; '

WHEREAS County received from the U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Community Oriented
Policing Services (COPS), a grant dated 12/16/2009, in the amount of $500,000.00 and from the U.S.
Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance a grant dated 07/01/2012 in the amount of
$600,000.00; and

WHEREAS, City’s employee Captain Cal Mitts will be assuming the position of director of the
South Coast Interagency Narcotics Team (hereafter "SCINT") effective November 1, 2012; and

WHEREAS, County desires to dié‘tribute a portion of the grant funds to the City to subsidize the
costs incurred by the City related to the employment of Captain Mitts during the period of time that Captain
Mitts is the SCINT director;

NOW THEREFORE, County hereby agrees to allocate the amount of $8,512.93 a month from
said grant funds to the City under the following terms and conditions:

1. Grant.

A. County agrees to reimburse City the total amount of $8,512.93 a month as partial payment
for the costs incurred by City in providing Captain Mitts as the SCINT director. Such payments
shall begin on November 1, 2012, and shall continue on a monthly basis until such time as
Captain Mitts is no longer the SCINT director, or the grant funds are expended.

B. Coos Bay will provide/assign Captain Mitts to act as the director of SCINT effective November
1,2012.

C. The parties acknowledge that the actual costs to the City related to Captain Mitts employment is
$11,708.11 a month. In the event the County is able to secure additional grant funding for the
costs associated with the SCINT director, the parties agree that they may amend this
agreement to provide for additional payments from the County to the City to further
reimbursement the City for such employee costs.

2 Indemnity.

A. Subject to the limitations of the Oregon Tort Claims Act, City hereby agrees to defend,
indemnify and save hamless Coos County, its elected officials, employees, agents, and
volunteers, against any and all loss, damage, liability, claims, demands, or costs resulting
from injury or ham to persons or property (including, without limitation, City's employees or
property) to the extent arising out of or in any way connected with the negligent performance
of City employees or agents under this Agreement.

B. Subject to the limitations of the Oregon Tort Claims Act, Coos County hereby agrees to
defend, indemnify and save harmless City, its elected officials, employees, agents, and

Law Enforcement IGA / City of Coos Bay — Paae 1 of 3
Agenda ltem #3b




volunteers, against any and all loss, damage, liability, claims, demands, or costs resulting
from injury or harm to persons or property (including, without limitation, Coos County's
employees or property) to the extent arising out of or in any way connected with Coos
County's negligent performance under this Agreement.

Third Party Beneficiaries. County and City are the only parties to this Agreement. Nothing in
this Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit or right
whether directly, indirectly or otherwise, to third persons.

Funds Available and Authorized: Payments. City understands and agrees that County’s obligation
to make payments to City is contingent upon County's receipt of adequate grant funds from the
U.S. Department of Justice. In the event that grant funds actually received are less than the
total amount requested by County, County may termminate this Agreement effective upon written
notice to the City without penalty or further liability.

Records Maintenance; Access. City shall maintain all fiscal records relating to this Agreement in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, City shall maintain any
other records pertinent to this Agreement in such a manner as to clearly document City's
performance. City acknowledges and agrees that County and the federal govemment and their
duly authorized representatives shall have access to such fiscal records and other books,
documents, papers, plans and writings of City that are pertinent to this Agreement to perform
examinations and audits and make excerpts and transcripts. City shall retain and keep
accessible all such fiscal records books, documents, papers, plans, and writings for a minimum
of three (3) years after the completion of the aforementioned grants from the U.S. Department of
Justice, or such longer period as may be required by applicable law, or until the conclusion of
any audit, controversy or litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement, whichever date is
later.

Compliance with Applicable Law. City shall comply with all federal, state and local laws,
regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the Work under this Agreement. City
shall comply with all applicable state, county and municipal standards for licensing, certification
and operation of required facilities, shall maintain any applicable professional license or
certificate required to perform the services described in this Agreement, and shall comply with
any other standards or criteria described in this Agreement.

Temination.
A This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual written consent of the parties.

B. The County may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, in its sole discretion,
upon 30 days written notice to the City.

C. The County may teminate this Agreement, immediately upon notice to City, or at such later
date as County may establish in such notice, upon the occurrence of any of the
following events:

(@ County fails to receive funding, or appropriations, limitations or other expenditure
authority at levels sufficient to cover reimbursement costs under this Agreement,

(b) Federal or state laws, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in such a way

Law Enforcement IGA / City of Coos Bay — Page 2 of 3
Agenda Item #3b



that either the grant under this Contract is prohibited or the County is prohibited from
paying the costs from the planned funding source; or

(c) City commits any material breach or default of any covenant under this Agreement,
and such breach, default or failure is not cured within 10 business days after delivery
of County's notice.

8. Amendments. Any changes or deviations from the terms of this Agreement shall not be valid
unless and until they have the prior written approval of the parties. Funds will not be provided
for activities which deviate from the terms of this Agreement.

9. Severability. If any portion of this contract is illegal, void, or otherwise found by a Court to be
unenforceable, the offending provision shall be severed from the contract and the remaining
provisions shall remain enforceable and full effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed as of the date and year first written above.

CITY OF COOS BAY, OREGON, BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
a Municipal Corporation COOS COUNTY, OREGON
By: By:

Rodger Craddock, City Manager Fred Messerle,

500 Central Avenue

Coos Bay, OR 97420
541-269-8912
By:

Cam Perry, Commyssipner

Date:
y: /(\%gb Y\J\ A
Bob Malfi, Commissioner

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Coos County Courthouse

Coquille, OR 97423

541-396-7500
City Attorney

Date: /0/ ﬁ) / / 7

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

dunty Counse?

Law Enforcement IGA / City of Coos Bay — Page 3 of 3

Agenda Item #3b




CITY OF COOS BAY

Agenda Staff Report

MEETING DATE AGENDA ITEM NUMBER
November 6, 2012

TO: Mayor Shoji and City Councilors
FROM: Jim Hossley, Director of Public Works and Development Department Q,Qﬂ’
Laura Barron Planning Administrator

ISSUE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION ON WIND TURBINES

On September 11™ and October 9" the Planning Commission held work sessions on the concept of
wind turbines in the city. After lengthy discussions, the Planning Commission recommends that
wind turbines not be allowed in the city limits. If a significant proposal were presented, the issue
may be reconsidered. The Planning Commission felt that wind turbines are not appropriate in the
city.

Staff has created a preliminary draft Ordinance based on the model Crdinance from Astoria that was
developed, through State grant funding, for the purpose of wind energy conversion systems.

DISCUSSION
Discussion centered on the following issues:

* Qur living environment is one of our greatest assets. This type of development
belongs in the County, for example, on the North Spit, away from urban density
development where negative impacts, such as noise, flicker, viewscapes, etc., are
the most probable.

e The industrial/commercial-zoned land in the city is generally located along or near
arterials which are usually on the lower elevations. Regardless of the zoning, these
areas are often adjacent to residential areas.

» To function, wind turbines must be tall and unobstructed. The general rule for the
placement of a wind turbine is that the rotor of a wind turbine be located 30 feet
above any obstacle (rooftop, mature tree, etc.) for a distance of 500 feet radius, in
order for a wind turbine to be effective. The higher the pole, the less obstructions
and the greater efficiency for the turbine.

Awidely-used practice for a turbine setback is the total height of the turbine (the pole
plus the length of the blade at its highest point). This means that a 50-foot-high
turbine with a 10 foot blade would need to setback from the property line, right of
way, above ground utility lines, etc., a distance of 55 feet. The rapidly changing
topography of our urban area does not appear to be conducive to the effective use of
awind turbine. Aturbine at 25 feet in height would likely not be effective because of
likely obstacles causing wind turbulence.

GADCS\PLANNING\FACT SHEETS20I 2AWINDENERGYPCRECOMMEND.DOC
1

Agenda ltem #4



e The Planning Commission believes in “green energy”; however, realizing that
“sound” is a subjective term, they also agree that wind turbines are not “passive”
energy. Technology for wind energy conversion systems is constantly
changing/improving, but at this time the Planning Commission does not consider it
as appropriate development for the urban living environment.

OTHER INPUT

Energy Trust of Oregon

On October 2, 2012, staff had the opportunity to speak with Chris Dearth of the Energy Trust of
Oregon (ETO). Mr. Dearth stated that to be eligible for state incentives the tower for the turbine
must be a minimum of 70 feet in height and, generally, on one (1) acre of land. Incentives are
based on estimated energy production.

On-line Survey

Staff has had a survey regarding wind turbines on our web site since September 12, 2012. To date
we have had about 150 responses. To us this is not an adequate response in which to draw any
conclusions. A copy of the survey results is attached.

BUDGET
No budgetary impact to tonight's actions.
RECOMMENDATION

If the Council is so inclined, and based on the Planning Commission’s recommendation, consider
the following options:
¢ Postpone work on ordinance provisions for wind energy conversion systems in the
city; or,
e Schedule a joint work session with the Planning Commission to discuss moving
forward with an ordinance; or,
¢ Prepare a draft ordinance for wind energy conversion systems that are a maximum
of 20 feet in height as described in the attached Summary (micro wind energy
facility).

ATTACHMENTS

A — One-page summary of preliminary ordinance for small-scale wind energy systems,

B - Planning Commission Minutes of September 11, 2012 and draft Minutes of October 9, 2012;
C - Planning Commission memorandums for September 11 and October 9, 2012;

D - Survey results as of October 29, 2012; and,

E - Preliminary draft Ordinance.

Factsheet\2012\windenergyPCrecommend

Agenda ltem #4



SUMMARY: SMALL SCALE WIND ENERGY SYSTEM

The purpose of this Chapter is to oversee the permitting of small scale wind energy systems to
protect public health and safety, and preserve the environmental, historic and aesthetic qualities
of the City without significantly increasing the cost or decreasing the efficiency of a small wind
energy system.

The proposed ordinance defines a small-scale wind energy system as less than 70 feet in
height with a rotor blade of less than 22 feet (380 square foot swept area). Approval of a
conditional use is required for all small-scale wind energy systems which may be permitted in all
zoning districts. Standards include location, height, setbacks, noise, impacts on viewscapes,
and, a performance bond which would be released when the facility is operational. If the wind
energy system is mounted on a building it must not extend more than 15 feet above the height
of the building to which it is attached and must be within the allowable height of the zone, e.g.,
35 feet maximum in the residential zone.

A micro wind energy facility is, by definition, also a “small scale” wind energy system. If the
system if less than 20 feet in height it is a micro wind energy system. A micro wind energy
system may be reviewed as an Administrative Conditional Use but may be subject to the same
standards as a facility taller than 20 feet in height. It must be located on the structure it
generates the power for and there must be adequate documentation available for other factors
that could create negative impacts to nearby property, such as noise and flicker. An
engineering report is required documenting that the structure that the facility will be
attached/mounted to is sufficiently strong to support the system and to withstand the wind,
vibration and other loads to which it would be subjected.

In addition to the Variance criteria currently set forth in the Municipal Code, additional Variance
options are proposed for height, setbacks and noise. No height Variance may be granted for a
facility on a single-family dwelling or duplex or within a residential zone. The maximum height
for residential zones is 35 feet.

Standards are proposed for the removal of a wind energy system that is out-of-service for a
continuous 12-month period or that has reached the end of its useful life. The facility must be
physically removed no more than 90 days from the date of abandonment or discontinuation of
use and the site restored to the state it was in before the facility was constructed.

A wind facility, other than a micro wind facility, is proposed to be prohibited in the following
locations: sites, districts or places listed as cultural resources or included on the National
Register, or within the streetscape of the neighborhood where the resource is located; sites
regulated by the Coos Bay Estuary Management Plan (generally, this is a minimum of 100 feet
from the shoreline); and, within 100 feet of any sensitive or endangered species designated by
the Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife without written permission from that agency. ///

Agenda ltem #4



CITY OF COOS BAY
PLANNING COMMISSION WORKSESSION MINUTES
Tuesday, October 9, 2012 at 6:00 P.M.
Coos Bay City Hall, 500 Central Avenue, Coos Bay

ATTENDANCE

COMMISSIONERS: Chairman Christine Coles Commissioners, Jim Berg, Bruce
Harlan, Chris Hood, Jeff Marineau, Phil Marler and Danny
Stoddard

ABSENT: Commissioner

STAFF: Laura Barron, Planriing Administrator
Debbie Erler, Planner 1

SIGNED-IN GUESTS: None

Laura Barron summarized the September Planning Commission work session. She stated the
four Commissioners in attendance felt that wind turbines should not be placed in an urban area
such as Coos Bay. They voiced concern that the technology is not to the point where the wind
turbines are both efficient and non-intrusive for residences in an urban area. They stated our
living environment is one of our biggest assets. They indicated that our topography consists of
hills covered with houses with a view of the industrial lands. They concluded that wind turbines
do not belong within the City. Mrs. Barron stated scientifically the best sites for wind turbines
are where the wind is least obstructed with the blades at least 30-feet above any obstruction
(rooftop, trees, etc.) within 500-feet radius. She added that if wind turbines will be allowed there
needs to be some standards to regulate the placement to protect surrounding property.

Mrs. Barron stated the City has asked for public input using a “Monkey Survey”. She said only
130 people completed the survey (which is not a very good representation) and 90 percent were
in favor of allowing the wind turbines in Industrial-Commercial zones (I-C). She said the
Industrial-Commercial (I-C) zones are along the Hwy 101 corridor and along Coalbank Slough
and some sites along Ocean Blvd. and Newmark Avenue. She said we are looking for a
recommendation from the Planning Commission to the City Council on whether or not to move
ahead with regulations for wind turbines. Mrs. Barron stated she compiled the base information
for the draft ordinance from information available from the Astoria’s model ordinance (which has
not been adopted by Astoria) and input from Shannon Sonja from Sol Coast, who made some
suggestions.

Chairman Coles stated she has talked with a couple individuals who have large development
wind farms and they said wind turbines should be located outside the urban area due to the high
amount of noise.

Commissioner Marineau stated he has property with views of the industrial zone and he is not
interested in having wind turbines in the residential view scape. He said there are other places
more suited for wind turbines like the North Spit.

Commissioner Berg stated if we don't want wind turbines in the urban area and we don't really
want to look at wind turbines, then we don’t need an ordinance.

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES oC 9, 2012 PAGE 4
B Agenda ltem #4



Commissioner Harlan stated his concern is that someone is going to order something out of a
magazine and install it on their roof or in their back yard. He said the City needs an ordinance
prohibiting wind turbines or regulating them.

Jim Hossley stated the City currently has a moratorium on wind turbines. He presented a
Power Point presentation outlining the classes/scales of wind turbines. He stated the utility
scale is over 30 megawatts and is intended to contribute to the power source and could be over
260-feet in height; mid-size 100 kilowatts to 30 megawatts which are smaller in size; and then
there are the small scale wind turbines. He said if someone came in with a large subdivision
(for example 100 to 200 lots) they may want one of these to be a “Green Community®. The
photos on the Power Point showed how the small scale wind turbine compares in height to a
house, flag pole and a person. He said the average single-family dwelling uses 10,000
Kilowatts hours per year (830 per month). He stated a one and an half Kilowatt wind turbine
could meet the needs of a home requiring 300 Kilowatts per month (which is a third of what a
single-family dwelling requires) with an annual average of 14 mile an hour wind speeds. He
said that in Coos Bay we average 7 to 8 miles per hour wind speed. He said you need to get
the sweep of the rotors above the turbulence (generally 30-feet about trees and hills within 500
feet). There are some wind turbines that take advance of the turbulence. The higher you get
the above the turbulence the higher your return. Mr. Hossley showed a video from inside a
house that is 700-feet from a wind turbine and how the “flicker” (blinking created from the sun
hitting the blades) can create a problem. He said the noise could be similar to the sounds of a
refrigerator. He said a number of issues need to be considered location, height, setback, visual
impact, noise, structural integrity, etc.

Mrs. Barron stated we need an ordinance that either prohibits or regulates wind turbines.

Commissioner Marineau stated he has seen wind turbines on the roof of a new twenty-story
apartment building and they were not out of place with that development. He does not like the
idea of having wind turbines in the City.

Commissioner Hood stated wind turbines are not a passive energy source. He said solar
energy is passive and there are other methods that are passive alternatives.

Commissioner Marineau stated that back in the 70’s a contractor installed a wind turbine in two
locations and they worked for a couple years then stopped and they set there for years.

Commissioner Harlan stated that he talked to Dave Parameter about the wind turbines they
installed and they saved about six dollars a month on the electric bill. He said they had vibration
problems and other negative issues.

Commissioner Hood stated he does not want Coos Bay to a guinea pig. He said in time the
technology will change and at that time we can revisit the issue.

Commissioner Marler stated he would be in favor of specifically prohibiting wind turbines. If at a
later date things change and technology changes we could change the code.

Chairman Coles stated maybe we should take additional comments from the public.
Commissioner Marler stated he heard radio announcements that the meeting was being held
tonight and that anyone interested in providing input was encouraged to attend, and no one
showed up.

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES OCTOBER 9, 2012 PAGE 5
Agenda ltem #4



Mr. Hossley stated the public would have another opportunity to speak before the City Council.
He said if the City Council determines they want to proceed with an ordinance they will send it
back to the Planning Commission.

Commissioner Hood stated that often when someone is opposed to something they show up
and if they are in favor of something they stay home.

Commissioner Marler stated if the City Council wants the Planning Commission to create an
ordinance (to prohibit or to allow in limited area) they need to give us that direction.

Commissioner Berg stated the wind turbines we have seen so far are not something we would
want 100-feet from our homes. Maybe technology will change in the future that would make
them more appropriate in an urban environment, but not at this time.

Commissioner Marineau stated the watershed may be a good site because it is less visible and
is far enough from residences to not create a noise problem. He added that he does not think
any other site in Coos Bay would be appropriate.

Commissioner Harlan stated he has not seen a wind turbine in a residential zone.

Commissioner Stoddard said Head Start talked about putting a wind turbine on their property on
Thomas Avenue.

Mrs. Barron stated that if the City is going to allow wind turbines on any level an ordinance is
needed to regulate the placement.

MOTION: Commissioner Marler — Recommend the City Council specifically prohibit
wind turbines in the City of Coos Bay at this time based on current
information, technology, our dense population, topography, view
scapes and the uniqueness of the Coos Bay area.

SECOND: Commissioner Marineau

DISCUSSION: The Planning Commission discussed issues that need to be considered
include Coos Bay's population/density, topography and viewscapes
which are unique to this area. They stated the industrial lands in Coos
Bay are flat and residential lands are on hills that look down onto the
industrial lands. The Planning Commission discussed other locations
such a development would be an option and that included off-shore and
on hills in undeveloped areas. Commissioner Marler stated Coos Bay is
quiet and un-intrusive and that is one of the things that draw people to the
area. He said placement of wind turbines would affect the quality of life.

VOTE: Unanimous

ADJOURNMENT 7:20 p.m.

Chris Coles, Chairwoman
City of Coos Bay
Coos County, Oregon

ATTEST:

Debbie Erler, Planner 1, City of Coos Bay

G:\DCS\PLANNING\WMinutes PC\ADRAFT\2012\Mn10-09-2012.doc

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES OCTOBER 9, 2012 PAGE 6
Agenda ltem #4



CITY OF COOS BAY
PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION MINUTES
Tuesday, September 11, 2012
6:00 P.M. Coos Bay Library, 525 Anderson Avenue, Coos Bay

ATTENDANCE

COMMISSIONERS: Commissioners Jim Berg, Bruce Harlan, Phil Marler and Danny
Stoddard

ABSENT: Chairman Christine Coles, Commissioners Chris Hood, Jeff
Marineau

STAFF: Laura Barron, Planning Administrator

Debbie Erler, Planner 1

DISCUSSION ON WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS

Laura Barron stated that about a year ago the City Council directed staff to research issues
related to the placement of wind turbines. At that time Astoria had a grant to develop an
ordinance that would regulate the placement of the systems in coastal communities. A draft
ordinance was completed, but Astoria has yet to adopt the draft ordinance.

Mrs. Barron stated a survey has been developed with questions regarding the interest in the
wind systems and the level of regulation the public feels is needed. Notice of the survey will go
out on public service announcements and the survey will be placed on the City’'s web site.

Bruce Harlan asked if anyone is currently interested in placing a wind turbine. Mrs. Barron
stated no one has asked about wind turbines in about two years. She stated there is currently a
moratorium in place to allow the City time to research the positive and negative effects of
placement and to consider regulations.

Mrs. Barron stated that Community Action was considering a wind turbine on the new campus.
She stated a wind study should be conducted prior to the placement of any wind energy
equipment. She added that at this time she does not know if there are funds or incentives
available for placement. She stated the wind turbines are expensive and you don't want to have
them placed around town and then find they are not effective or efficient and have them
abandoned, but not removed.

Commissioner Berg asked if there is a demand or need at this time, or are we just getting the
regulations in place in case there is a need in the future. He stated if there is a demand he
thinks a utility like Pacific Power should be leading this issue. He said we could wear ourselves
out creating policies for something that is not practical.

Commissioner Stoddard stated there is a big push for green technology and there are tax
credits and grants available. He said there is a local company that is doing a lot of grant writing
and lobby for Federal funds to bring this technology to our area.

@)

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES SEPTEMBER 10, 2012 PAGE 1
Agenda ltem #4



Commissioner Harlan stated he would like to see an installed, functioning wind turbine. He said
there is a lot of difference between something on paper and an actual structure. He asked if
there is an example of a working wind turbine that could be viewed and studied. He said the
City needs to review information on the effectiveness compared to the cost and compared to
other green energy options, such as solar that should also be reviewed. Mr. Harlan suggested
the City or another agency install a wind turbine at a test site then review the information/resuits
before they are permitted all over the city.

Mrs. Barron stated she believes someone in Bunker Hill may have a wind turbine and knows a
lot about wind turbines. She stated that is the kind of information the City hopes to receive as a
result of the survey. She asked if wind turbines belong in the densely-populated urban area like
Coos Bay, or should they be placed in a less populated area such as the County. She said that
is the purpose of the survey.

Commissioner Berg stated at first he thought we needed them everywhere and now he thinks
we need to look into this further. He said there was a “wind farm” near Whiskey Run Beach a
number of years ago. He said it was a bad idea that did not work. He asked if such a
development makes sense for the City of Coos Bay.

Commissioner Stoddard stated there needs to be a policy in place to regulate any future
placement. He asked if other communities are dealing with this issue at this time.

Commissioner Berg stated he has talked with people that are interested, but do we (the City)
have enough information to make a decision or reccommendation. Mrs. Barron stated at this
time we do not have enough specific information. She stated she is concerned that people are
going to buy a kit and install the wind turbines, then find it does not work on their property and
they abandon the structure, but they don't remove the structure.

Commissioner Marler stated the ordinance would have language that the structure must be
maintained in working order, but how will the City regulate that requirement to insure the wind
turbines remain maintained and operable. Mrs. Erler stated the public usually reports a violation
if they know something is not in compliance. Commissioner Marler asked if the owner could be
required to submit maintenance records every three years that verify the structure is in good
working order. He said that way the City can regulate the maintenance. He said technology is
changing every day. Mrs. Barron stated as technology advances our ordinance would need to
be revised and updated.

Commissioner Berg stated there does not seem to be the demand at this time (empty audience)
and he wonders if we should even be considering wind turbines at this time. He doesn’t think
we have enough information at this time or enough reason to develop an ordinance. He thinks
the power provides need to conduct a study.

Commissioner Harlan stated someone (an agency) needs to install a wind turbine and a study
needs to be conducted (based on the wind) to determine where they would be effective. He
stated there are areas in Coos Bay that a wind turbine would not even make sense because of
the lack of wind, including his back yard.

Commissioner Stoddard stated the proposed document is general enough to be helpful, which
is a good idea. He stated the ordinance could be refined as new information is received and we
have some experience. He said he thinks that because of the cost, it will be agencies placing
the structures.

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES Q SEPTEMBER 10, 2012 PAGE 2
Agenda ltem #4



Commissioner Marler stated he likes that there is not a variance option to the setback in the
residential zone. Commissioner Berg stated there is always a reason for a variance, like using
the undeveloped right of way in the setback. Mrs. Barron stated as the ordinance is proposed, a
variance in a residential zone would not be an option.

Commissioner Marler asked if a Conditional Use Permit would be required for all wind turbines.
Mrs. Barron stated unless the proposal is for a “Micro Turbine,” which is under 20-feet in height,
it could be done administratively. She said the applicant would need to meet all the standards,
including noise and location. She stated you would also need to post a bond that would be
returned when the building permit is finaled.

Commissioner Marler stated that maybe the city should only allow the wind turbines in
commercial zones. He added that if the use has to be so regulated because we are worried
about the noise, height, abandonment/removal and the danger if they fall should we even allow
them in the City.

Commissioner Berg stated if the technology is not there to make them practical, people will not
install them and it will be self-regulating.

Commissioner Stoddard stated if the City is going to allow the wind turbines, then we want to
have rules to help protect abutting properties.

Commissioner Berg stated maybe they should only be allowed in industrial zones.
Commissioner Marler stated abutting property owners would be more forgiving on a commercial
property.

Commissioner Marler stated even properties in excess of 800-feet may have their views
affected. He said his house is on North 12" Terrace and he can see houses on Telegraph Hill
which are well over 800-feet away. He said for every minute he is sitting in his living room, he
could see a wind turbine spin on Telegraph Hill. He is concerned that people that are affected
may not get notice of the proposal, because they are outside the notice area. He stated that
“flicker” could also be a problem for those owners. Mrs. Barron stated that maybe the City
should increase the notice area.

Mrs. Barron stated we are in a dense urban area. She asked if wind turbines are something
that should even be allowed.

Commissioner Marler questioned the noise level issue. He said if someone installs a wind
turbine that is within the noise levels, then a neighbor installs one and then another neighbor
installs one. Is it the individual noise level or the accumulated noise level that cannot be
exceeded?

Commissioner Stoddard stated it is clear we have concerns and we need regulations. He said
the proposed ordinance has concrete regulations to help regulate when and where they are
installed.

Commissioner Berg stated the operation of wind turbines in residential zones should not be
permitted until we know more about them. He said until we have enough data to have an
effective ordinance and until we know more about the operation, the use should not be
permitted anywhere in the City. Commissioner Harlan agreed.

Mrs. Barron asked if the Planning Commission is indicating that we don't have enough
information or knowledge to regulate wind turbines in the City.

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES @ SEPTEMBER 10, 2012 PAGE 3
Agenda ltem #4



Commissioner Stoddard asked about the current moratorium. Mrs. Barron stated a couple
years ago a couple commercial property owners were asking about placing wind turbines on
their property (Wal-Mart, Community Action, and Boat Building Center). The City did not know
enough about the effects the wind turbines would have on the community so they adopted a
moratorium until we could determine if they were appropriate in the City.

Commissioner Harlan stated we need to have better information on what we would be allowing
(appearance, height, color, noise etc.). He said nothing that we know at this time makes sense
for Coos Bay.

Commissioner Marler stated that as dense as we are in the City he doesn’t think wind turbines
are a good idea. The impact on resident’s view is tremendous and the issue is way too complex
at this time. He said that until we have more specific information and there is a demand for wind
turbines within the City the moratorium should remain in place.

Commissioner Harlan stated solar is available and it is quiet. He said wind turbines belong on a
mountain top not in neighborhoods.

Mrs. Barron stated we either need to keep the moratorium or we need an ordinance that
prohibits wind turbines or that regulates wind turbines. The Planning Commission determined
that at this time they recommend wind turbines not be allowed in the City of Coos Bay. Mrs.
Barron stated the City may put in the Coos Bay Municipal Code that wind turbines are
prohibited.

ADJOURNMENT 7:20 p.m.

Bruce Harlan, meeting Chairman
City of Coos Bay
Coos County, Oregon

ATTEST:

Debbie Erler, Planner 1, City of Coos Bay

G:\DCS\PLANNING\Minutes PC\DRAFT\2012\Mn09-11-2012.doc

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES lE SEPTEMBER 10, 2012 PAGE 4
Agenda ltem #4



City of Coos Bay
Public Works & Development Dept.

500 Central Ave., Coos Bay, Oregon 97420 - Phone (541) 269-1181
Fax (541) 269-8916

October 2, 2012

MEMORANDUM
TO: PLANNING COMMISSION
FROM: Laura Barron, Public Works and Development Department-
RE: Wind Energy Conversion Systems

At the end of the work session on September 11, 2012, the consensus among Planning
Commissioners was that wind turbines should not be sited in an urban area such as the City of
Coos Bay. Commissioners voiced concern that the technology for turbines is not to the point of
being both efficient and non-intrusive for an urban area where our living environment is one of
our greatest assets and, the topography of the city, consisting of hills covered and surrounded
by residences and strips of commercial/industrial development along major transportation
routes, is not conducive to the effective use of a wind turbine. We are bringing this issue back to
the Commission for further discussion and a forma/ recommendation to the City Council.

The best sites for turbines are those where the wind is least obstructed, which is often the
highest point on a property. The bottom of the turbine rotor should clear the highest wind
obstacle (rooftop, mature tree, etc.) within a 500 foot radius by at least 30 feet. Doing so
ensures the turbine reaches consistent, fast wind speeds and prolongs the life of the turbine by
avoiding stressful air turbulence. Regardless, it is likely landowners, investors, leasees may
consider installing wind turbines. Therefore, we should consider having regulations in place to
minimize any negative impacts that may occur.

We are proposing draft standards for the city that will require review of the following:
« Location
« Setbacks from neighboring property
s Noise standards
+ Height limitations
* Abandonment procedures
e Variance options

Attached for your review and Planning Commission discussion are draft standards for wind
turbines in the city. Also, a reminder that a survey is in place on the city's web site
(www.coosbay.org) regarding wind turbines in the city. Results of the survey thus far are
attached.

Thanks.

Attachment: Draft standards; survey results
PCwindenergy10-9

Agenda ltem #4



City of Coos Bay
Public Works & Development Dept.

500 Central Ave., Coos Bay, Oregon 97420 « Fhone (541) 269-1181
Fax (541) 269-8916

September 4, 2012

MEMORANDUM
TO: PLANNING COMMISSION . %
FROM: Laura Barron, Public Works and Development Department
RE: SEPTEMBER 11, 2012 WORK SESSION: Wind Energy Conversion Systems

Attached for your review is a draft ordinance for wind energy conversion systems for the city of

Coos Bay. The bullets listed below are items for discussion, although there may be many other
discussion pacints:

« Draft 17.287.020, Definitions: Micro wind energy system is defined to be less than 20
feet in height. The total height is the vertical distance from the ground to the tip of the
blade at its highest point. Referto 17.287.60, a micro wind energy facility may be
approved outright if it complies with certain criteria;

* A'small scale wind energy system”, per 17.287.020, must be less than 70 feet in height,
with a rotor blade of less than 22 feet. (For reference, the Tioga Hotel is about 100 feet
high.) Per the Energy Trust of Oregon (ETO), the minimum tower height is 60 feet. This
would leave 10 feet for the blades. The ETO has set forth technical standards to
represent best practices for system performance and longevity (i.e., less likely to be
abandoned); and, meeting the technical standards is a requirement for system owners to
receive cash incentives from Energy Trust.

« Draft 17.287.030, Prohibited locations, prohibits a wind facility, other than a micro wind
facility in the following areas:

W Sites, districts or places listed as a cultural resource or in the National
Register of Historic Places, or within the streetscape of the neighberhood
where the resource is located:;

m Sites regulated by the Coos Bay Estuary Management Plan; and,
m  Within 100 feet of any sensitive or endangered species desighated by the
Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife without written permission from

that agency.

Also, attached for your review is a list of questions that will be put on the City’s web site for
public input. The issue is scheduled to be reviewed by the City Council on October 2, 2012.

Attachments: Draft Ordinance; Wind Turbine Survey Memos/2012/Pewindenergy3-11

C’ ; ‘77‘ Agenda ltem #4
—_—



Wind Turbine Survey Fog" SurvegMonkeg

1. Should the City of Coos Bay allow wind turbines?

Response Response

Percent Count

Yes | — 88.7% 133
No [ - 11.3% 17
answered guestion 150

skipped question 0

2. Do you think wind turbines/towers/farms would destroy the "looks" of the city?

Response Response

Percent Count
Yos [ 15.4% 23
No | : | 84.6% 126
answered question 149
skipped question 1

3. Should the location of wind turbine systems be limited to certain areas?

Response Response

Percent Count
Yes | ] 66.2% 96
No | 33.8% 49
answered question 145
skipped question 5

10of 16 @ Agenda ltem #4



4. What location would be ok for a wind turbine system?

Response Response

Percent Count
Schools [ I 51.1% 69
Parks | ] 34.8% 47
Along the Bay | ] 64.4% 87
Along Hwy 101 | ] 68.1% 92
Private Residence | i 63.7% 86
Commercial/industrial Property [ I 95.6% 129
answered question 135
skipped question 15

5. Where would a wind turbine system not be ok?

Response

Count
85
answered question 85
skipped question 65

6. Would it matter to you how tall a wind turbine system was?

Response Response

Percent Count

Yes | 38.4% 56
No | . - 61.6% 90
answered question 146

skipped question 4

2 0f 16 ' Agenda ltem #4



7. Would it matter to you if a wind turbine system was located in your viewscape?

Response Response

Percent Count

Yes | 30.1% 44
No | | 69.9% 102
answered question 146

skipped question 4

8. Should a structure-mounted wind turbine system that projects up to 15 feet above the
roofline of a structure be permitted in residential districts?

Response Response

Yes |

No |

Percent Count
| 62.9% 90
| 37.1% 5%
answered question 143
skipped question 7

9. Should a structure-mounted wind turbine system that projects up to 15 feet above the
roofline of a structure be permitted in commercial/industrial districts?

Response Response

Percent Count

Yes | 89.0% 129
No 11.0% 16
answered question 145

skipped question 5

3of 16 Agenda ltem #4



10. Should a small-scale tower-mounted wind turbine system up to a height of 60 feet be

permitted in residential districts?

Yes |

No |[.

Response Response

Percent Count
52.7% 78
47.3% 70
answered question 148
skipped question 2

11. Should a medium-scale tower mounted wind turbine system up to a height of 100 feet

be permitted in residential districts?

Yes | ]

No |

Response Response

Percent Count
37.0% 54
63.0% 92
answered question 146
skipped question 4

12. Should a medium-scale tower mounted wind turbine system up to a height of 100 feet

be permitted in commercial/industrial districts?

Yes |

No [

40f 16

Response Response

Percent Count
82.9% 121
17.1% 25
answered question 146
skipped question 4

Agenda ltem #4



13. Where do you currently live?

Response Response

Percent Count
City of Coos Bay | ] 43.2% 64
City of NorthBend [ ... | 25.7% 38
Other | | 31.1% 46
answered question 148
skipped question 2

14. Further Comments

Response

Count
68
answered question 68
skipped question 82

5 of 16 Agenda Item #4



Q5. Where would a wind turbine system not be ok?

‘Parks, schools and public sights

Oct 21,2012 6:11 PM

7 of 16

2 Whe Oct 15, 2012 4:49 PM
3 Any property used for residential, recreation, any type of gathering place. There Oct 12, 2012 9:31 AM

is a lot to be considered before placing wind turbines. _
4 INTHECITY LIMITS! Oct 11, 2012 2:52 PM

.5 : Public‘ places v'v'he‘re they would endahgéf people Oct 10, 2012848PM :

6 | ,F,:’ublic places where they would endanger people | Oct 10, 2012 8:48 PM
7 Residential zone, schools zone, view scapes Oct 10, 2012 11:29 AM
8 near homes Oct 10, 2012 10:12 AM
9 Public safety agencies Oct 9, 2012 7:33 PM
10 Allowing the use with a conditional use permit to look at specific criteria such as Oct 9, 2012 1:38 PM

location and height would give a place for review or inappropriate locations
11 migratory bird flyways Oct 9, 2012 10‘:40 AM
12 blocking view Oct 8, 2012 5:54 PM
13 Where it might be dangerous. Oct 8,2012 1:53 PM

.14 * houseing areas Oct 7,2012 7:40 PM
15 . directly on 101 hwy Oct 1, 2012 2:02 AM
16 On private property that did not want the system. Sep 28, 2012 8:06 PM
17 in my pool Sep 28, 2012 2:21 PM
18 Parks and schools Sep 27,2012 1:52 PM
19 Along the Bay Sep 25, 2012 4:50 PM
20 Where they would disturb sensitive ecosystems over long term. Sep 25, 2012 10:39 AM
21 In an area where it could damage/interfere with natural resources/wildlife such Sep 24, 2012 10:45 PM
- as birds, or limit the activities/access of the public. It also should not interfere

with neighboring properties.
22 Nothing fqo high next to homes Sep 24, 2012 5:36 PM
23 Schools or downtown ~ Sep 23, 201 2 12;:5f2j‘PM
24  Residential and landscape areas Sep 22, 2012 6:47 PM
25 Where there is hot much wind..... © Sep 22,2012 4:21 PM

Agenda ltem #4



05 .'Wher, : would a wmd turblne system not be ok? L

26 - Parks and on beaches. B Sep 21, 2012 6:26 PM
27 _ F.'arks, eepeclally along-‘the beaches :, Sep-21, 201‘2 523 PM
28 Ineed to-know more to make an opinion | Sep-21, 20125:20 PM
29 nowhere Sep 21,2012 5:12 PM
30 Scenicareas - Sep 21,2012 8102 PM
31 Nearanubran renewal district Sep 21,201210:37.AM

.They should be everywhere, we need better power optlons and to reduce
depedency on forelgn oil .

 Sep 21,2012 7:40 AV

Sep 20, 2012 8:01 PM

33 Coos Bay and North Bend
134 Whereit could be a potential hazard Sep 20, 2012 9:27 AM

‘;Schools, unless funds are made avallable for educatlon parks and Wlldllfe areas’
s where turbines can cause W|IdI|fe deaths.

Sep 20,20129:10AM

W|th|n Clty Resuﬂentnal areas.

© Sep 20, 20128:32 AM

37 THE MIDDLE OF TOWN TOURIST AREAS. Sep 19, 2012 10:53 PM
38 downtown, parks, lower levels of hospitals, etc. Sep 19, 2012 7:26 PM
3 2 Sep 19, 2012 453 PM

40 - Endangering wildiife Sep 19, 2012 4:26 PM

B ‘|"K“°W.lfhé{9 are some but can not think of any at present. Sep 19,: 26"12 3:35 PM

42 parks | Sep19,20123:13 PM

:43,1 Where it. would |mpact peaceful Life of the citizens, such as near private homes, | Sep 19, 201211 1 PM
.in areas ‘where noise is a sensitive issue; and also along corridors frequented by R gt O
birds. Definitely-some provision should be made for the pretectlon of birds. L fan t

44 intown Sep 19,2012 1:02 PM

45 When ite'loeation'efeates‘a"hazard. Sep 19,2012 1223PM

48

“all.over

Sep 19, 2012 11:48 AM

alonghwy 101

 Sep 19,2012 11:40 AM

48

" anywhere dangerous for birds and humans. noise needs to be abated

Sep 19, 2012856 AM -

49 anytourist areas . Sep i‘9, 2012 818AM ‘
50 vThere isn't any place | can think of where a turblne would not be ok. “Sep 1 9, 20121220AM

8of16

Agenda ltem #4



05;.“ ‘Whevre‘w0ul‘da wind turbine system not be ok?

Must Iook up areas with high populations of bats that will be affected. ‘

51 -ReS|dent|aI nneighborhoods, unless made—to fit into the greenery(llke cell towers Sep 18, 2012 919 PM
in Medford) ‘ S
52 Downtown. Put them where the most wind blows!! Sep 18, 2012 9:34 AM
53 along the libby area - do not cut trees down to make it happen. Whiskey Run Sep 18, 2012 9:27 1AM
beach wouuld be perfect. o
54 downtown locations Sep 17, 201 24:17PM
55  parks Sep 17, 2012 3:42 PM
56  parks Sep 17, 2012 1:13 PM
57 Anywhere the turbines wake stream would interfere with residences or Sep 17, 2012 12:29 PM
asthetically harm beaches and tourist areas. v
58  Downtown Sep 17, 2012 1.0:58‘AM
59  where we can see them from the city Sep 17, 2012 8:56 AM
60 If there is a noise issue, maybe not too close to neighbors. Sep 17, 2012 8:54 AM
61 In places where it might present a hazard or nusiance like schoolyards Sep 17,2012 5:17 AM
62 Frivatﬁresidences, parks, along the bay (accept for area west of Eastside boat Sep 16; 2012 :‘3:381 PM
aunc .
63  beaches Sep 15,2012 7:08 PM
64 - Anywhere not beneficial... Sep 15, 2012 5:23 PM
65 dense urban areas Sep 15,2012 5:01 PM
66 it sheuld not be where the public can have access Sep 15, 2012 12:54 PM
67 ontop of buildings Sep 14,2012 10:11 AM
68 Wh‘e‘re it could be dangerous Sep 14,2012 10:1() AM
69 anywhere other than the beach. We could use them as an item of interest and Sep .13, 261-2 4:19 PM
‘ make a story of them for our town. Ve
70 . senic \(iewsc_:apes Sep ‘1‘3, 20‘12“3:27,PM
71 - downtown Coos Bay or in a scenic location! : ~ Sep 13,2012 258 PM »
; 72 - schools, parks; rhdseums, near con‘c‘:entrated: homes Sep 1 3. 2012 : 51 PM
73 'palz':kihg*lots, airports, gas ‘statio‘ns‘ 53951 3, 2012249 PM
74 fesidence with. very small yards, and close to other homes - .Sep 13, 201'2 2;49 ‘VPM' )
75 Sep 13,2012 2:46 PM

90of 16

Agenda ltem #4



Q5. Where would a wind turbine system not be ok?

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

In a farm along the bay, along hwy 101 or masses of them in residential zones
residential neighborhoods, next ta highways/busy roads

Inside a building

private residence (uniess you have permission)

downtown

Turbines on private property should be put up to a vote of surrounding property
awners. If the majority is in favor of it, then a turbine may be erected.

Schools
Anywhere
In the viewscape of a private residence

any downtown or residential area

10 0f 16

Sep 13, 2012 2:40 PM
Sep 13, 2012 2:05 PM
Sep 13, 2012 2:04 PM
Sep 13,2012 1:58 PM
éep 13, 2012 1:53 PM

Sep 13, 2012 1:46 PM

Sep 13,2012 1:45 PM
Sep 13, 2012 12:41 PM
Sep 13, 2012 11:09 AM

Sep 13, 2012 9:10 AM

Agenda ltem #4



- Q4. »F‘urtherCo,mments

1

Renewable energy such as wind power isa great fit for a windy area like Coos
Bay

Oct 17, 2012 8:00 AM

2 ‘We, as a community, need to embrace wind turbines within city limits. It makes Oct 15, 2012 4:49 PM
economic sense and we should absolutely be supporting this. Towns and Cities
across the United States and world are moving towards urban wind energy and
to oppose this will be shortsighted and ill advised. | am very embarrassed of the
Planning Commission's decision and believe it was the wrong one (as does
much of the Bay Area community) .
3 This is not a simple issue - no matter what Jodie and her critics say. Oct 12, _20121"9:'31 AM ’
4 | like Windpower...but only in remote areasl Oct 11, 2012 2:52 PM
5 It would be nice to see examples of different turbines Oct 10, 2012 8:48 PM
6 It would be nice to see examples of different turbines Oct 10, 2012 8:48,PM
7 Excellent “green” idea Oct9, 2012 7:33 PM
8 Height is a consideration, but limiting a specific number of feet over the allowed Oct 9, 2012 1:38 PM
height seems reasonable ‘
9 . absolutely agree with using wind powerl Oct 8, 2012 1:53 PM
10 i do not view them as distatesful. we need energy. we have lots of wind. lets use Sep 28, 2012 1:33 PM
it. '
11 Clean e energy is the best Sep .27, 2012 10:57 AM
12 Power lines, cell towers and clear cuts already disturb my view. | would welcome  Sep 25, 2012 10:39 AM
more sustainable energy to my viewshed. o P
13 Migratory/resident bird populations need to be taken into consideration before Sep 24, 2012 10:45 PM
any turbine placement. ‘
14 | live in Bandon, but to see wind power succeed! Sep 24; 2012 5:36 PM
15  Carefull planning important Sep 22, 2012 6:47 PM
16 | think the most impbrtant factor will be....how much wind is available in specific Sep 22, 2012 4:21 PM
' spots......should be at a location that has enough wind foew to make it happen.
17 Please consider greater latitiude for vertical axis wind turbines which are much Sep 21, 2012 9:06 PM
lower profile that traditional turbines and can be mounted at much lower helghts '
They can be added to thethe side of existing cell towers. One would be great in
. my back yard. http://Awww.youtube.com/watch?v=Srd3beT3dMY - e
| 18 Coos County & Oregon need more Education on Wind Energy ' Sep 21, 2012' 5':'20‘:‘PM‘
19 It is time to save all the energy dollars we can. It is the 21st century and we need Sep 21, 2(‘)1‘2"5:1‘2 PM

renewables! | travel and love seeing windfarms, to me they are magestic.
Windmills were on every farm and kept for the scenic appeal.

12 0f 16

Agenda ltem #4



014 Further COmments

20

Queshons should all dlstlngmsh between rooftop and wsnd farm type generators.
They are two separate issues

Sep 21, 2012 3:02 PM

21

We NEED these things for our future. Thank you.

Sep 21, 2012 7:40 AM

22

With all the wind that comes our way, it is STUPID that the city and county will
not use it. Itis time for some big upgrades to our section of the world. | am tired
of living in one of the most depressed places in the state!

Sep 20, 2012 1:01 PM

23

Censideration for wildlife impacts must be addressed before implementing such

a project, also public input towards the placement of such turbines should be

taking into account to protect the town's viewscape.

Sep 20, 2012 9:10 AM

24

With as much wind as this area gets it seems to be a perfect fit for this kind of
project. Anywhere along the dunes, bay, coastal foothills would be appropriate
and effective.

Sep 20, 2012 8:32 AM

25

Put the turbines out on the islands in the bay. Part of where they could be
depends on the noise they make

Sep 19, 2012 5:02 PM

26

| would like more information on the pro and cons of wind turbines. This area
needs work and bringing options for energy would be a great way to bring money
to this economy. Coos bay is not the biggest tourist hotspot on the coast. It
seems more for passmg through and fishing and the casino. | would think that
bringing new money in would greatly improve this wonderful little town. The

schools in coos bay need help. If we could bring up a new industry here it might

stlmulate a'city in.need.

Sep 19, 2012 4:26 PM

27

If set properly there should be no problem. Handom designs need to be

regulated good quality no problem.:

Sep 19, 2012 3:35 PM

28

progression is good :).

Sep 19, 201 23:01 PM

29

the. higher, the stronger the wind

Sep 19, 2012 2:33 PM

30 .

All technologies involve tradeoffs. Your best move is to gain the power of the

wind with minimum impact on the peaceful lives of your people. | live in Eugene,
and have often travvelled to Coos Bay. It's a beautiful location, and | have seen
other beautiful locations (e.g. the middle West Coast of Taiwan) with windmills
added with little aesthetic damage. | recommend large windmills, far from
residential neighborhoods - possibly at sea or out in the Bay. From a distance,
there is something romantic about a large windmill in operation. But, like
bagpipes, the closer you get the more annoyance overcomes this advantage.

" Sep 19,2012 1:11 PM

31

There are many different designs, most are more efficient and less obtrusive
then the old rotor blade design.

Sep 19, 2012 12:23 PM

32

no we don't want this here

Sep 19, 2012 11:48 AM

33

If the purpose of the wind turbine is to service the area its built in, that changes
the equation. We need power independance. Think , the power grid is down,
sabotaged or by inclement weather.

Sep 19, 2012 9:56 AM

Coal & oil were buned for a reason. Wlnd is free, Iets use it.

Sep 19, 2012 12:20 AM

13 0of 16

Agenda ltem #4



Qt4. Funhér Commehié ‘

The questions really can't be asked/answered simply yes/no, lots of

35 ‘ Sep 18, 2012 9:19 PM
variables/considerations, we need to be looking ahead, finding alternatives, but o
at the same time we need to ensure that they can be made to fit into the setting,
residential/industrial etc. . ,

36 You want to restrict wind turbines but not coal or LNG; this makes absolutely no Sep 18, 2012 5:55 PM
sense.

37 The city should be helping facilitate the use of altemative forms of enérgy Sep 18, 2012 3:45 PM
production to the greatest extent possible. ‘ ‘

38 monitoring for safety is a factor, of course. Sep 18, 201 2‘9:52 AM

39 Survey should have a place for “No Wind Turbines, anywhere inside city limits. Sep 18,2012 9:51 AM
PERIOD!!

40 Bullards Beach- Shore Acres- Where the strongest and most consistent winds Sep 18, 2012 9:34 AM
blow!!

41 _iheard you can make the turbines look like trees and not be an eyesore. Think | Sep 18, 2012 9:27:AM
about our tourism and what would you think if you came to the coast for a nice ) o
vacation and just saw wind turbines everywhere. Dont get carried away. Put
some out by the Cape Arago beach, along the hollering point and Whiskey Run
beach: . ‘ : ' C

42 - Haveyou seen what the wind turbine have done to the columbia river area? - Sep 18, 2012 8:25 AM

43 . | think wind turbine could be located vat the top of the Pony Creek watershed -Sep 18,2012 8:02.AM

‘ without harm to the watershed obstruction of anyone's view. ‘
44 Wind turbines have failed miserably in this area - like Whiskey Run. | know Sep 17, 20_12‘7:05,PM‘
. someone who had a turbine on the top of a local mtn and it wasn't worth much in : :
terms of electricity produced. Questions 2,3, 6, and 7 are very dependent.upon
~ the type of wind turbine

45 structure sizes should be limited in residential areas Sép 17,2012 4:17 PM

46  Turbines do not destroy the beauty of the columbia gorge in my opinion Sep 17, 2012 3:42 PM

47 | think wind power is an import‘aht energy source we should be utilizing, and " Sep‘ 17,2012 12:29 PM
especially located along industrial or abandoned areas of 101 that are current -
eye sores, they would be providing a promising "outlook” of harnessing green
energy along the south coast.

48 out of site of view of the city Sep 17, 2012 8:56 AM

49 Be not afraid of change and progress. Sep 17, 2012 8:54 AM

50 Eco-ehergy must trurnp aesthetics; there is no “view" if we're immersed in Sep 17, 2012 8:08 AM
carbon-fuel smog! ' o
The wind industry employs 75,000 Americans in manufacturing, installation, and ~ Sep 17,2012 5:17 AM

51

maintenance. These are good-paying jobs for skilled workers, and they're
helping the country move beyond the wasteful and outdated energy technologies

14 0of 16

Agenda ltem #4



014; Furthér Comments .

of the 19th century.

52 What better way to generate power? People will complain about the turbines at Sep 16, 2012 3:24.PM
first, but they will get used to them. ‘ s

53 Like the.idea of wind power only second to solar power as far as invasive to Sep 16, 2012 6:52 AM
wildlife (turbines kill birds) but Dams and High Tension power lines do worse.

54 | love my hometown and believe harvestlng the resource of pacific wind would Sep 15, 2012 5:23 PM
‘greatly benef t the community.

55 i'have put up many windmills.in different Iocatlons and you people are looking at Sep 15,. 2012 12:54 PM
it and going about it the wrong way and your not asking the right questions or ‘
|mformmg people with all the right info ‘

56 there is concern about wind turbine towers just as there was 120 years ago with Sep 14,2012 11:59 AM
the proliferation of electrical transmission wires strung on poles The novelty of a ‘ S
thing wears off over time and it becomes acceptable, even ubiquitous.

57 | live very close to the border between North Bend and Coos Bay. Wind turbines ~ Sep 13, 2012 7:11 PM
dramatically negatively impact the quality of life of people who live near them. ‘

58 | think we could utilize these wind turbine as an item of interest and really make Sep 13,2012 419 PM
an educational element out of them. This could be an opportunity to combine the
nature loving coastal area with clean energy production. We always have wind
and we should take advantage of that.

59 you have to consider using vacate land that wouldn't make it an eyesore for Sep 13, 2012 2:58 PM
people traveling through and resndents You have to be sen5|ble about ! '
placement! ¥

60 views are important. It should be concidered when putting in a wind turbine. Sep 13, 2012 2:4§‘PM

61  We need the energy and the jobs | Sep 13, 2012 2:49 PM

62 Please look up research that shows how wind turbines affect the bat population. Sep 13,2012 2:46 PM
I do'NOT want an infestation of mesquitoes as a result of a dwindling bat
‘popuiation. Thank you.

63 Questlonz Turbines/Towers No, Farms Yes - A sea of wind turbines of multiple ~ Sep13, 2012 2:40 PM
sizes and shapes would be an eyesore, but a balance utlitzing this alternatlve o - i
energy would be prefered

64  Could be.located in 7 Devil's Rd area - how about the north spit industrial area - Sep 13, 2012 2:05 PM
“look at other areas and see how they have located their turbines off the beaten ? :
path. ‘

65 I live just out of the city limits. | am encouraged that the city is being forward Sep 13,2012 1:46 PM
: IOoking to address the energy needs and including wind power in the discussion.

66 Itwould be a huge leap forward for the City of Coos Bay and North Bend to get Sep 13, 2012.1:45-PM
th|s kind of technology S

67_ iBe;ooncemed about power distribution and cost o ' Sep 13,2012 12:41 PM

150f 16 Agenda ltem #4



Q14. Further Comments

68 We need to seriously look at smaller profile generators and offshore Sep 13, 2012 9:10 AM
development

16 of 16 Agenda ltem #4



Chapter 17.287 Revision7  8/31/2012
SMALL SCALE WIND ENERGY SYSTEM

Sections:

17.287.010 Purpose

17.287.020 Definitions

17.287.030 Prohibited locations
17.287.040 Standards for a small wind energy system
17.287.050 Conditional use application
17.287.060 Micro wind energy system
17.287.070 Monitoring and Maintenance
17.287.080 Revocation

17.287.090 Abandonment

17.287.100 Technical Support
17.287.110 Use of permit

17.287.120 Variance Criteria

17.287.010 Purpose.

The purpose of this Chapter is to oversee the permitting of small scale wind energy systems, to protect public
health and safety, and preserve the environmental, historic and aesthetic qualities of the City without
significantly increasing the cost or decreasing the efficiency of a small wind energy system.

17.287.020 Definitions.

Ambient background noise: The measured noise level at the appropriate measurement point as specified in
OAR 340-035-0035 Section (3)(b) of the Noise Control Regulation for Industry and Commerce using generally
accepted noise engineering measurement practices. Background noise measurements shall be obtained at
the appropriate measurement point, synchronized with wind speed measurements of hub height conditions at
the nearest wind turbine location. “Actual ambient background level” does not include noise generated or
caused by the wind energy facility.

Blades: The aerodynamic surface that catches the wind.

Brake: A device which can be applied mechanically, electrically, or hydraulically to stop the rotor in
emergencies.

Flicker: The alternating changes in light intensity/shadow cast by the rotating blades of a wind turbine when
the sun is at certain angles creating a blinking effect.
(Flicker is the constant “blinking light” created by the rotating blades which can be irritating to neighboring
properties. An evaluation of the flicker may be required.)

Governing System: Method the wind turbine uses to shed excess energy in high winds to protect the turbine
from over speeding.

Micro wind energy system: A system that converts wind energy into electricity through the use of a wind
turbine generator and may include a nacelle, rotor blade, tower, and/or turbine pad. A system is less than 20
feet in height and a blade of 9 foot or less in diameter (63.5 square foot swept area). Micro systems are
included in the definition of “small scale” wind systems.

Page 1 @ : Agenda ltem #4



Noise sensitive property: Property that is generally affected by excessive or loud noises such as schools,
churches, care centers, housing specifically for the elderly or infirm, hospitals, public libraries, and areas
specifically designated by the City of Coos Bay as follows: Mingus Park; John Topits Park....

Owner: the individual or entity that intends to own and operate the small scale wind energy system in
accordance with this code.

Rotor: The rotating part of a wind turbine, including either the blades and blade assembly or the rotating
portion of a generator.

Small scale wind energy system: A system that converts wind energy into electricity through the use of a
wind turbine generator and may include a nacelle, rotor, blade, tower, and/or turbine pad. A small scale wind
energy system is less than 70 feet in height, with a rotor blade of less than 22 feet (380 square foot swept
area).

Swept area: The area in square feet of the circle “swept” by the blades (A=1rr?).

Total height: The vertical distance from ground level to the tip of a wind generator blade when the tip is at its
highest point.

Tower: The monopole, freestanding, or guyed structure that supports a wind generator.

Vertical Axis Wind Turbine: A wind energy system with an axis perpendicular to the wind and which rotates
on its center generating power from a spinning effect rather than from a propeller.

View Corridor: Visual pathway of the bay or wooded hillsides, from a given public viewpoint such as a park,
public parking area, or public facility, that is currently unobstructed by buildings or other structures of the same
or greater height than the proposed facility.

Wind facility: Small scale wind energy system.

Wind generator: Blades and associated mechanical and electrical conversion components mounted on top of
the tower.

Wind monitoring or meteorological tower (met tower): A temporary tower equipped with devices to measure
wind speeds and direction, used to determine how much wind power a site can be expected to generate
(anemometer).

Wind turbine: A device that converts kinetic wind energy into rotational energy that drives an electrical
generator. A wind turbine typically consists of a tower, nacelle body, and a rotor with two or more blades.

17.287.030 Prohibited locations.

A wind facility, other than a micro wind facility as set forth in Section 17.290.060, shall be prohibited in the
following locations:

(1) Sites, districts, or places listed as cultural resources in the Comprehensive Plan or included on the
National Register of Historic Places, or within the streetscape of the neighborhood where the resource is
located.

(2) Sites regulated by the Coos Bay Estuary Management Plan; and, .

(3) Within 100 feet of any sensitive or endangered species designated by the Oregon Department of Fish
and Wildlife without written permission from that agency.

Page2 Agenda ltem #4



17.287.040 Standards for small scale wind energy system.

A small scale wind energy system shall be a conditional use, pursuant to all standards and criteria of CBMC
Chapter 17.355, in all zoning districts. A wind facility is subject to the following requirements to be evaluated in
the Conditional Use process to determine compliance. The Conditional Use permit may impose conditions of
approval stricter than these standards or addressing matters not covered in these standards in order to
mitigate negative impacts of the proposed facility.

(1) All wind energy systems must be installed according to the manufacturers’ specifications.

(2) The location, construction and operation of wind facilities shall be consistent with all applicable local
state and federal requirements including, but not limited to, all applicable safety, construction, environmental,
electrical, communications and aviation requirements. A wind facility that connects to the electric utility shall
comply with all standards of the Oregon Public Utility Commission and other regulatory agencies.

(3) Adverse impact on views. Wind facilities shall be installed so as to minimize adverse impacts on the
view from any public park or open space, aquatic and shoreland areas of the Coos Bay Estuary Management
Plan, natural scenic vista, historic property, scenic and view corridors, or residential area. In determining the
potential adverse impacts of the proposed facility, the following points shall be considered:

(a)The extent to which the proposed wind facility is visible from the viewpoint(s) of the impacted
resource or vicinity (i.e. visual size of the facility from the viewpoint, other features in line of sight with the
facility from the viewpoint, etc.);

(b) The type, number, height, and proximity of existing structures and features, and background features
within the same line of sight as the proposed facility;

(c) The amount of vegetative screening;

(d) The distance of the proposed facility from the impacted resource or vicinity; and,

(e) The availability of reasonable alternatives that would allow the facility to function consistently with its
purpose at an alternative site.

(4) Height. In addition to the maximum structure height limitations of the underlying zone, a wind facility

shall comply with the following height requirements, unless a variance is obtained:

(a) No height variance shall be granted for a facility located on a single-family dwelling or duplex or within
a residential zone;

(b) If there is not a height limit in the underlying zone, the maximum height of a facility shall be 70 feet;
and,

(c) Building/roof or other structure-mounted wind facilities shall not project more than fifteen (15)
additional feet above the highest structural point on the building or structure.

(5) Setbacks. In addition to the required setback area of the underlying zone, all wind facilities, except
building/roof or other structure-mounted wind facilities, shall comply with the following, unless a variance is
obtained.

(@) The facility shall be set back from the nearest property line a distance not less than the total height of
the facility;

(b) The facility shall be set back from the nearest public right-of-way a distance not less than its total
height, determined at the nearest boundary of the right-of-way;

(c) The facility shall be set back from the nearest above-ground public utility line/facility (e.g. sewer pump
station) a distance not less than the total height, determined from the existing utility line/facility; and,

(d) All wind facility equipment and/or enclosures shall be set back from property lines according to the
requirements of the underlying zone.

Page 3 Agenda ltem #4



(6) Safety and security.

(a) Wind facilities shall have an automatic braking, governing or feathering system to prevent
uncontrolled rotation, over-speeding and excessive pressure on the tower structure, rotor blades, and turbine
components;

(b) Mechanical brakes shall be operated in a fail-safe mode. Stall regulation shall not be considered a
sufficient braking system for over speed protection;

(c) Fencing, or other appropriate measures, may be required to prevent unauthorized access to the wind
facility and any equipment on the ground;

(d) To prevent unauthorized climbing:

() Climbing foot rungs will not be placed on the lower 10-12 feet of a freestanding tower; and,
(i) For lattice or guyed towers, sheets of metal or wood will be fastened to the lower part of the tower
to cover all hand and footholds.

(e) Signs warning of the electrical and other hazards associated with the wind facility shall be posted at
the base of each tower and at reasonable intervals on fences or barriers;

() Horizontal axis wind facility. Except for a roof-mounted facility, the lowest extension of the rotor of a
horizontal axis wind facility shall be at least 25 feet from the ground; and, for a microwind energy
system, the lowest extension of the rotor shall be a minimum of 15 feet from the ground.

(9) Vertical axis wind facility. Except for a roof~-mounted facility, a fence or other barrier shall be erected
around a vertical axis wind facility whose rotors are less than 15 feet from the ground;

(h) Electrical Wires. For tower/pole mount facilities, all electrical wires associated with a wind facility,
other than wires necessary to connect the wind generator to the tower wiring, the tower wiring to the
disconnect junction box, and the grounding wires, shall be located underground; electrical wiring for roof
installations shall be enclosed in conduit and secured per electrical code.

(i) Lighting. A wind tower and generator shall not be artificially lighted unless the Federal Aviation
Administration requires such lighting. Any on-site lighting will be shielded so as to not shine directly beyond
the property lines; and,

() Seismic Safety. All wind facilities shall comply with the requirements of the applicable seismic zone of
the Uniform Building Code or with the seismic design recommendation in an approved geotechnical report on
the project.

(7) Noise. The applicant shall provide documentation that the following noise level standards will be met,
unless a variance is obtained. The City may hire an independent consultant to review the calculations at the
applicant's expense. The installation of facilities with sufficient documented noise specifications do not
require independent verification.

(a) The proposed noise level shall not exceed 5 dBA above the existing ambient noise level as measured
at the closest neighboring property line of a noise sensitive property. It is intended that the maximum noise
level would be limited by b and c, below, in addition to a maximum of 5 dBA above the existing level. It is not
intended that this 5dBA increase be for more than the maximums of the rest of this section;

(b) Wind facilities shall meet regulation, policies and procedures set forth in OAR 340-035-0035 (Noise
Control Regulations for Industry and Commerce) Section (1)(b)(iii) for noise levels generated or caused by a
wind energy facility; and,

(c) Noise levels shall not exceed 50 dBA, as measured at the closest residential neighboring property
line, or 60 dBA, as measured at the closest non-residential property line. (zone or use?)

(d) Upon receipt by the city of a complaint regarding noise from an existing wind facility project, the
project owner shall be required, at the owner's expense, to have prepared, by an independent acoustical
consultant, approved by the Public Works and Development Department, an acoustical study that shall
demonstrate compliance with the above noise standard on the basis of equivalent sound pressure levels; that

Page4 Agenda ltem #4



is, the steady sound level that, over a 10-minute measurement period, would produce the same energy
equivalence as the fluctuating sound level actually occurring.

In the event the noise levels resulting from the wind facility exceed the criteria listed above, a waiver to said
levels may be approved provided a permanent noise impact easement is recorded with the County. The
easement must advise all subsequent owners that noise levels in excess of those otherwise permitted by the
code may exist on or at the property and that consent is granted to all noise levels to exceed the maximum
limits otherwise allowed. If an easement is not recorded the wind facility must be removed.

(8) Appearance, color, finish, and lighting:

(a) The wind generator and tower shall remain painted or finished the color or finish that was originally
applied by the manufacturer; or,

(b) An alternative color scheme may be approved in the conditional use permit process. A finish must be
provided for the wind energy system that reduces the visibility of the facility, including the rotors. In most
circumstances this condition may be satisfied by painting the support structure and rotors with flat, light haze
gray paint. If the support structure is unpainted it must be of a single color throughout its height.

(c) If more than one wind generator and tower is located on the same property, they shall have uniform
design, color, and height if practical.

(e) The owner must maintain the finish, painted or unpainted, so that no discoloration is allowed to occur.

(9) Landscaping and screening. Landscaping and screening is intended to reduce the visual impact at
ground level of supporting structures and ground equipment, and to maintain a secure area not accessible to
children.

(a) Any proposed or required fenced area is to be surrounded, where feasible by a landscaped strip of
sufficient width and height to create a visual screen. Required landscaping shall be located outside of the
fenced area;

(b) A majority of the planted vegetation shall be of the evergreen variety;

(c) The location of the landscape buffer may be at any distance from the facility to create a visual buffer.
The landscaping does not need to be directly adjacent to the facility; and,

(d) Exception. The requirement for landscape and/or screening may be waived by the Public Works
Director, or their designee, if it is determined that the facility does not require screening due to its location or
other unique factor.

(10) Signs. All signs, other than the manufacturer's or installer's identification, appropriate warning signs, or
owner identification on a wind generator, tower, building, or other structure associated with a wind facility
visible from any public road, shall be prohibited.

(11) A wind facility must not cause any interference with normal radio or television reception in the
surrounding area, or with any public safety agency or organization, (including but not limited to police, fire,
ambulance, Port of Coos Bay, Federal Aviation Administration, and Coast Guard) radio transmissions, or with
any microwave communications link. The owner shall bear the costs of immediately eliminating any such
interference, or must immediately shut down the system or parts of the system causing the interference.

(12) Certification.

(a) It must be certified in writing by a structural engineer registered in Oregon that the tower with the
rotor and rotor-related equipment, conform with good engineering practices and with the appropriate provisions
of the Uniform Building Code that have been adopted by the City. In addition, an engineered foundation must
also be certified to be adequate to support the tower, rotor and rotor-related equipment; a soils study may be
required; and,

(b) The electrical connections to the grid must be approved in the manner required by Oregon
electrical codes which may or may not require independent certification of electrical systems.

Page 5 Agenda ltem #4



(13) Wildlife Resources: Copies of all wildlife studies applicable to the project site must be provided
to the City at the time of application.

(14) The provisions of this Chapter shall not apply to a wind measurement device that is less than 50 feet in
height if it is for temporary use not to exceed 12 months. The device and tower/associated equipment must be
removed at the end of the one year, unless an extension is granted by the Director. No conditional use
approval or height variance is required for the temporary use. However, a building permit is required along
with a bond or other security to insure the temporary use is removed at the end of the one year period.

(15) A building permit is required for each wind facility. A building permit will not be issued until all land use
approvals have been obtained; any associated conditions have been met; and all other applicable local, State
and Federal approvals have been secured.

17.287.50 Conditional use application.

(1) A pre-application conference with the Public Works and Development Department is required with
potential applicants before a land use application is submitted. Such advance communication helps the
Department understand the scope of the project and provides an opportunity to answer the applicant's
questions about standards and application requirements.

(2) Site Control: At the time of application for a permit, the applicant shall submit documentation of actual or
prospective control of the project site sufficient to allow for installation and use of the proposed facility.
Documentation shall include proof of control over setback areas and access roads if required. Control shall
mean the legal authority to prevent the use or construction of any structure for human habitation within the
setback areas.

(3) Only after the pre-application conference has taken place, an applicant may submit a Conditional Use
application on the form prescribed by the Department. A stand-alone wind facility less than 20 feet tall, and not
located on a primary elevation may be reviewed as an Administrative Conditional Use. All applications shall be
accompanied by the following:

(a) A complete description of the proposed wind facility system including use of concealment technology,
height, location, siting, color, and design, and description of services the applicant intends to provide from the
facility. Manufacturer specification sheets on the equipment shall be provided;

(b) An accurate and scaled site plan, scaled elevation views, and other supporting drawings illustrating

the location and dimensions of the proposed wind facility, including but not limited to:
(i) Support structure(s);

(i) Alternative support structure(s);

(iiiy Equipment enclosures; and,

(iv) Any and all other devices and attachments;

(c) The location, grades and dimensions of all temporary and permanent on-site driveways, roads, and
access roads from the nearest city street;

(d) Existing topography with contours that vary depending on the size and slope of the site;

(e) Water bodies, waterways, wetlands, and drainage channels in the vicinity;

() The location of and distance to residences and noise sensitive properties that could be affected by
noise generated by the proposed project. The direction and distance to the airport, airstrips or helicopter pads
and their specific location if within one quarter mile;

(g) Copies of all wildlife studies, prepared for this or other purposes, such as by the Oregon Department

of Fish & Wildlife, that include study of the site or an area within one quarter mile of the site.

(h) A report on the results of a wind measurement device on the site for a period of one year for the

following:

(i) Wind facilities that would exceed the allowable height of the zone; or

(ii) Wind facilities for use on other than a single-family or duplex dwelling; or
(iii)Projects that involve more than one wind facility on the site.

bage 6 Agenda ltem #4



(i) A geotechnical report if required by the Building Official in order to evaluate soil and slope suitability
for the proposed installation relative to applicable Building Codes.

() Permits, approvals or other actions required by other government agencies or from public or privately-
owned utilities must be provided to the City with the application including written authorization from the utility
for the proposed interconnection,; this includes evidence demonstrating a request has been filed with the
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and the Oregon Department of Aviation (ODA) to review the application,
or evidence demonstrating that the applicant has complied with all FAA and ODA requirements.

(k) An application for a wind facility proposed to be located within two miles of any microwave
communications tower or link shall be accompanied by a copy of a written notification of the proposed
conditional use to the operator of the microwave facility. A map must be provided with the application showing
the tower or link sites.

() An explanation of all construction and other development associated with the proposed energy
project and how that construction and development complies with the approval standards in Section
17.287.040.

(m) A site preparation and installation schedule and timeline for restoring areas temporarily disturbed
during construction.

(n) Location of proposed and existing electrical lines and facilities.

(o) A description of actions the applicant will take to restore the site to a useful, non-hazardous condition

upon project termination as set forth in Section 17.287.090(2)(c)(i.-v.).

(p) An application for a free-standing wind facility proposed to be located within a 100-year floodplain, as
such flood hazard areas are shown on FEMA maps, shall be accompanied by a detailed report which shall
address the potential for water erosion and scour, as well as sedimentation and flooding. Said report shall
propose mitigation measures for such impacts to the extent that such impacts are caused by the proposed
wind facility. The requirements of Chapter 17.195, Flood Damage Prevention, must also be satisfied.

(9) Inlieu of the list of owners within 250 feet required for a conditional use, a certified list of names
and addresses of all owners of property around the exterior boundaries of the subject property, according to
the latest adopted County tax roles, along with assessor maps showing all lots and parcels of land within that
area, must be provided as follows:

(i) 500 feet around the subject property for wind facilities less than 35 feet in height; and,
(ii) 800 feet around the subject property for wind facilities greater than 35 feet in height.

(r) Visual impact analysis and demonstrations including mock-ups and/or photo simulations from at least
three directional perspectives showing the relationship between nearby development and the proposed system
are required.

(s) The applicant shall furnish a performance bond to assure that the approval criteria and conditions
imposed are completed in accordance with the plan and specifications as approved, and that the facility would
be removed if the project is not completed as approved. The bond shall be released only after final inspection,
all conditions have been met and the facility is operational.

17.287.60 Micro Wind Energy Facility.

(1) A micro wind energy facility may be approved as an outright use if it complies with the following criteria:

(a) Written authorization is provided from the utility for the proposed interconnection,

(b) Located on any structure that generates power for that structure;

(c) Extends not more than 15 feet above the height of the building and is within the allowable height of
the zone;

(d) Is mounted on the roof and/or on a monopole attached to the side of the building;

(e) Not located on a primary elevation;

(f) Provides supporting documentation that the unit would not create a flicker effect on adjacent
properties; and,

(9) Noise standards as set forth in Section 17.287.040(9).

Page? Agenda ltem #4



(2) A vertical axis blade wind facility may be approved as an outright use if it complies with the following
criteria:
(a) Written authorization is provided from the utility for the proposed interconnection:
(b) Located on a building or structure that produces power for that or an adjacent
structure;
(c) Not located on a primary elevation;
(d) Extends not more than 15 feet above the height of the building and is within the allowable height of
the zone; and,
(e) Noise standards as set forth in Section 17.287.040(9).

(3) Engineering report. At the time of building permit application, the property owner must submit a report
prepared by an Oregon licensed professional engineer attesting to the fact that the structure to which the
system will be mounted/attached is sufficiently strong to support the system and to withstand the wind,
vibratory, and other loads to which it would be subjected as a result of the system on it. The report is subject to
approval by the Building Codes Official.

17.287.070 Monitoring and Maintenance.

(1) Compliance Testing. All wind facilities shall comply with all Federal, State, and local regulations. The
City of Coos Bay, at any time, may require evidence of testing of a facility to determine if the facility is in
compliance with all applicable Federal, State, and local regulations. Such measurements shall be signed and
certified by an engineer registered in Oregon, stating that measurements or calculations are accurate and meet
the standards of this Code.

In the case of testing for noise measurements, such testing shall be completed and/or certified by an
acoustical engineer.

All testing shall be at the cost of the wind facility owner(s). Failure to perform such testing shall be adequate
basis for revocation of the permit.

(2) Maintenance. The applicant, co-applicant, and/or property owner shall maintain the wind facility. Such
maintenance shall include, but shall not be limited to, painting/coating, maintaining structural integrity,
landscaping and other conditions of approval. In the event the facility is not maintained in accordance with
permit conditions or the standards of this Chapter, the City may seek and obtain a court order directing such
maintenance and impose a lien upon the real property upon which the structure(s) are situated in an amount
equal to the cost of maintenance, including any administrative costs.

17.287.080 Revocation.

The permit for any facility not in compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local regulations shall be
revoked upon failure to bring the facility into compliance within thirty (30) days after written notice. The permit
may be suspended or revoked for non-compliance.

17.287.090 Abandonment.

(1) City issued Notice of Abandonment. A wind energy system that is out-of-service for a continuous
12-month period will be deemed to have been abandoned. The Public Works and Development Director, or
their designee, shall issue a Notice of Abandonment to the owner of the wind facility. The owner shall have 30
days to respond. The Notice of Abandonment may be withdrawn if the owner provides information that
demonstrates the wind energy system has not been abandoned.

(2) Any wind facility that has reached the end of its useful life or has been abandoned shall have the wind
generator removed at the sole expense of the owner. When the wind facility is scheduled to be abandoned or
discontinued, the operator of the wind facility shall notify the Public Works and Development Director by
Certified United State Postal Service mail of the proposed date of abandonment or discontinuation of

bage8 Agenda ltem #4



operations. Such notice shall be given no less than thirty (30) days prior to abandonment or discontinuation of
operations.

(3) Removal of abandoned facility:
(a) The owner/operator shall physically remove the wind facility no more than 90 days from the date
of abandonment or discontinuation of use. At the time of removal, the wind facility site shall be restored to the
state it was in before the facility was constructed or converted to any other legally authorized use.
(b) If the applicant ceases operation of the energy project, or begins, but does not complete
construction of the project, the applicant shall restore the site according to the plan submitted and approved by
the Public Works Development Director during the conditional use process. The applicant shall submit a plan,
which includes a schedule for completion of site restoration work that ensures that the site will be restored to a
useful, non-hazardous condition, including but not limited to the following:
i. Removal of aboveground and underground equipment, structures, security barriers and
foundations, including the entirety of depth of the foundation located below ground surface, is required.
ii. Restoration of the surface grade and soil after removal of aboveground structures
and equipment;
iii.Removal of graveled areas and access roads; and,
iv. Revegetation of restored soil areas.
(c) If the structure, equipment and equipment enclosure are not removed as indicated in this Chapter, the
City may remove the facility and/or seek and obtain a court order directing such removal and impose a lien
upon the real property upon which the structure(s) is situated in an amount equal to the cost of removal,
including any administrative costs.

17.287.100 Technical Support.

The Public Works and Development Director, or their designee, may employ, on behalf of the City, an
independent technical expert to review any technical materials submitted including, but not limited to, those
required under this Section and in those cases where a technical demonstration of unavoidable need or
unavailability of alternatives is required.

The costs associated with the independent technical review shall be at the expense of the wind facility
owners.

17.287.110 Use of Permit.

(1) Any wind facility Conditional Use Permit that is granted shall be implemented, that is, the facility shall be
operational, within 2 years from the effective date thereof, or within such additional time as may be set in the
conditions of approval, which shall not exceed a total of 5 years; otherwise, the permit shall be null and void.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a permit is required to be used within less than 5 years, the permitee may,
prior to its expiration, request an extension of time in which to use the permit.

An extension of time may be granted by the Commission upon a determination that valid reason exists for
permitee not using the permit within the required period of time. If an extension is granted, the total time
allowed for use of the permit shall not exceed a period of 5 years, calculated from the effective date of the
issuance of the permit. The term "use" shall mean the beginning of substantial construction of the use that is
authorized, which construction must thereafter be pursued diligently to completion.

(2) Replacement. An individual wind facility which has been installed pursuant to a Conditional Use permit
may be replaced with approval of the Public Works and Development Director provided the replacement of the
wind facility meets the standards of this Chapter and the original conditional use permit. Such determination
shall be made by the Director. Any significant changes, including but not limited to, the visual impact, physical
impact, or operational impact of the wind facility will require a new conditional use permit.

Page 9 Agenda Item #4



17.287.120 Variance Criteria

In addition to the variance criteria of Section 17.350, a variance for a small scale wind energy facility shall
meet the following criteria:
(1) Variance from standards relating to height.
(a) The proposed structure and facility shall use concealment technology such as, but not limited to,
incorporation into existing structural or natural features and use of landscaped buffers;
(b) It is demonstrated that a greater height is required to provide the necessary service; and,
(c) The proposed structure and facility will not create an adverse impact on scenic, natural, historic, or
cultural resources or vicinities.

(2) Variance from standards relating to setbacks.

(a) It shall be demonstrated that the location of the proposed facility will take advantage of an existing
natural or artificial features to conceal the facility or minimize its visual impacts;

(b) The setback reduction shall not result in the location of a facility that would encroach less than the
height of the structure into areas currently occupied by structures or areas generally occupied by people;

(c¢) A variance from distance to a right-of-way shall only be granted for rights of way that are not likely to
be developed as indicated by the City; and

(d) A variance from distance to a property line other than a right of way shall require written permission
from the affected landowner(s) which includes appropriate provisions to hold the City harmless in the event of
any claim being filed related to the wind facilities operation or any failure. The City Attorney will approve the
language of the hold-harmless clause. A copy of the recorded document shall be submitted to the Public
Works and Development Director prior to issuance of a building permit. The document shall contain a
requirement for City approval prior to any changes in the document.

(3) Variance from standards relating to noise.

Appropriate recorded easements/agreements shall be secured from affected property owners for all noise
variances. A copy of the recorded document shall be submitted to the Public Works and Development Director
prior to issuance of a building permit. The easement/agreement shall contain a requirement for City approval
for any changes to the document.

(a) Variances shall be reviewed based on site conditions that would reduce the impact of the noise level

increase on specific properties such as, but not limited to the following:

(i) Distance of noise sensitive uses to property line that would result in the noise level at the use
location being with the allowable dBA,; or,
(Since the noise readings are done at the property line and some buildings or uses are located at large
distances from the property line it would be reasonable to allow a variance from the code based on the actual
location of the use within the property.)

(i) Sound reduction buffers between the wind facility and the use exist or would be constructed.

An increase in noise level of 5dBA or less may be granted by the Public Works and
and Development Director, or their designee; and an increase in noise level of greater than 5 dBA shall be
reviewed by the Planning Commission.

i
8/31/12

Page 10 Agenda ltem #4



CITY OF COOS BAY

Agenda Staff Report
MEETING DATE AGENDA ITEM NUMBER
November 6, 2012
TO: Mayor Shoji and City Councilors
FROM: Jim Hossley, Director of Public Works and Development Department %?gﬂ
Laura Barron, Planning Administrator

ISSUE PLANNING DIVISION PRIORITIES

At this time the Planning Division of the Public Works and Development Department has three
projects assigned to them that the Council would like to see completed in the near future, These
projects are 1) an ordinance to regulate wind energy conversion systems in the city, 2) the revision
of design standards for the Empire design area on Newmark Avenue; and, 3) vending in the
downtown area. In addition, the newly proposed FEMA floodplain maps for the city are required to
be adopted next year, Atthe same time we will likely propose changes to Chapter 17.195, Flood
Damage Prevention, of the Coos Bay Municipal Code.

DISCUSSION

The Planning Division is one of four Divisions in the Public Works and Development Department.
The Divisions are: Operations (streets, parks), Engineering, Building Codes and Planning.

We have two (2) full-time people in the Planning Division. Our tasks involve, but are not limited to,
the following:

+ All building code development permit applications (residential and commercial) are
processed through our Division as well as the other Divisions in the Department,
Applications may require an extensive review and additional communication with the
applicant; and, applications may require staff to do periodic inspections.

« Applications for land use reviews (conditional use, variance, vacation, zone change,
estuarine uses, site plan review, etc) are scheduled by the Division before the
Planning Commission. Notice (written, published and posted) and a staff report (the
creation of findings and conclusions), based on specific review criteria for the
submitted application type, are required according to time limits set forth by state law
and the Code

« In-house citizen inguiries, phone calls and e-mails requesting Code requirements for
a specific project occur on a daily basis, this may require input from the Engineering
and/or Building Codes Divisions.

GADCSWLANNINGIFACT SHECTSQOIDOCSET PRIORITIES. DOC
1

Agenda item #5



¢ Business Licenses for a new or relocated business, or those in conjunction with a
Home Occupation, are reviewed by the Division for compliance with the Code. At this
time we are also learning a new computer program for tracking business licenses.

o Potential developers, depending on the complexity of a proposed project, often
require multiple face-to-face meetings and research by staff in order to provide the
developer with the best possible information available to us. The Engineering and/or
Building Codes Divisions, and sometimes the Fire Department, are consulted and
may take part in the meetings.

Lengthy discussions may be necessary to provide the developer with insight as to
the challenges and opportunities, as we see them, the review process for the
development, and other agencies that may be involved. Actual development may or
may not occur.

¢ The Planning Division is backup for the Building Codes/Planning Specialists which
are 1.5 full-time people. These are the people who are the face of the Department
and who initiate the review process as plans and applications are received for
construction/mechanical/excavation/right of way use/ land use/business license, etc.
This can bring the Planning Division's daily tasks to a halt, but is necessary in order
to provide uninterrupted service to the public.

¢ Follow-up to approved land use permits with conditions or land use violations require
tracking and often additional written and verbal communication. Compliance for land
use violations often continue for months.
REQUEST
As you can see from the list above, we are extremely busy with our day-to-day tasks. Our first
priority is to our citizens. The projects listed above are also for the long-term benefit of our
community, but it has become very difficult to bring them to completion. Therefore, staff is asking for
direction as to how we should prioritize these projects.
BUDGET
No budgetary impact to tonight's actions.
RECOMMENDATION

Staff is asking for direction from the City Council as to the priorities for the Planning Division.

ATTACHMENTS

None.

Factsheet\2012\ccsetpriorities

Agenda ltem #5



CITY OF COOS BAY CITY COUNCIL
Agenda Staff Report

MEETING DATE AGENDA ITEM NUMBER
November 6, 2012

TO: Mayor Shoji and City Councilors
FROM: Jennifer Wirsing, Engineering Service Coordinator
Through: Rodger Craddock, City Manager @€€

Jim Hossley, Public Works and Development Director

ISSUE Consideration of Approval to Award the Contract for Preparation of the
Predesign Report for Wastewater Treatment Plant 2 (WWTP 2) to the
design team of SHN Consulting Engineers, Inc. and CH2M HILL
Engineers, Inc.

BACKGROUND

WWTP 2 is located in the Empire area and has been in service since 1973. The plant
was upgraded in 1990 to meet National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) permit requirements. However due to the age of the plant, a Mutual
Agreement and Order (MAQ) with Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ),
and upcoming NPDES permit requirements the plant must be upgraded.

The City of Coos Bay contracted West Yost Associates to prepare a Facility Plan (FP)
for the WWTP2. The FP was approved in 2007. After approval of the FP the City
contracted with Civil West Engineering Services to perform predesign for WWTP 2.
During the preliminary predesign efforts several options were explored that included
moving the plant to the North Spit, pumping the waste to WWTP 1, and expanding the
current WWTP 2 site into property located east of South Empire Boulevard. However,
DEQ did not officially review any of these alternatives since they were not in the original
FP. Based on several constraints, it has been determined that the alternative that
consists of expanding the current site to include the property east of South Empire
Boulevard is the most viable course of action.

Because of the changes and deviations from the original FP, DEQ requested that the
City prepare a Facility Plan Amendment (FPA) prior to proceeding forward on predesign.
in 2011, the City contracted with Civil West Engineering Services to prepare the FPA.
Within this FPA, the City investigated several alternatives related to influent facilities,
treatment, and disinfection. Additionally a value analysis (VA) of the FPA was
performed. The City contracted with CH2M HILL to lead the VA. The VA team included
CH2M HILL staff, City Staff, Charleston Sanitation District representatives, and a DEQ
representative.

After the VA the FPA was submitted to DEQ on June 1, 2012, Because of the close
coordination that the City performed with DEQ throughout this process, the city received

Agenda ltem #6



minor plan review comments. The FPA is currently being updated to incorporate DEQ’s
comments and it is anticipated to be resubmitted the week of Nov 6, 2012.

As stated above, the City is mandated to upgrade the Plant 2. The City entered into an
MAO with DEQ that includes milestone and tasks that the City must complete in order to
remain in compliance. The MAO includes a number of requirements that must be
completed by a certain deadline. The next critical deadline in the MAO schedule is the
completion of a predesign report for WWTP2. As such it is the City’s intent that upon
approval of the FPA, efforts begin immediately for the preparation of the WWTP2
Predesign Report

ADVANTAGES

Earlier this year, the City obtained a loan and grant from Oregon Infrastructure Finance
Authority (IFA) for $4,853,213. The loan and grant was obtained to complete a portion
of the projects from our take down list for sanitary sewer and storm drain improvements.
The goal of this loan and grant is to finish 16 projects from that list that the City is
mandated by DEQ to complete. If Council approves the award of this contract, the City
can begin efforts for predesign, utilize the IFA loan, and be in compliance with the MAO.

DISADVANTAGES
Staff sees no disadvantages.

BUDGET

At this time, City Staff is negotiating with SHN & CH2M HILL. It is anticipated that by
November 6, 2012 City Staff will have negotiations finalized along with a “not to exceed”
fee.

RECOMMENDATION

If it pleases the Council, approve the award of the contract for preparation of the
Predesign Report for Wastewater Treatment Plant 2 to the design team of SHN and
CH2M HILL.

Agenda ltem #6




CITY OF COOS BAY CITY COUNCIL

Agenda Staff Report
MEETING DATE AGENDA ITEM NUMBER
November 6 2012
TEX: Mayor Shoji and City Councilors
FROM: Gary McCullough, Chief of Police

Through: Rodger Craddock, City Managergeé

ISSUE: Presentation on Coos Bay Municipal Code 6.05 “Animal
Control and Permits”

BACKGROUND:

Through a power point presentation, Police Department staff will present
information on the various sections of Coos Bay Municipal Code 6.50
“Animal Control and Permits”. How enforcement of the various sections of
this Municipal Code affect the quality of life for all citizens living in, working
in, and visiting the City of Coos Bay.

ADVANTAGES:

An informed Council is better prepared to answer and address citizen
inquiries in regard to the Cities Municipal Codes and how staff interrupts and
enforces those codes.

DISADVANTAGES:

N/A

BUDGET:

N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

No action is necessary at this time.

Agenda ltem #7



paurejqo aq jsnur
ywrad Terdads e yorym I0J S[ewruyy

050°50"9 A0 IV IDINAY
ALID NO NOILVENSSTHd
TDONNOD ALIDS




Agenda ltem #7

MO ) =
I9Ie9qin, = ewre| =
AINO] = dosysgs

JIqqey = An[uoqs
1205) = SN[ =
Sigs  AuoJ/osSIO[]=

MD0ISOAIT] =
S|lewliuy JO SoL10bai1e)




Agenda ltem #7

sIeaq

SISeq Je[naal e >ied
uo 3ur[es Jo asodind S99¢
3} 10J [eWIUR AUy (,7 A0 BUR]

suelqrydue pue ynpe ‘3ae) a[dar

‘somder ‘sTeururetn 10 oydan SNOUOSIO :
IAIJEU-UOU DI 910400 ‘JIOM

SOTRWILL ] ~ (onsswop
URWNE-UON ey} Iou u,ov u@U

sfewIIuy pJt >>\u5oxm

S|jewliuy JO sallobale)




Agenda ltem #7

[T15 99247 6661
'S9UDINY pue sa3ed ‘suad UM ‘DSIMINIO

10 A[[eDIauWWod paurejurels pue paaq [eurue
3urreaq-Iny Aue pue [MO0J Pajedsauiop ‘QUIMS
‘sye03 “daays ‘seoede ‘seuref] ‘op33ed ‘sassepel
S3[NUI ‘S3SI0Y meuSﬁmQ sonel ST %
SO0ISIAT] “ [onesoIqng)

mMO ur @mms m< ol
3[201SoAI] JO HOBIII(] _.E

S91N1e1S PISIADY UODOIEN




‘JUSWIUOIIAUD AJID
[eo1d A} e ur paurejurewr ag USRI ojqueduiod
G 0] € U} 210W OU Jey) PIPUSLIUIODL
ST 3] "Ay3jesy urewal o} diysuorueduod
P99U pue SJewIue DO 918 SUDIYD)
"paiq 12d 1995 bs /] -pIeA aspioxy / mwsmm.

Iad wnuwrrurur aveds 100 2o ‘bs o1 1o

HQEBE Hom EB -
1od wnuwrurur aoeds 100[j Jo J99F @m

SUDIYD ueg.an \_ok_ hkir
2deds d|ge|ieAy po u:@:\:\:ouum




Agenda ltem #7

‘3UIZeI3 I9A0 JUAId
0} Tewtrue J1ad a1de T 03 74 — doayg pue sjeos)
-Bunoor /Sunueor
MmoJTe 03 aeds jo Ajuspd o3 ssedoe
uonppe ur fewiue 1od 3995 -bs g1 - UIMS |

ewrue Surzeid yoes
10} S9I0. 7 JO WINWIUIIA - BUIe]] Mo \mmm.ﬁom LT

S|ewiuy pa1edi1sauoc _wm_m.._ \_Q
9dedg d|ge|ieAy papusLl EoUuN_




"UONLDIJLIDA PII] PUE SZIS [BUUIUE

Se [[oM SY ‘Jusulodeueul pue SISUILjuod 9jsem

‘SIOPO ‘S3UIp[Ing ‘ss[qess ‘suad “Ajradoird fje Joru

}SISU0D suondadsuy ‘suordadsul [enuue SIeoO

JUSUWISDIOFUS SIPOD) JO 3SOD S} SISAGD 99y] =

00°0S$
994 AlJed A paJinbay >.:u




Agenda Item #7




Agenda ltem #7

¥ (5

7 &m’;@ﬁmﬁwﬂ, -.. rf. s

.¥~ *




Agenda ltem #7

91N19N.J1S A0 10 J2puUn 8
|[ouuny ajgissod pjnod sioiepald / m:o_z:uc_o_u,._@...
unJ pue dnod uadPIY a3enbapeu e Lo o|cueiEs

S )
.M-Pr..vlw PE o




SPOOYIOqU3IaU SUTUEOL PUE S9INSO[US.

wio1j 3urdessa MD03S9AI] SUNLIIDUOD Sa3ndSI(]

003S9AI] SA s3od Sururaduod sayndsic]

s[ewITue Wolj Spunos pue SasIou I9A0 sayndsic] &

SIOPO PUR JUIWIDSLULU 93SEM IDA0 sayndsi(] o

sour] A31odoxd 140 sandsiq

JUDLUUOJIAUT |
UBQU( Ul PaSIBY S[elitys

00
.. e
W Q&w

AQ poshe) Sanssj _uoo:\_o.n_r_m_wz..

Agenda Item #7




sIseq jJure[duwod Uo JIOM J[IM JUSUWIDIOFUD 9POD
I9AIMOY PaIMO[[e J0U 3Je SUMPIYD) — TOZIY]

(3rurrod 1esA oM} 103
0S$) sToqUSeu wory 3995 0T 3dox st uad /dood

papraoid ‘suay 991y} 03 d) — Weysars).

aul| Ayredoxd % b

woxJ 30 1dey 9q 3snwx doop) ‘odeds srenbape
9AB ISNW SUNPIYD § 03 d ) — UOLIoALSq B

suo130adsur 10 $995 0N ‘34 ‘bS 000/ Ua43 SS9 S10]

AUe Uuo SuaydIyd oM} Udy) 2I0UL ON] — AUB][Y/ E

gt

SUOIIDIPSIIN .
19410 W04} S9P0D) |eLiLy

Agenda ltem #7




Agenda Item #7

"PUD AU JO SI9}S00Y]
MO[[e J0U Op Pa3deIu0d SUORIIPSLINL Jo AjrrolejA =
siseq jurejdwod
€ UO M }[eap I8 SUIDIYD I9AMOY
‘PoMO[[e PUR] Aue JO [MOJ ON] - UOUuegaT| &

(997 swn-auo ()F$) SUI[[PMP SULIOqUSIOU

WIOJ 399 () USY} I9SO[D Ol 8¢ Ukd pue sdeds =
JUSIDLHNS YILM J[Iq o] Jsnttk dood ~ we[es &

ponuiuod - suolIdIpsun{
1910 W01} S9P0D) |eLulLy/




Agenda Item #7

surergoxd

Ionau pue Aeds 3500 ou 10 MO] SUIprAoid
Aq uonyerndod jed Te1a] o} SUIL[ORUOD

UI }SISSE SUOI}eZIue3I0 }joid uou [edory

syed [exdj Jo

uoneindod ayj} [013U0D /33R[NSII OF J[NOIJJIP SI I ¥ |
o1j109ds auoAue 03 SUo[aq JOU Op A9y} asnedoq

suoAue SUo[eq J0U Op 2I0JRIaY} PUR PiMm
PRISPISUOD dIk Syed [eldf AJUNoD) SO0 UIJIAL &

S1e) |e19




N~
+=
€
[0]
=
©
©
[
()
(@]
<C

SYUIT |[euonew.i1o]u]




CITY OF COOS BAY CITY COUNCIL
Agenda Staff Report

MEETING DATE AGENDA ITEM NUMBER
November 6, 2012

TO: Mayor Shoji and City Councilors

FROM: Rodger Craddock, City Manager G@,L

1ISSUE Residency Reguirements for City Boards, Commissions, and Committees
BACKGRQOUND

The Council utilizes a number of City Boards, Commissions and Committees to either advise the
council and/or to assist in the governance and/or interpretations of city functions, programs, and
ordinances. The current list of City Boards, Commissions, and Committees include: (1) Budget
Committee; (2) Building & Fire Code Board of Appeals; (3) Design Review Committee; (4} Library
Board; (5) Parks Commission, (6) Planning Commission; and (7) Tree Board. Due to current
vacancies and/or expiring terms, there are a number of City Boards, Commissions, and Committee
openings:

» Three (3) openings on the Budget Committee

. One (1) opening on the Building & Fire Code Board of Appeals

o Three (3) openings on the Design Review Committee (One opening is based on the
current residency requirements and the fact that a long-time active Parks
Commissioner has recently move outside of the City.)

. Three {3) openings on the Parks Commission
a One (1) opening on the Tree Board

Over the last several years, the City has experienced some difficulty in attracting enough applicants
to fill all of the open positions. This has prompted some discussion among Council members
regarding adjusting the residency requirements for membership on the above listed committees.

In regards to the current City Commissions, Boards, and Committees {committees), staff reviewed
the individual authorizing document(s) which authorize and govern the respective committees and
residency requirements for committee members which is as follows:

City of Coos Bay
Boards, Commissions & Committees

Board, Commission

Board, Commission Board, Commission or Committee Membership

or Committee Name or Com.mlt.tee Qualifications Term
Authorization
Shall consist of the members of the governing body
Budget Committee ORS 294 905 of the council of governments and an equal number 3 Vears

of representatives of the services provided by the
council of governments.

Agenda ltem #8



City of Coos Bay

Boards, Commissions & Committees

Board, Commission

Board, Commission

Board, Commission or Committee Membership

or Committee Name ZL&%T;::::;: Qualifications Term
City of Coos Bay
Building & Fire Code Ordinance No. 239 Shall be qualified by experience and training to 3-Years
Board of Appeals Coos Bay Municipal deliberate on matters pertaining to building
Code 1)'5 05 198 construction. (No residency requirement listed)
Design Review O(r::iti):n:;g::lngg Seven member committee. Membership is not
Committ ' limited to residents of Coos Bay. If possible,
ee bership should include history, art, graphi 3-Years
Coos Bay Municipal membership should include history, art, graphics, or
Code 2.40.020 interior design, and architecture.
Libra C():l!(ti); noafn%golxsl oBas); Seven member board. Four members shall be city
Bo Y ' residents. Up to three appointees may reside
ard tside the City but within School District #g | 462
Coos Bay Municipal gu s:de the City but within School Distri
Code 2.25.020 oundaries.
City of Coos Bay Eight member commission. All members shall be
Parks Ordinance No. 56 city residents. Membership consists of a Councilor,
Commission a Planning Commissioner, a representative of a | 4-Years
Coos Bay Municipal | service club, a landscape design profession or
Code 2.30.020 business, design profession, and three citizens-at-
|arge.
City of Coos Bay
Ordinance No. 3 Seven member commission. Six members must
Planning Commission reside in the City for at least one year, and one | 4-Years
Coos Bay Municipal | member may reside outside city limits if person
Code 2.35.020 owns property within city limits.
O?A%ZLS:KZB:‘ g1 Seven member board. Membership consists of a
Tree ' representative of the City Council, Parks
Board L. Commission, and arboriculture, landscape | 4-Years
Cogz iag gﬁ; gf(')p al architecture or background & professional knowledge

of trees, and the rest are citizens-at-large. One
member may live outside City limits.

Agenda ltem #8



North Bend

Coquille
Port Orford

Brookings

Cottage Grove

St. Helens

Independence

North Plains
Nehalem
Toledo
Wood Village
Dundee

Tangent
Drain

Monmouth
Garibaldi

Junction City

| inquired with city managers / administrators from across Oregon to see what other cities find out
how other cities regulate committee memberships and learned the following:

Residency and registered voter required for Planning Commission. No
residency requirement for Parks and Recreation Committee. One non-
resident allowed on their seven member library board. Three non-
residents allowed on their seven member historic landmark committee.

No specific residency requirements for city committees.

Most committees allow for non-residents to be members of city
committees. Some require that non-city residents live within the city’s
urban growth boundary while others do not.

A limited number of non-residents who live with the city’s urban growth
boundary are allowed on city committees. A majority of committee
members are required to be registered voters living within the city.

Only their budget committee requires all members to be residents. Other
city committees residency requirements vary by committee (some allow
for some non-residents and others have no residency requirements).

Residency requirements vary by committee. Committees which allow for
non-residents members require a majority of committee members to be
residents.

Residency requirements vary by committee. Committees which allow for
non-residents members require a super majority of committee members
to be residents.

Non residents are allowed on committees, but a super majority of the
committee members must be residents.

Two non-residents allowed on their five-member Planning Commission.
Non-residents must live within the city’s urban growth boundary.

Two non-residents allowed on their seven-member Planning

Commission.

Residency required for Budget and Planning Commission. No residency
requirements for other city committees.

Residency required for Budget and Tourism Committees. Other
committees allow for non-residents that own property within the city.

Non-residents allowed if they own a business in town.

Residency requirements for Planning Commission. A mixture of
residents and non-residents are allowed on other city committees.
Committees which allow for non-residents members require a super
majority of committee members to be residents.

One member of each committee allowed to be an non-resident as long
as that member possesses relevant special expertise.

All committees require members to be residents of the city with the
exception of the Planning Commission and Tourism Committee.

Non-residents are allowed on the Planning Commission, some of which
are required to live within the city’s urban growth boundary while other

Agenda ltem #8




are not. No residency requirements for subcommittees such as their
Parks sub-committee.

Lebanon Non-residents are allowed to be members on city committees although a
majority of committee members must reside within the city.

ACTION REQUESTED:
Please provide staff direction on this matter. No action is required if the Council does not want to

change any City Boards, Commission or Committee membership requirements. Proposed changes
will require new ordinances to amend existing respective ordinances.

Agenda ltem #8



CITY OF COOS BAY CITY COUNCIL
Agenda Staff Report

MEETING DATE AGENDA ITEM NUMBER
November 6, 2012

TO: Mayor Shoji and City Councilors
FROM: Rodger Craddock, City Manager
ISSUE Proposed Changes to Council Rules
BACKGROUND

The current Council Rules (attachment 1) was adopted by Resolution 00-40 nearly twelve
years ago. On March 6, 2012, a Charter / Rule Making Advisory Committee (Mayor Shoji,
Councilors Kramer, and Muenchrath) was formed. The committee met four times over the
last four months; and during which times, they reviewed the Coos Bay City Charter, current
Coos Bay Council Rues, and various council rules from other jurisdictions. The Charter /
Rule Making Advisory Committee have recommended a number of changes to the current
Council Rules which were presented to the Council for your consideration on (attachment 2,
an annotated copy of the previously proposed Council Riles, i.e. the document contains the
previously proposed additions and deletions to the currently adopted Council Rules).

The proposed changes were presented to the Council at our last meeting (October 16,
2012). Due to some concerns over the language in Section 3. City Boards, Commissions,
Lay-Committees, and Council Committees, specifically section 3.1.2 Council Liaison Role,
the proposed changes to the adopted rules (as identified in attachment 2) were not adopted.
The Council asked for clarification on what City Commissions, Boards, and Committees that
council members served on in a liaison rule verses full member status.

As you know, Council members serve on a number of commissions, boards, and
committees, although only a few of those are actually City Commissions, Boards, and
Committees (Budget Committee, Egyptian Theatre Restoration Steering Committee, Library
Board, Parks Commission, Tree Board, Council Rules Advisory Committee, Council
Economic Development Committee, Building & Fire Code Board of Appeals, Design Review
Committee, & Planning Commission). The other commissions, boards, and committees can
be categorized as: (1) Intergovernmental Boards, Commission, and Committees (CB-NB
Visitors and Convention Bureau, Coos County Urban Renewal Agency — North Bay District,
Bay Area Enterprise Zone, Oregon Coastal Zone Management Association, Coos Bay /
North Bend Water Board Budget Committee, and Household Hazardous Waste Committee),
(2) Other Governmental Boards, Commissions, and Committees (Coquille Tribal
Community Trust Fund, Weed Advisory Board and Solid Waste Committee) and (3) Various
Community Boards, Commissions, and Committees (Alternative Youth Activates, Boys
and Girls Club, Community Coalition of Empire, Coos Art Museum Board, Egyptian Theatre
Preservation Association Board, Mingus Park Pool Board, Neighbor's In Need Coalition,
Coos Bay Downtown Association, Historic Maritime Museum Project Committee and the Bay
Area Chamber of Commerce).

Agenda Item #9



City Council — November 6, 2012
Proposed Changes to Council Rules

Page 2

In regards to the current City Commissions, Boards, and Committees (committees), staff
reviewed the individual authorizing document(s) which authorize and govern the respective
committees, the membership of the committee, and the role of the elected official on
committees. As is indicted below, in all cases wherein the elected official is appointed to a

City Boards, Commissions & Committees, they serve as full voting members.

City of Coos Bay
Boards, Commissions & Committees
.. Bo_art;l, Board, Commission Role of
Board, Commission or Commission or .
) . or Committee Elected
Committee Name Committee ) .
o Membership Official
Authorization
Budget Committee ORS 294.336 Voting
Member
Egyptlan_Theatre_ Created by URA These_ bo_ards, Voting
Restoration Steering commissions &
) 6/21/11 ; Member
Committee committees are
Ordinance 57, 218 | comprised Votin
Library Board and Library Board | of a combination of 9
- Member
of Trustees bylaws | elected officials and
. . appointed community Voting
Parks Commission Ordinance 56 members Member
Tree Board Ordinance 181 Voting
Member
City Council Charter / Rule | Created by the These committees Voting
Advisory Committee Council on 3/6/12 Members
: . . are made of selected :
City Council Economic Created by the council members Voting
Development Committee Council on 8/7/12 Members
Building & Fire Code Board Ordinance 251 These_ bqards, N/A
of Appeals commissions &
Design Review Committee Ordinances 310 & comm[ttees are N/A
439 comprised of
. - CBMC 2.35 appointed community
Planning Commission (Ordinance 3) members N/A

Based on the above findings and as the Section 3 of the proposed Council Rules reference

only City committees, staff has removed all references to Council Liaison Role.

Attached you will find the proposed amended proposed Council Rules (attachment 3) and
an annotated copy of the proposed Council Rules which contains the proposed additions
and deletions to the existing Council rules.

Agenda Item #9



City Council — November 6, 2012
Proposed Changes to Council Rules
Page 3

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS:

None

ADVANTAGES:

The proposed changes to the Council Rules more clearly defines the roles and authority of
the City’s elected and appointed officials as well as identifying the rules under which the
Council will conduct its business. Council Rules are used to carry out the wishes of the
majority of the Council.

DISADVANTAGES:

None

ACTION REQUESTED:

If it pleases the Council, adopt Resolution 12-23 (attachment 4) amending the Coos Bay
Council Rules.

Agenda Item #9



41

4.2

RULES OF THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF COOS BAY

Rules of the City Council as provided in the Coos Bay City Charter
Chapter IV, Section 4.1

COUNCIL MEETINGS

4.1.1 Regular Council Meetings. The Council shall hold two regular meetings, on the
first and third Tuesday of each month, except in those cases where the Council
finds it necessary to designate another date due to conflicts. Regular meetings
shall be convened in the City Council Chambers in the City Hall, and shall be called
to order at 7:00 p.m., and shall adjourn no later than 10:00 p.m.

4.1.2 Executive Sessions. Executive sessions may be called by the Presiding Officer,
any two members of the Council, or the City Manager. Only Council members, the
City Manager, and persons specifically invited by the Council or the City Manager
shall be allowed to attend executive sessions. Representatives of recognized news
media may attend executive sessions, other than those sessions during which the
Council conducts deliberations with persons designated to carry on labor
negotiations. No matter discussed during executive session may be disclosed by
any person present during such session.

4.1.3 Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the Presiding Officer, by
request of any three Councilors, or by the City Manager. Written notice of all
special meetings shall be given at least twenty-four hours in advance of the
scheduled meetings. Notice shall be given to each Councilor, the City Manager,
and the business office of each local newspaper and radio and television station
which has on file a written request for notice of special meetings, and may be
delivered by mail, electronic facsimile (FAX), or by personal delivery.

4.1.4 Public Attendance. All regular and special meetings shall be open to the public.
THE PRESIDING OFFICER

4.21 The Mayor. The Mayor shall preside at all regular and special meetings and
executive sessions of the Council and shall be the recognized head of the City for
all ceremonial purposes. The Mayor shall have all duties and privileges of any
Councilor, and shall not be denied any right or privilege by reason of his or her
position as presiding officer.

4.2.2 Council President. At the first meeting after each general biennial election, the
Council shall by ballot elect a president from its membership as required by the City
Charter. In the Mayor's absence from any Council meeting, the president shall act
as the presiding officer. Whenever the Mayor is unable, on account of absence,
illness or other cause, to perform the functions of the office, the President shall act
as Mayor Pro Tem.

Rules of the City Council - Page 1

Attachment #1 Agenda ltem #9



4.3

4.4

4.2.3 Temporary Chairman. In event of the absence of the Mayor and Council
President, the Deputy Recorder shall call the Council to order and call the roll of the
members; if a quorum is present, those Councilors present shall elect, by majority
vote, a Temporary Chairman for that meeting. Should the Mayor or Council
President arrive, the Temporary Chairman shall relinquish the chair immediately
upon the conclusion of the item of business then in consideration before the
Council.

EMPLOYEE DUTIES

4.3.1 City Manager. The City Manager shall attend all meetings of the Council,
unless excused by the Council. He or she shall make recommendations to the
Council and shall take part in all discussions concerning the welfare of the City.

4.3.2 Deputy Recorder. The Deputy Recorder shall be the Clerk for the Council and
shall keep minutes of meetings and shall perform such other duties at the meetings
as ordered by the Presiding Officer, the Council or the City Manager. The Deputy
Recorder shall furnish each Councilor with a copy of the minutes of each preceding
meeting in the agenda packet for the next meeting.

4.3.3 City Attorney. The City Attorney shall either in person or by deputy attend all
regular Council sessions and other meetings as directed by the city manager. Any
member of the Council may at any time call upon the City Attorney for an informal
oral opinion. Written opinions shall be authorized by a majority of the Council. The
City Attorney shall be the Parliamentarian, and shall advise the Presiding Officer on
any questions of order.

4.3.4 The Chief of Police. The Chief of Police or his designee shall attend each Council
meeting, and serve as the Sergeant-at-Arms. For the purpose of retaining order and
decorum at the Council meetings, the Sergeant-at-Arms shall carry out all orders or
instructions upon direction of the Presiding Officer or upon any other procedure
specifically provided by these rules.

4.3.5 Officers and Employees. Any member of the City Council may request that the
City Manager direct any employee to attend regular, special or executive meetings
to confer with the Council on matters relating to the City.

DECORUM AND ORDER

4.4.1 Presiding Officer. The Presiding Officer shall preserve decorum and decide all
points of order, subject to appeal to the Council.

4.4.2 Councilors. Councilors shall preserve order and decorum during Council
meetings, and shall not, by conversation or other action, delay or interrupt the
proceedings or refuse to obey the orders of the Presiding Officer or these Rules.
Councilors shall, when addressing staff or members of the public, confine
themselves to questions or issues then under discussion, shall not engage in
personal attacks, shall not impugn the motives of any speaker, and shall at all
times, while in session or otherwise, conduct themselves in a manner appropriate to
the dignity of their office.

Rules of the City Council - Page 2

Attachment #1 Agenda ltem #9



4.4.3 Staff and Public. Members of the administrative staff, employees of the City and
other persons attending Council meetings shall observe the same rules of
procedure, decorum and good conduct applicable to the members of the Council.

444 Removal of Any Person. Any person who makes personal, impertinent,
slanderous or unauthorized remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing
the Council or attending a Council meeting shall be removed from the room if the
Sergeant-at-Arms is so directed by the Presiding Officer. In case the Presiding
Officer should fail to act, any member of the Council may obtain the floor and move
to require enforcement of this rule; upon affirmative vote of the majority of the
Council present, Sergeant-at-Arms shall be authorized to remove the person or
persons, as if the Presiding Officer so directed. Such person or persons may be
barred from further audience before the Council and, in aggravated cases, an
appropriate complaint shall be issued by the Presiding Officer and the person or
persons prosecuted.

445 Censure.

(1) The Council has the inherent right to make and enforce its own rules and to
ensure compliance with those laws generally applicable to public bodies. Should
any Councilor act in any manner constituting a substantial violation of these rules or
other general laws, the Council, acting as a whole, may discipline that Councilor to
the extent provided by law, including public reprimand.

(2) To exercise such inherent right, the Council has the right to investigate the
actions of any member of the Council. Such investigation shall be referred to the
Committee of the Whole upon a finding that a reasonable ground exists that a
substantial violation has occurred.

(3) The Committee of the Whole shall investigate the actions in executive session,
and present a report to the Council in executive session. Neither the Committee of
the Whole nor the Council or any member thereof shall have the right to make
public any information obtained through such investigation.

(4) Any member accused of a substantial violation of Council rules or any other
general law shall have the right to present a defense to the allegations, including the
right to present rebuttal evidence, and to have representation by counsel. Upon
finding, by a moral certainty, that a substantial violation has occurred, and that such
violation affects the Councilor's ability to represent the interests of the City as a
whole, the Council may, upon unanimous vote of Councilors other than the
Councilor subject to censure proceedings, impose a proper sanction.

4.5 DUTIES AND PRIVILEGES OF MEMBERS

4.5.1 Code of Ethics. Councilors shall conduct themselves so as to bring credit upon the
City as a whole, and to set an example of good ethical conduct for all citizens of the
community. Councilors should constantly bear in mind these responsibilities to the
entire electorate, and refrain from actions benefitting any individual or special
interest group at the expense of the City as a whole. Councilors should likewise do
everything in their power to insure impartial application of the law to all citizens, and

Rules of the City Council - Page 3

Attachment #1 Agenda ltem #9



equal treatment of each citizen before the law, without regard to race, national
origin, sex, social station or economic position.

452 Debate

(1) Any Councilor who has the floor shall confine himself or herself to the question
under debate, avoid personalities and refrain from impugning the motives of any
member argument or vote. No member shall address the chair or demand the floor
while any vote is being taken.

(2) Councilors shall limit their remarks on a subject to five minutes unless granted
additional time by the maijority of the Council. No Councilor shall be allowed to
speak more than once upon any one subject, until every other member choosing to
speak thereon has spoken.

(3) A Councilor once recognized shall not be interrupted while speaking, unless
called to order by the Presiding Officer, or unless a point of order is raised by any
Councilor while he or she is speaking, in which case he or she shall cease speaking
immediately until the point is determined. If ruled to be in order he or she shall be
permitted to proceed; if ruled to be out of order he or she shall remain silent or shall
alter his or her remarks as to comply with the ruling.

4.5.3 Right to Appeal. Any member may appeal to the Council from a ruling of the
Presiding Officer, and if the appeal is seconded, the member making the appeal
may briefly state his reason for the appeal and the Presiding Officer may briefly
explain his ruling; but there shall be no debate on the appeal and no other member
shall participate in the discussion. The Presiding Officer shall then put the question,
"Shall the decision of the chair stand as the decision of the Council?" If the majority
of the members vote Aye, the ruling of the chair is sustained; otherwise it is
overruled.

4.5.3 Dissent and Protest. Any Councilor shall have the right to express dissent from or
protest against any Ordinance, Resolution or decision of Council and have the
reason therefore, entered upon the Council minutes. Such dissent or protest must
be filed in writing, couched in respectful language and presented to Council not later
than the next regular meeting following the date of passage or the Ordinance,
Resolution or decision objected to.

4.5.4 Excusal During the Meeting. No member may leave the Council meeting while in
regular session without permission from the Presiding Officer.

4.5.5 Personal Privilege. The right of a member to address the Council on a question of
personal privilege shall be limited to cases in which his integrity, character or
motives are assailed, questioned or impugned.

4.6 ORDER OF BUSINESS AND AGENDA

4.6.1 Order of Business. The business of all regular meetings of the Council shall be

transacted as follows; provided, however that when it appears to be in the best

interest of the public, the Presiding Officer may change the Order of Business:

Rules of the City Council - Page 4

Attachment #1 Agenda ltem #9



1) flag salute
2) special orders of business

3) consent calendar

4) citizen-requested agenda items

5) public hearings

6) public contracts and purchasing

7) ordinances and resolutions

8) miscellaneous items (including policy discussion and determination)
9) public comments

10) city attorney's report

11) city manager's report

12) mayor and council comments

13) executive session

14) adjournment

4.6.2 Agendas. Staff shall prepare an agenda for every regular, and if requested, for
every special Council meeting. Items may be placed on the agenda by any person,
but such items shall be presented to the City Manager in writing at least five days
prior to the meeting at which they are to be discussed. Upon approval by the Mayor,
the City Manager, or any member of the Council, the item shall be placed on the
agenda for consideration.

Agendas and informational material for regular meetings shall be distributed to the
Council at least four days prior to the meeting.

New business brought before the Council in a meeting may be referred to the City
Manager for a report at a future Council meeting.

4.6.3 Additions to Agenda. A request to add an item for Council consideration to the
Council agenda may be presented at the Council meeting but shall require a
majority concurrence of the members present to be so added.

4.6.4 Special Orders of Business. Agenda items that are of special importance to the
Council may be treated as Special Orders of Business. Special Orders of Business
agenda items take precedence over all other items except Flag Salute.

4.6.5 Consent Calendar. The approval of minutes, and other routine agenda items may
be placed on the Consent Calendar. Discussion of the Consent Calendar shall be
limited to five minutes. Any item may removed from the Calendar and placed in its
otherwise appropriate position in the order of business at the request of the
Presiding Officer or of any two members of the Council.

4.7 CONSIDERATION OF BUSINESS
4.7.1 Quorum. A majority of the Council shall constitute a quorum to do business. A
lesser number may meet and adjourn from time to time and compel the attendance

of absent members.

4.7.2 Voting. Unless otherwise provided by statute, ordinance or resolution, all votes
shall be taken by voice; provided, however, upon demand by any member of the

Rules of the City Council - Page 5

Attachment #1 Agenda ltem #9



4.8

Council, a roll call vote shall be made upon any question before the Council. No
Councilor may explain the reasons for his or her vote during the roll call.

4.7.3 Procedure Generally. When the question has been called for the Presiding Officer
shall first ask for the Ayes followed by the Noes. After a vote has been taken the
Presiding Officer shall announce the results of the vote.

4.7.4 Voting Required. Every member present when a question is called shall vote
either Aye or No, unless the Council, by unanimous consent, excuses a member for
a special reason or unless a member has a conflict of interest under applicable law,
in which case no consent is required. There shall be no debate on such a request. If
any member declines to vote, and the result of such action would be to create a tie,
that member's vote shall be counted as an aye; in all other situations, that member's
vote shall be counted with the majority.

4.7.5 Minimum Votes Required in Certain Situations. The passage of any ordinance
shall require the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the whole membership of
the Council.

4.7.6 Ayes and Noes. On the passage of every Ordinance the vote shall be taken by
Ayes and Noes and entered upon the record.

4.7.7 Tie Vote. In case of a tie in votes of any proposal, the proposal shall be considered
lost.

PUBLIC COMMENT

4.8.1 Policy. The Council recognizes that public input into the governmental process is
an invaluable aid to informed decision making. Therefore, it is the policy of the
Council that all citizens shall have the right to speak before the Council on matters
of public concern, but each citizen shall be responsible for abuse of such right.
Consequently, to ensure that the greater public interest is fostered, each citizen or
group of citizens who desires to speak before the Council shall have the duty to
exercise this right in a manner which furthers the greater public interest.

4.8.2 Public Comment Generally. Any member of the general public wishing to address
the Council on a matter of public concern may do so at the time set for public
comments during each regular session of the Council. Any member so addressing
the Council shall be limited to a period of five minutes within which to make
themselves heard. The Council, in its sole discretion, may extend this time, or may
request further information be presented to the Council on such date and in such
manner as it deems appropriate.

4.8.3 Persons Sharing Common Concerns. If any group of three or more persons
sharing a common viewpoint on any subject wishes to address the Council during
the time for public comment, the group shall select a spokesperson, who shall
present the views of the group to the Council. The Council, in its sole discretion,
may request to hear the views of additional speakers from the group. Additional
support for the views of the group, in the form of petitions, letter, videotapes, etc.,
may be presented to the Council for consideration at the conclusion of the
spokesperson's remarks.

Rules of the City Council - Page 6

Attachment #1 Agenda ltem #9



4.8.4 Roster. All persons or groups wishing to address the Council during the time set for
public comments shall, prior to the convening of the meeting, sign the roster
provided by the Deputy Recorder, indicating the name of the person, the residence
of the person, and the subject of public concern on which the persons or groups
wishes to address the Council.

4.8.5 Complaints and suggestions to the Council. When any citizen brings a
complaint before or makes a suggestion to the Council, other than for items already
on the agenda, the Presiding Officer shall first determine whether the issue is
legislative or administrative in nature and then:

(1) If legislative, and a complaint about the letter or intent of legislative acts or
suggestions for changes to such acts, and if the Council finds such complaint
suggests a change to an ordinance or resolution of the City, the Council may refer
the matter to the City Attorney, a committee, the City Manager or the Committee of
the Whole for study and recommendation.

(2) If administrative, and a complaint regarding administrative staff performance,
administrative execution or interpretation of legislative policy, or administrative
policy within the authority of the City Manager, the Presiding Officer shall then refer
the complaint directly to the City Manager for his or her review if the complaint has
not already been reviewed. The Council may direct the City Manager to report to
the Council when his review has been made.

4.9 PROCEDURE FOR COUNCIL MEETINGS

4.9.1 Rules of Order. Unless otherwise provided by law or by these rules, the procedure
for Council meetings shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order.

4.9.2 Construction of Rules of Order. The Council has an obligation to the citizens to
be clear and simple in its procedures and in the consideration of the questions
coming before it. Therefore, the rules of procedure should be liberally construed to
that purpose, and Councilors should avoid invoking the finer points of parliamentary
procedure when such points serve only to obscure the issues before the Council as
a whole, and confuse the audience at public meetings and the citizens in general.

4.9.3 Convening the Meeting. At the time appointed, the presiding officer shall take the
chair at the hour appointed for the Council to meet and shall immediately call the
members to order. The Recorder shall enter in the minutes of the meeting the
names of the members present.

4.9.4 Recognition. Every Councilor desiring to speak shall first address the chair, and
await recognition to obtain the floor. No persons other than members of the Council
and the person having the floor shall enter into any discussion, either directly or
through a member of the Council without the permission of the Presiding Officer.

4.9.5 Requirement of a Second Before Debate. No motion shall be debated until it has
been seconded and announced by the Presiding Officer.

Rules of the City Council - Page 7

Attachment #1 Agenda ltem #9



4.9.6 Motions Reduced to Writing. Any Councilor may request that a motion be
reduced to writing and read by the Deputy Recorder.

49.7 Council Questions to Staff. Every Councilor desiring to question the
administrative staff shall address his or her question to the City Manager, who shall
be entitled to either answer the inquiries or designate some member of the staff for
that purpose. Questions of the City Attorney may be directed to the City Attorney.

4.9.8 Citizen Participation. Citizens desiring to address the Council shall first be
recognized by the chair and shall limit remarks to the question then under
discussion. All remarks and questions shall be addressed to the Council as a whole
and not to any individual Councilor thereof. Any remarks and questions regarding
administration of the City shall be referred to the City Manager by the Presiding
Officer.

4.9.9 Precedence of Motions. When a question is before the Council no motion shall be
entertained except:

1) to abide by the rules

2) to adjourn

3) to lay on the table

4) for the previous question

5) to postpone to a certain date
6) to refer

7) to amend

8) to postpone indefinitely

These motions shall have precedence in the order indicated. Any such motion
except a motion to amend shall be put to a vote without debate.

4.9.10 Motions to be Stated by Presiding Officer/Withdrawal. \When a motion is made
and seconded it shall be stated by the originator or the Presiding Officer before
debate. A motion may not be withdrawn without the consent of the member
seconding it.

4.9.11 Motion to Adjourn--When Not in Order--When Not Debatable. A motion to
adjourn will be in order at any time except as follows:

1) when made as an interruption of a member while speaking

2) when the previous question has been ordered

3) while a vote is being taken

A motion to adjourn is debatable only as to the time to which the meeting is
adjourned.

4.9.12 Motion to Lay on the Table. A motion to lay on the table shall preclude all
amendments or debate of the subject under consideration. If the motion shall
prevail, consideration of the subject may be resumed only upon motion of a member
voting with the majority and with the consent of two-thirds of the members present.

Rules of the City Council - Page 8

Attachment #1 Agenda ltem #9



4.9.13 Division of Question. If the question contains two or more divisionable
propositions the Presiding Officer may upon request of the members shall, divide
the same.

4.9.14 Motion to Postpone. All motions to postpone excepting to postpone indefinitely,
may be amended as to time. If a motion to postpone indefinitely is carried, the
principal question shall be declared defeated.

4.9.15 Suspension of Rules. No rule shall be suspended except by the vote of the
majority of Councilors present at the meeting. A motion to suspend a rule is not
debatable.

4.9.16 Adjourned Meetings. Upon motion and majority vote of Council members present,
any meeting of the Council may be continued or adjourned from day to day or for
more than one day, provided that no adjournment shall be for a period longer than
until the next regular meeting thereafter.

4.10CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, LAY-COMMITTEES AND COUNCIL COMMITTEES

4.10.1City Boards, Commissions, and Lay-Committees. Unless otherwise provided by
statute, ordinance or resolution, the following shall be the procedure for the creation
of and appointments to all City Boards, Commissions, and Lay-Committees:

(1) Creation and Dissolution. At any time, the Council may by ordinance or
resolution establish any City Board, Commission or Lay-Committee deemed
necessary and in the best interests of the City. Any committee so created may
contain one or more Councilors as members. Unless otherwise provided, all City
Boards, Commissions, and Lay-Committees so created shall sunset at the end of
their mission, but in all events shall be reviewed at the end of a period three years
from the date of initial creation,and at the end of each subsequent three year period
after reauthorization, and at such time shall either be reauthorized or dissolved.

(2) Qualifications. All appointees to City Boards, Commissions and Lay-
Committees shall be registered electors, and shall have resided in the City of Coos
Bay for a period of one year. No appointee may serve on more than two City
Boards, Commissions or Lay-Committees at any one time.

(3) Term. The term of all appointments shall be for three years. Appointments may
be renewed for any number of terms.

(4) Vacancies. Any qualified citizen may submit a letter of interest for any open
position on a city Board, Commission, or Lay-Committee. Vacancies shall be
advertised in the local media, and letter of interest shall be received only during the
time set forth in the advertisement.

(5) Nomination and Confirmation. Nominations for positions on City Boards,
Commissions, or Lay-Committees may be made by the Mayor, or by any two

Rules of the City Council - Page 9

Attachment #1 Agenda ltem #9



Councilors, and shall be subject to confirmation by the Council. Such nominations
shall be in writing, and shall be submitted for consideration at least one week prior
to the scheduled date for confirmation. Confirmation may be made by written ballot
and shall require majority vote.

(6) Notification of Expiration of Terms. The Deputy Recorder shall give written
notice to the Council of the expiration of the term of office of all members of City
Boards, Commissions and Lay-Committees at least thirty (30) days prior to
expiration date of any appointee's term of office.

(7) Removal. All lay members of City Boards, Commissions or Lay-Committees
serve at the pleasure of the Council except as otherwise provided by law. All council
seats on City Board of Commissions or Lay-Committees are reserved for sitting
Councilors; upon expiration of any Councilor's term, or upon resignation, removal or
death, the Councilor's seat on any City Board, Commission or Lay-Committee
occupied by that person shall be immediately declared vacant, and a sitting
Councilor appointed as a replacement.

4.10.2 Council Committees

(1) Creation and Dissolution. Council Committees may be created at any time by
resolution or motion. All Council Committees shall have a Chairman and Secretary,
who may be either appointed by the Mayor, or by a majority vote of the members of
the committee in the absence of such appointment. Such committee shall report to
the Council without unnecessary delay upon matters referred to them. All Council
Committees so created shall sunset at the end of their mission, but in all events
shall be reviewed at the end of a period three years from the date of initial creation,
and at the end of each subsequent three year period after reauthorization, and at
such time shall either be reauthorized or dissolved.

(2) Membership. Membership on such Council Committees shall include only
sitting Councilors, who shall be appointed by the Presiding Officer, subject to
confirmation by the Council. Council Committee appointments shall be for a term of
one year, and Councilors may be reappointed for an indefinite number of terms.

(3) Meetings. Council Committee meetings may be called by the Chairman, or by
any two members. A majority of the members of a Committee shall constitute a
quorum to do business.

(4) Committee of the Whole. There shall be one standing committee of the
Council, which shall be known as the Committee of the Whole. This committee shall
sit as a body for investigation or study, as the need may be. The committee shall
not take any official action which in committee, but shall make findings which shall
be the basis of further Council action.

4.10.3 Meetings Subject to Oregon Open Meetings Law. All meetings of any City
Boards, Commissions, and Lay-Committees or Council Committee shall be subject

Rules of the City Council - Page 10

Attachment #1 Agenda ltem #9



to and comply with the Oregon Public Meetings law, ORS 192.610-192.710.

4.10.4 Quorums. A majority of the then sitting members of any City Board, Commission, or
Lay-Committee or Council Committee shall constitute a quorum to do business.

4.10.5 Registry. The Deputy Recorder shall prepare, keep current and retain on file in the
Office of the Deputy Recorder a list of all appointees to all City Boards,
Commissions, Lay-Committees and Council Committees, the date of their
appointment, the length of their unexpired term, and their addressees and phone
numbers. All councilors shall be given a copy of this list at least once yearly, or upon
any substantial change in membership of any City Board, Commission, Lay-
Committee or Council Committee.

4.11 MISCELLANEOUS

4.11.1 Amendments to Council Rules. Amendments to these rules shall be by made by
resolution.

4.11.2 Anonymous Communications. Anonymous and unsigned communications shall
not be introduced in Council meetings.

The foregoing Council Rules were adopted as amended by the City Council on the 19"
day of December, 2000 by Resolution 00-40.

Rules of the City Council - Page 11

Attachment #1 Agenda ltem #9



RULES OF THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF COOS BAY

INDEX
Amendments t0 the CouNCil RUIES — 4.1 ......oiiiiiii e 11
Anonymous CommuUNICAtIONS — 4.1 ..o e e e e aa e 11
Boards, Commissions, Lay-Committees — 4.10.........cceciiiiiiiiiiiiee e 9
L0 LB Y PSR 3
Citizen PartiCipation — 4.9 ... ... e e e e e 8
(070 To LT o] = 1 T ToT e RSP 3
Consideration of BUSINESS / VOUNG — 4.7 .....veeeiiiiieieeee ettt 5
Council CoOMMITIEES — 4. 10 ... e e e e ste e e e st e e e e sntee e e e snbeeeeennnees 10
CoUNCIH IMEELINGS — 4.1t e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e stabeeeeeaeeeseensnreees 1
=T o= L= T o PP PI 4
Dissent and Protest — 4.5 e 4
Duties and Privileges of MEMDErs — 4.5 ... 3
EMPIOYEE DULIES — 4.3 ... oottt e aeaba e tateeasasnsnbnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnnnnnrnnnrns 2
Excusal During the Meeting — 4.5 .......ueeriiii bbb ararararnenenrnenrnnnnes 4
EXECULIVE SESSIONS — 4.7 . ittt e ettt e e e sttt e e e sttt e e e stteeeeabaeeeesbaeeeesneeeanans 1
Y [o] (o] g LS R PRI 8
Order and DECOIUM — 4.4 ... ettt ettt e ettt e e st e e s sttt e e s nteeeeeanseeeesanseeeesanneeeas 2
Order of Business and AQeNda — 4.6...........ooioiii et 4
Open Meetings Law — 4,10 .. ...ttt e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aanes 10
Presiding OffiCer — 4.2, ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaa s 1
Procedure for Council MEetiNgS — 4.9......oi i e 7
PUDIIC COMMENTS — 4.8 ... .o et e e e e e e e e e e e e e s nnreeeeeaaeas 6
QUOTUM = 4.0 Lottt ettt e e e et e e e st e e e estae e e e asteeeeeanteeeeeanbeeeeeansaeaeeantaeeeeansaeaeennses 10
Special MEEtINGS — 4.7 .. e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e 2
SuSPeNSION Of RUIES — 4.9 ... . 9
Temporary ChairMan — 4.2 ...ttt ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e s nbeaeeeeaeaeeaanns 2
V] (] gV e S TP PPRRRR 5

Rules of the City Council - Page 12

Attachment #1 Agenda ltem #9



Annotated to show the proposed additions and deletions to the existing Council rules.
Proposed deletions are lined-through and proposed additions are double underlined.

Subject matter of the original document was limited to Council meetings and thus it was
formatted off the relevant section of the City Charter. While the rules have been modified
over the years, the original formatting has not been adjusted. The proposed changes
include the necessary reformatting.

Update as of 9/14/12

RULES OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF COOS BAY

Rules of the Citv.C " ided in the Coos Bav. City Chart

ChapterlV; Section4-1

1. AUTHORIZATION, AMENDMENT, AND WAIVER

These rules are authorized by the City Charter and the Coos Bay Municipal Ordinances.
The Council shall review these rules periodically. Amendments shall be adopted by
ordinance, as required by the Charter. The Council rules are not intended to replace or
supersede any applicable federal or state laws or regulations or provisions of the City
Charter. The Council may by majority vote in an open Council meeting waive any Council
rule for a specific situation.

2.

2.1

COUNCIL MEETINGS

Meetings of the Council

211

Regular Council Meetings. The Council shall hold two regular meetings,
on the first and third Tuesday of each month, except in those cases where
the Council finds it necessary to designate another date due to conflicts.
Regular meetings shall be convened in the City Council Chambers in the
City Hall, and shall be called to order at 7:00 p.m., and shall adjourn no
later than 10:00 p.m.

Executive Sessions. Executive sessions may be called by the Presiding
Officer, any two members of the Council, or the City Manager. Executive
sessions shall be held in accordance with Oregon law. Only Council
members, the City Manager, and persons specifically invited by the Council
or the City Manager shall be allowed to attend executive sessions.
Representatives of recognized news media may attend executive sessions,
other than those sessions during which the Council conducts deliberations
with persons designated to carry on labor negotiations. No matter
discussed during executive session may be disclosed by any person
present during such session, pursuant to State Statutes. No elected

official who declares an actual conflict of interest on a topic to be
discussed in executive session shall remain in the room during such

Rules of the City Council - Page 1

Attachment #2

Agenda ltem #9



executive session discussion.

Prior to opening an executive session, the Presiding Officer shall:

1) Announce the purpose of the executive session

2) Announce if the Council intends on returning to an opening
meeting at the conclusion of the executive session.

3) State statute authorizing the executive session,

4) Make notification to all present including the media that matters
discussed in executive session are not to be disclosed or

reported to the public.

An _executive session may be held during any open meeting for which
proper notice has been given or outside of any regular meeting when
properly noticed. No formal or final action may be taken during an
executive session, but an opinion or consensus of the Council may be
gathered.

213 Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the Presiding
Officer, by request of any three two Councilors, or by the City Manager.
Written notice of all special meetings shall be given at least twenty-four
hours in advance of the scheduled meetings. Notice shall be given to each
Councilor, the City Manager, and the business office of each local
newspaper and radio and television station which has on file a written
request for notice of special meetings, and may be delivered by mail, email,
electronic facsimile (FAX), or by personal delivery.

214 Work Sessions. Work sessions may be called by the Presiding Officer, by
request of any two Councilors, or by the City Manager. Such sessions shall
allow the City Council an opportunity to review forthcoming projects of the
City, determine goals for the ensuing year, receive progress reports on
current programs or_projects, or to hold open discussions on any City-
related subject provided that all discussions thereon shall be informal with
no vote or formal action taken. While work sessions shall be open to the

public, public testimony will only be allowed at the discretion of the
Presiding Officer or by a majority vote of the Council members.

215 Emergency Meeting. An “emergency meeting” is a special meeting called
on less than 24 hours’ notice. An “actual emergency,” a random event

which requires immediate action, must exist. The minutes of the meeting
must describe the emergency justifying less than 24 hours’ noticed.
Attempts will be made to contact the media to provide notice of the
emergency meeting.

2.2 Meeting Rules

221 Rules of Order. Unless otherwise provided by law or by these rules, the
procedure for Council meetings shall be governed by Robert's Rules of
Order.

Rules of the City Council - Page 2

Attachment #2 Agenda ltem #9



23

2.4

222

223

224

225

Construction of Rules of Order. The Council has an obligation to the
citizens to be clear and simple in its procedures and in the consideration of
the questions coming before it. Therefore, the rules of procedure should be
liberally construed to that purpose, and Councilors should avoid invoking
the finer points of parliamentary procedure when such points serve only to
obscure the issues before the Council as a whole, and confuse the
audience at public meetings and the citizens in general.

Public—Attendance: Public Meetings Law.—Al—regular—and—special
meetings-shall-be-open-to-the-public—All meetings of the Council will be
held in accordance with the Oregon public meeting requirements. No
final action by the Council shall have legal effect unless the motion and
the vote by which it is disposed of take place at a proceeding that is
open to the public.

Anonymous Communications. Anonymous and  unsigned
communications shall not be introduced in Council meetings.

Suspension of Rules. No rule shall be suspended except by the vote of
the maijority of Councilors present at the meeting. A motion to suspend a
rule is not debatable.

The Presiding Officer

2.3.1

2.3.2

2.3.3

The Mayor. The Mayor shall preside at all regular and special meetings
and executive sessions of the Council and shall be the recognized head of
the City for all ceremonial purposes. The Mayor shall have all duties and
privileges of any Councilor, and shall not be denied any right or privilege by
reason of his or her position as presiding officer.

Council President. In the Mayor's absence from any Council meeting, the
president shall act as the presiding officer. Whenever the Mayor is unable,
on account of absence, illness or other cause, to perform the functions of
the office, the President shall act as Mayor Pro Tem. At the first meeting
after each general biennial election, the Council shall by ballot elect a
president from its membership as required by the City Charter.

Temporary Chairman. In event of the absence of the Mayor and Council
President, the Deputy Recorder shall call the Council to order and call the
roll of the members; if a quorum is present, those Councilors present shall
elect, by majority vote, a Temporary Chairman for that meeting. Should the
Mayor or Council President arrive, the Temporary Chairman shall relinquish
the chair immediately upon the conclusion of the item of business then in
consideration before the Council.

Employee Duties at Meetings of the Council

241

City Manager. The City Manager shall attend all meetings of the Council,
unless excused by the Council. He or she shall make recommendations to
the Council and shall take part in all discussions concerning the welfare of

Rules of the City Council - Page 3

Attachment #2

Agenda ltem #9



2.5

242

243

244

245

the City.

Deputy Recorder. The Deputy Recorder shall be the Clerk for the Council
and shall keep minutes of meetings and shall perform such other duties at
the meetings as ordered by the Presiding Officer, the Council or the City
Manager. The Deputy Recorder shall furnish each Councilor with a copy of
the minutes of each preceding meeting in the agenda packet for the next
meeting.

City Attorney. The City Attorney shall either in person or by deputy attend
alt regular Council sessions and other meetings of the Council as directed
by the city manager. Any member of the Council may at any time call upon
the City Attorney for an informal oral opinion. Written opinions shall be
authorized by a majority of the Council. The City Attorney shall be the
Parliamentarian, and shall advise the Presiding Officer on any questions of
order.

The Chief of Police. The Chief of Police or his designee shall attend each
Council meeting, and serve as the Sergeant-at-Arms. For the purpose of
retaining order and decorum at the Council meetings, the Sergeant-at-Arms
shall carry out all orders or instructions upon direction of the Presiding
Officer, or upon any other procedure specifically provided by these rules, as
allowed by law.

Officers and Employees. Any member of the City Council may request
that the City Manager direct any employee to attend regular, special or
executive meetings to confer with the Council on matters relating to the
City.

DECORUM AND ORDER

251

252

253

254

Presiding Officer. The Presiding Officer shall preserve decorum and
decide all points of order, subject to appeal to the Council.

Councilors. Councilors shall preserve order and decorum during Council
meetings, and shall not, by conversation or other action, delay or interrupt
the proceedings or refuse to obey the orders of the Presiding Officer or
these Rules. Councilors shall, when addressing staff or members of the
public, confine themselves to questions or issues then under discussion,
shall not engage in personal attacks, shall not impugn the motives of any
speaker, and shall at all times, while in session or otherwise, conduct
themselves in a manner appropriate to the dignity of their office.

Staff and Public. Members of the administrative staff, employees of the
City and other persons attending Council meetings shall observe the same
rules of procedure, decorum and good conduct applicable to the members
of the Council.

Removal of Any Person. Any person who makes personal, impertinent,
slanderous or unauthorized remarks or who becomes boisterous while
addressing the Council or attending a Council meeting shall be removed

Rules of the City Council - Page 4

Attachment #2

Agenda ltem #9



255

from the room if the Sergeant-at-Arms is so directed by the Presiding
Officer. In case the Presiding Officer should fail to act, any member of the
Council may obtain the floor and move to require enforcement of this rule;
upon affirmative vote of the majority of the Council present, the Sergeant-
at-Arms shall be authorized to remove the person or persons, as if the
Presiding Officer so directed. Such person or persons may be barred from
further audience before the Council and, in aggravated cases, an
appropriate complaint shall be issued by the Presiding Officer and the
person or persons prosecuted.

Censure. The Council has the inherent right to make and enforce its own
rules and to ensure compliance with those laws generally applicable to
public bodies. Should any Councilor act in any manner constituting a
substantial violation of these rules or other general laws, the Council, acting
as a whole, may discipline that Councilor to the extent provided by law,
including public reprimand.

To exercise such inherent right, the Council has the right to investigate the
actions of any member of the Council. Such investigation shall be referred
to the Committee of the Whole upon a finding that a reasonable ground
exists that a substantial violation has occurred.

The Committee of the Whole shall investigate the actions in executive
session, and present a report to the Council in executive session, unless
the Councilor requests the matter to be held in an open meeting. If held in
and executive session, Nneither the Committee of the Whole nor the
Council or any member thereof shall have the right to make public any
information obtained through such investigation.

Any member accused of a substantial violation of Council rules or any other
general law shall have the right to present a defense to the allegations,
including the right to present rebuttal evidence, and to have representation
by counsel. Upon finding, by a moral certainty, that a substantial violation
has occurred, and that such violation affects the Councilor's ability to
represent the interests of the City as a whole, the Council may, upon
unanimous vote of Councilors other than the Councilor subject to censure
proceedings, impose a proper sanction.

2.6 Duties and Privileges of Council Members

2.6.1.

26.2

Code of Ethics. Councilors shall conduct themselves so as to bring credit
upon the City as a whole, and to set an example of good ethical conduct for
all citizens of the community. Councilors should constantly bear in mind
these responsibilities to the entire electorate, and refrain from actions
benefitting any individual or special interest group at the expense of the City
as a whole. Councilors should likewise do everything in their power to
insure impartial application of the law to all citizens, and equal treatment of
each citizen before the law, without regard to race, national origin, sex,
social station or economic position.

Debate. Any Councilor who has the floor shall confine himself or herself to

Rules of the City Council - Page 5

Attachment #2

Agenda ltem #9



2.7

the question under debate, avoid personalities and refrain from impugning
the motives of any member argument or vote. No member shall address the
chair or demand the floor while any vote is being taken.

Councilors shall limit their remarks on a subject to five minutes unless
granted additional time by the Presiding Officer or the majority of the
Council. No Councilor shall be allowed to speak more than once upon any
one subject, until every other member choosing to speak thereon has
spoken.

A Councilor once recognized shall not be interrupted while speaking, unless
called to order by the Presiding Officer, or unless a point of order is raised
by any Councilor while he or she is speaking, in which case he or she shall
cease speaking immediately until the point is determined. If ruled to be in
order he or she shall be permitted to proceed; if ruled to be out of order he
or she shall remain silent or shall alter his or her remarks as to comply with
the ruling.

2.6.3 Right to Appeal. Any member may appeal to the Council from a ruling of
the Presiding Officer, and if the appeal is seconded, the member making
the appeal may briefly state his reason for the appeal and the Presiding
Officer may briefly explain his ruling; but there shall be no debate on the
appeal and no other member shall participate in the discussion. The
Presiding Officer shall then put the question, "Shall the decision of the chair
stand as the decision of the Council?" If the majority of the members vote
Aye, the ruling of the chair is sustained; otherwise it is overruled.

264 Dissent and Protest. Any Councilor shall have the right to express dissent
from or protest against any Ordinance, Resolution or decision of Council
and have the reason therefore, entered upon the Council minutes. Such
dissent or protest must be filed in writing, couched in respectful language
and presented to Council not later than the next regular meeting following
the date of passage or the Ordinance, Resolution or decision objected to.

2.6.5 Excusal During the Meeting. No member may leave the Council meeting
while in regular session without permission from the Presiding Officer.

2.6.6 Personal Privilege. The right of a member to address the Council on a
question of personal privilege shall be limited to cases in which his integrity,
character or motives are assailed, questioned or impugned.

ORDER OF BUSINESS AND AGENDA

271 Order of Business. The business of all regular meetings of the Council
shall be transacted as follows; provided, however that when it appears to
be in the best interest of the public, the Presiding Officer may change the
Order of Business:

1) Flag Salute
2) special-orders-ofbusiness Public Comments

3) Consent Calendar

Rules of the City Council - Page 6

Attachment #2 Agenda ltem #9



N

0 N O W»n

9

1

) eitizen-requested-agenda-items Special Orders of Business
(proclamations & presentations)

) Public Hearings

) Public Contracts and Purchasing

) Ordinances and Resolutions

) Miscellaneous ltems (including policy discussion and
determination)

) public-comments-City Attorney’s Report
city-atterney'srepert City Manager's Report
city-manager'sreport Mayor and Council Comments

10)
1)

2) rayerand-council-comments Executive Session
13)

Executive-Session Adjournment

14)-Adjeurnment

2.7.2 Agendas.

2.7.21

2722

2723

2724

2725

2.7.26

2727

Staff shall prepare an agenda for every regular, and if requested, for
every special Council meeting.

Agendas and informational material for regular meetings shall be
distributed to the Council at least four days prior to the meeting.

The City Manager or Mayor may change the agenda at any time
prior to the start of the Council meeting, and the presiding officer

may change the agenda after the start of the meeting. A request to
add an item fer-Ceuncil-censideration to the Council agenda may be

presented at the Council meeting but shall require a majority
concurrence of the members present to be so added.

The Mayor or a Counselor who wishes to have an item placed on
the written council agenda will advise the City Manager at least one
week prior to the meeting. The City Manager shall determine where

the item is placed on the agenda as an action item or as a
discussion item.

A Council member who wishes to have staff undertake major
research or drafting to prepare an action item shall raise the issue at
a Council meeting, and the City Manager will take direction from the
Council as a whole. The Council should consider requests from

individual Council members in light of Council goals and priorities
and staff workload and availability. Direction to proceed with an
item does not commit the Council or any individual Council member

to supporting an action when it comes before Council for a final
decision.

New business brought before the Council in a meeting may be
referred to the City Manager for a report at a future Council meeting.

Placing a matter for reconsideration on an agenda will require a

motion to reconsider an action of the City Council and must be
made by a member who voted with the prevailing side. It can be

Rules of the City Council - Page 7

Attachment #2

Agenda ltem #9



seconded by any member. No question shall be twice reconsidered
except by unanimous vote of the City Council except that action

relating to any contract may be reconsidered at any time before the
final execution thereof.

273 Special Orders of Business. Agenda items that are of special
importance to the Council may be treated as Special Orders of Business.
Special Orders of Business agenda items take precedence over all other
items except the Flag Salute, Public Comments, and the Consent Calendar.

2.7.4 Consent Calendar. The approval of minutes, and other routine agenda
items may be placed on the Consent Calendar. Discussion of the Consent
Calendar shall be limited to five minutes. Any item may be removed from
the Calendar and placed in its otherwise appropriate position in the order of
business at the request of the Presiding Officer or of any two members of
the Council.

CONSIDERATION OF BUSINESS

2.8.1 Quorum. A majority of the Council shall constitute a quorum to do
business. A lesser number may meet and adjourn from time to time and
compel the attendance of absent members.

2.8.2 Voting. Unless otherwise provided by statute, ordinance or resolution, all
votes shall be taken by voice; provided, however, upon demand by any
member of the Council, a roll call vote shall be made upon any question
before the Council. No Councilor may explain the reasons for his or her
vote during the roll call.

2.8.3 Procedure Generally. When the question has been called for the
Presiding Officer shall first ask for the Ayes followed by the Noes. After a
vote has been taken the Presiding Officer shall announce the results of the
vote.

284 Voting Required. Every member present when a question is called shall
vote either Aye or No, unless the Council, by unanimous consent, excuses
a member for a special reason or unless a member has a conflict of interest
under applicable law, in which case no consent is required. There shall be
no debate on such a request. If any member declines to vote, and the result
of such action would be to create a tie, that member's vote shall be counted
as an aye; in all other situations, that member's vote shall be counted with
the majority.

whele—membe#shm—ef—the—@euneﬂ Cc t [r1]: This is inconsistent with
section 4.5 of the Charter, which states that the
vote of the majority of the Council present is

2.8.5 Ayes and Noes. On the passage of every Ordinance the vote shall be needed to pass any question before the
taken by Ayes and Noes and entered upon the record. Council.
2.8.6 Tie Vote. In case of a tie in votes of any proposal, the proposal shall be

Rules of the City Council - Page 8

Attachment #2 Agenda ltem #9



considered lost.

2.9 PUBLIC COMMENT

2.9.1

292

293

294

295

Policy. The Council recognizes that public input into the governmental
process is an invaluable aid to informed decision making. Therefore, it is
the policy of the Council that all citizens shall have the right to speak before
the Council on matters of public concern, but each citizen shall be
responsible for abuse of such right. Consequently, to ensure that the
greater public interest is fostered, each citizen or group of citizens who
desires to speak before the Council shall have the duty to exercise this right
in a manner which furthers the greater public interest.

Public Comment Generally. Any member of the general public wishing to
address the Council on a matter of public concern may do so at the time set
for public comments during each regular session of the Council. Any
member so addressing the Council shall be limited to a period of five
minutes within which to make themselves heard. The Council, in its sole
discretion, may extend this time, or may request further information be
presented to the Council on such date and in such manner as it deems
appropriate.

Persons Sharing Common Concerns. If any group of three or more
persons sharing a common viewpoint on any subject wishes to address the
Council during the time for public comment, the group shall select a
spokesperson, who shall present the views of the group to the Council. The
Council, in its sole discretion, may request to hear the views of additional
speakers from the group. Additional support for the views of the group, in
the form of petitions, letter, videotapes, etc., may be presented to the
Council for consideration at the conclusion of the spokesperson's remarks.

Roster. All persons or groups wishing to address the Council during the
time set for public comments shall, prior to the convening of the meeting,
sign the roster provided by the Deputy Recorder, indicating the name of the
person, the residence of the person, and the subject of public concern on
which the persons or groups wishes to address the Council.

Complaints and suggestions to the Council. When any citizen brings a
complaint before or makes a suggestion to the Council, other than for items
already on the agenda, the Presiding Officer shall first determine whether
the issue is legislative or administrative in nature and then:

1) If legislative, and a complaint about the letter or intent of
legislative acts or suggestions for changes to such acts, and if the
Council finds such complaint suggests a change to an ordinance
or resolution of the City, the Council may refer the matter to the
City Attorney, a committee, the City Manager or the Committee of
the Whole for study and recommendation.

2) If administrative, and a complaint regarding administrative staff
performance, administrative execution or interpretation of

Rules of the City Council - Page 9

Attachment #2

Agenda ltem #9



legislative policy, or administrative policy within the authority of the
City Manager, the Presiding Officer shall then refer the complaint
directly to the City Manager for his or her review if the complaint
has not already been reviewed. The Council may direct the City
Manager to report to the Council when his review has been made.

2.10 PROCEDURE FOR COUNCIL MEETINGS

2.101

2.10.2

2.10.3

2104

2.10.5

2.10.6

2.10.7

Convening the Meeting. At the time appointed, the presiding officer shall
take the chair at the hour appointed for the Council to meet and shall
immediately call the members to order. The Recorder shall enter in the
minutes of the meeting the names of the members present.

Recognition. Every Councilor desiring to speak shall first address the
chair, and await recognition to obtain the floor. No persons other than
members of the Council and the person having the floor shall enter into any
discussion, either directly or through a member of the Council without the
permission of the Presiding Officer.

Requirement of a Second before Debate. No motion shall be debated
until it has been seconded and announced by the Presiding Officer.

Motions Reduced to Writing. Any Councilor may request that a motion
be reduced to writing and read by the Deputy Recorder.

Council Questions to Staff. Every Councilor desiring to question the
administrative staff shall address his or her question to the City Manager,
who shall be entitled to either answer the inquiries or designate some
member of the staff for that purpose. Questions of the City Attorney may
be directed to the City Attorney.

Citizen Participation. Citizens desiring to address the Council shall first
be recognized by the chair and shall limit remarks to the question then
under discussion. All remarks and questions shall be addressed to the
Council as a whole and not to any individual Councilor thereof. Any
remarks and questions regarding administration of the City shall be referred
to the City Manager by the Presiding Officer.

Precedence of Motions. When a question is before the Council no motion
shall be entertained except:

1) To abide by the rules

2) To adjourn

3) Tolay on the table

4) For the previous question

5) To postpone to a certain date
6) Torefer

7) To amend

8) To postpone indefinitely

These motions shall have precedence in the order indicated. Any such

Rules of the City Council - Page 10

Attachment #2

Agenda ltem #9



motion except a motion to amend shall be put to a vote without debate.

2.10.8  Motions to be Stated by Presiding Officer/Withdrawal. WWhen a motion is
made and seconded it shall be stated by the originator or the Presiding
Officer_if requested, before debate. A motion may not be withdrawn
without the consent of the member seconding it the motion.

2.10.9 Motion to Adjourn--When Not in Order--When Not Debatable. A
motion to adjourn will be in order at any time except as follows:

1) When made as an interruption of a member while speaking
2) When the previous question has been ordered
3) While a vote is being taken

A motion to adjourn is debatable only as to the time to which the meeting is
adjourned.

2.10.10 Motion to Lay on the Table. A motion to lay on the table shall preclude all
amendments or debate of the subject under consideration. If the motion
shall prevail, consideration of the subject may be resumed only upon
motion of a member voting with the majority and with the consent of
two-thirds of the members present.

2.10.11 Division of Question. If the question contains two or more divisionable
propositions the Presiding Officer may upon request of the members shall,
divide the same.

2.10.12 Motion to Postpone. All motions to postpone excepting to postpone
indefinitely, may be amended as to time. If a motion to postpone
indefinitely is carried, the principal question shall be declared defeated.

2.10.13 Adjourned Meetings. Upon motion and majority vote of Council members
present, any meeting of the Council may be continued or adjourned from
day to day or for more than one day, provided that no adjournment shall be
for a period longer than until the next regular meeting thereafter.

3. CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, LAY-COMMITTEES AND COUNCIL COMMITTEES

3.1

City Boards, Commissions, and Lay-Committees. Unless otherwise provided by
statute, ordinance or resolution, the following shall be the procedure for the creation
of and appointments to all City Boards, Commissions, and Lay-Committees:

3.1.1 Creation and Dissolution. At any time, the Council may by motion
ordinance or resolution establish any City Board, Commission or Lay-
Committee deemed necessary and in the best interests of the City. Any
committee so created may contain one or more Councilors as a liaison(s) or
members.

Rules of the City Council - Page 11

Attachment #2

Agenda ltem #9



3.1.2

Unless otherwise provided, all City Boards, Commissions, and Lay-
Committees so created shall sunset at the end of their mission, but in all
events shall be reviewed at the end of a period three years from the date of
initial creation, and at the end of each subsequent three year period after
reauthorization, and at such time shall either be reauthorized or dissolved.
Council Liaison Role. As a council liaison to a City Board, Commission or
Lay-Committee, a Council member’s role is as follows:

1) As itis important for the City Board Commission or Lay-Committee
(advisory body) to make objective recommendations to the
Council on items before them, Council liaisons are prohibited from
lobbying or attempting to influence the advisory body. However,
nothing in _this section precludes the Council member from
explaining what the Council expects from the advisory body or
explaining Council policy.

2) As a council liaison, Council members are precluded from voting
on matters before the advisory body.

3) In the event a Council liaison is unable to attend a meeting of the

advisory body, the liaison will either contact another Council
member to act as a substitute or ask the Mayor to find a

substitute.

These rules apply only when a Council member is acting in the capacity of a
council liaison. It does not apply when the Council member is a member of
a Board, Commission or Committee and does not apply to non-city bodies
when the Council member is the representative of the City.

Qualifications. All appointees to City Boards, Commissions and Lay-
Committees shall be registered electors, and shall have resided in the City
of Coos Bay for a period of one year. No appointee may serve on more than
two City Boards, Commissions or Committees at any one time. No
appointee should serve on more than two City Boards, Commissions, and
Lay-Committees simultaneously. No appointee may serve as a chair of
more than one City Board, Commission, or Lay-Committee at any one time.

Term. The term of all appointments shall be for three years. Appointments
may be renewed for any number of terms.

Vacancies. Any qualified citizen may submit a letter of interest for any open
position on a City Board, Commission, or Lay-Committee. Vacancies shall
be advertised in the local media, and letter of interest shall be received only
during the time set forth in the advertisement.

Nomination and Confirmation. Nominations for positions on City Boards,

Rules of the City Council - Page 12

Attachment #2

Agenda ltem #9



3.1.7

Commissions, or Lay-Committees may be made by the Mayor, or by any two
Councilors, and shall be subject to confirmation by the Council. Such
nominations shall be in writing, and shall be submitted for consideration at
least one week prior to the scheduled date for confirmation. Confirmation
may be made by written ballot and shall require majority vote. Nominations

may also be made by application.

Notification of Expiration of Terms. The Deputy Recorder shall give
written notice to the Council of the expiration of the term of office of all
members of City Boards, Commissions and Lay-Committees at least thirty
(30) days prior to expiration date of any appointee's term of office.

Removal. All lay members of City Boards, Commissions or Lay-Committees
serve at the pleasure of the Council except as otherwise provided by law. All
council seats on City Board of Commissions or Lay-Committees are
reserved for sitting Councilors; upon expiration of any Councilor's term, or
upon resignation, removal or death, the Councilor's seat on any City Board,
Commission or Lay-Committee occupied by that person shall be
immediately declared vacant, and a sitting Councilor appointed as a
replacement.

3.2 Council Committees

3.2.1

322

323

324

Creation and Dissolution. Council Committees may be created at any time
by resolution or motion. All Council Committees shall have a Chairman and
Secretary, who may be either appointed by the Mayor, or by a majority vote
of the members of the committee in the absence of such appointment. Such
committee shall report to the Council without unnecessary delay upon
matters referred to them. All Council Committees so created shall sunset at
the end of their mission, but in all events shall be reviewed at the end of a
period three years from the date of initial creation, and at the end of each
subsequent three year period after reauthorization, and at such time shall
either be reauthorized or dissolved.

Membership. Membership on such Council Committees shall include only
sitting Councilors, who shall be appointed by the Presiding Officer, subject to
confirmation by the Council. Council Committee appointments shall be for a
term of one year, and Councilors may be reappointed for an indefinite
number of terms.

Meetings. Council Committee meetings may be called by the Chairman, or
by any two members. A majority of the members of a Committee shall
constitute a quorum to do business.

Committee of the Whole. There shall be one standing committee of the
Council, which shall be known as the Committee of the Whole. This
committee shall sit as a body for investigation or study, as the need may be.

Rules of the City Council - Page 13

Attachment #2

Agenda ltem #9



The committee shall not take any official action which in committee, but shall
make findings which shall be the basis of further Council action.

3.25 Meetings Subject to Oregon Open Meetings Law. All meetings of any City
Boards, Commissions, and Lay-Committees or Council Committee shall be
subject to and comply with the Oregon Public Meetings law;-ORS-192.610-
492.710.

3.26 Quorums. A majority of the then sitting members of any City Board,
Commission, or Lay-Committee or Council Committee shall constitute a
quorum to do business.

3.2.7 Registry. The Deputy Recorder shall prepare, keep current and retain on
file in the Office of the Deputy Recorder a list of all appointees to all City
Boards, Commissions, Lay-Committees and Council Committees, the date
of their appointment, the length of their unexpired term, and their addresses
and phone numbers. All councilors shall be given a copy of this list at least
once yearly, or upon any substantial change in membership of any City
Board, Commission, Lay-Committee or Council Committee.

INTERACTION WITH CITY STAFF

Based on the City Charter, the City utilizes the Council-Manager form of government which
combines the strong political leadership of local elected officials (mayor and councilors

City Council)) with the strong managerial experience of an appointed manager. All power
and authority to set policy rests with the City Council. The City Council in turn hires a
nonpartisan manager who has very broad authority to run the organization.

All Council members will respect the separation between the Council’s role and the City
Manager’s responsibilities by:

1) Refraining from interfering with the day-to-day administration of city business,
which is the responsibility of the City Manager.

2) Working together as a team within a spirit of mutual confidence and support.

3) Respecting the administrative functions of the City manager and department heads
by refraining from actions which could undermine their authority. The Council will
abide by the City Charter in its dealings with the City Manager.

4) Limiting individual inquiries and requests for information from staff or department
heads to those questions that may be answered readily as part of staff's day-to-day
responsibilities. Questions of a more complex nature will be directed to the City

Manager. Questions from individual Council members requiring significant staff
time or resources (two hours or more) should normally require approval of the

Council, although the City Manager may determine to follow up on requests from
individual Councilors.

Rules of the City Council - Page 14

Attachment #2

Agenda ltem #9



5) Councilors should never express concerns about the performance of a City
employee in public, to the employee directly, or other city employees. Comments
about staff performance should only be made to the City Manager through private
correspondence or conversation.

6) Nothing in this section precludes Council members from obtaining information and
asking questions during Council meetings or from evaluating the performance of
the City Manager.

5. PUBLIC RECORDS / EMAILS

5.1 Public Record Defined. A public record includes any document, book, paper,
photograph, file, sound recording, machine readable electronic record or other

material, regardless of physical form or characteristics, made, received, filed or
recorded in_connection with the transaction of public business, whether or not

confidential or restricted in use.

5.2 Electronic Records. All communications on electronic office equipment have the
same public records character as they would have had they been sent on paper.
Any electronic communications that may be exempt from disclosure under state
public records law should be clearly marked as confidential and exempt from
disclosure. Electronic records in_any way relating to the business of the city
created on electronic equipment not owned or provided by the city may also be
subject review and disclosure under Oregon Public Records law.

5.3 Public Records. Public records created or received by Council members,
including electronic mail messages, will be retained in accordance with Oregon
Public Records Law and the rules of the Secretary of State and State Archivist.

5.4 Electronic Communications between Councilors. City Councilors will be
provided a City email account specifically for City business. While Councilors can
communicate amongst themselves via email, those emails may not include a
quorum and may not be forwarded to others in a manner which creates a quorum.
All emails must be copied to the City Recorder for retention purposes.

6. AMENDMENTS TO COUNCIL RULES

Amendments to these rules shall be by made by resolution.

Rules of the City Council - Page 15

Attachment #2 Agenda ltem #9



Annotated to show the proposed additions and deletions to the existing Council rules.
Proposed deletions are lined-through and proposed additions are double underlined.

Subject matter of the original document was limited to Council meetings and thus it was
formatted off the relevant section of the City Charter. While the rules have been modified
over the years, the original formatting has not been adjusted. The proposed changes
include the necessary reformatting.

Update as of 10/30/2012

RULES OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF COOS BAY

Rules of the Citv.C " ided in the Coos Bav. City Chart

ChapterlV; Section4-1

1. AUTHORIZATION, AMENDMENT, AND WAIVER

These rules are authorized by the City Charter and the Coos Bay Municipal Ordinances.
The Council shall review these rules periodically. Amendments shall be adopted by
ordinance, as required by the Charter. The Council rules are not intended to replace or
supersede any applicable federal or state laws or regulations or provisions of the City
Charter. The Council may by majority vote in an open Council meeting waive any Council
rule for a specific situation.

2.

2.1

COUNCIL MEETINGS

Meetings of the Council

211

Regular Council Meetings. The Council shall hold two regular meetings,
on the first and third Tuesday of each month, except in those cases where
the Council finds it necessary to designate another date due to conflicts.
Regular meetings shall be convened in the City Council Chambers in the
City Hall, and shall be called to order at 7:00 p.m., and shall adjourn no
later than 10:00 p.m.

Executive Sessions. Executive sessions may be called by the Presiding
Officer, any two members of the Council, or the City Manager. Executive
sessions shall be held in accordance with Oregon law. Only Council
members, the City Manager, and persons specifically invited by the Council
or the City Manager shall be allowed to attend executive sessions.
Representatives of recognized news media may attend executive sessions,
other than those sessions during which the Council conducts deliberations
with persons designated to carry on labor negotiations. No matter
discussed during executive session may be disclosed by any person
present during such session, pursuant to State Statutes. No elected

official who declares an actual conflict of interest on a topic to be
discussed in executive session shall remain in the room during such

Attachment #3

Agenda ltem #9



executive session discussion.

Prior to opening an executive session, the Presiding Officer shall:

1) Announce the purpose of the executive session

2) Announce if the Council intends on returning to an opening
meeting at the conclusion of the executive session.

3) State statute authorizing the executive session,

4) Make notification to all present including the media that matters
discussed in executive session are not to be disclosed or

reported to the public.

An _executive session may be held during any open meeting for which
proper notice has been given or outside of any regular meeting when
properly noticed. No formal or final action may be taken during an
executive session, but an opinion or consensus of the Council may be
gathered.

213 Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the Presiding
Officer, by request of any three two Councilors, or by the City Manager.
Written notice of all special meetings shall be given at least twenty-four
hours in advance of the scheduled meetings. Notice shall be given to each
Councilor, the City Manager, and the business office of each local
newspaper and radio and television station which has on file a written
request for notice of special meetings, and may be delivered by mail, email,
electronic facsimile (FAX), or by personal delivery.

214 Work Sessions. Work sessions may be called by the Presiding Officer, by
request of any two Councilors, or by the City Manager. Such sessions shall
allow the City Council an opportunity to review forthcoming projects of the
City, determine goals for the ensuing year, receive progress reports on
current programs or_projects, or to hold open discussions on any City-
related subject provided that all discussions thereon shall be informal with
no vote or formal action taken. While work sessions shall be open to the

public, public testimony will only be allowed at the discretion of the
Presiding Officer or by a majority vote of the Council members.

215 Emergency Meeting. An “emergency meeting” is a special meeting called
on less than 24 hours’ notice. An “actual emergency,” a random event

which requires immediate action, must exist. The minutes of the meeting
must describe the emergency justifying less than 24 hours’ noticed.
Attempts will be made to contact the media to provide notice of the
emergency meeting.

2.2 Meeting Rules

221 Rules of Order. Unless otherwise provided by law or by these rules, the
procedure for Council meetings shall be governed by Robert's Rules of
Order.

Attachment #3 Agenda ltem #9



23

2.4

222

223

224

225

Construction of Rules of Order. The Council has an obligation to the
citizens to be clear and simple in its procedures and in the consideration of
the questions coming before it. Therefore, the rules of procedure should be
liberally construed to that purpose, and Councilors should avoid invoking
the finer points of parliamentary procedure when such points serve only to
obscure the issues before the Council as a whole, and confuse the
audience at public meetings and the citizens in general.

Public—Attendance: Public Meetings Law.—Al—regular—and—special
meetings-shall-be-open-to-the-public—All meetings of the Council will be
held in accordance with the Oregon public meeting requirements. No
final action by the Council shall have legal effect unless the motion and
the vote by which it is disposed of take place at a proceeding that is
open to the public.

Anonymous Communications. Anonymous and  unsigned
communications shall not be introduced in Council meetings.

Suspension of Rules. No rule shall be suspended except by the vote of
the maijority of Councilors present at the meeting. A motion to suspend a
rule is not debatable.

The Presiding Officer

2.3.1

2.3.2

2.3.3

The Mayor. The Mayor shall preside at all regular and special meetings
and executive sessions of the Council and shall be the recognized head of
the City for all ceremonial purposes. The Mayor shall have all duties and
privileges of any Councilor, and shall not be denied any right or privilege by
reason of his or her position as presiding officer.

Council President. In the Mayor's absence from any Council meeting, the
president shall act as the presiding officer. Whenever the Mayor is unable,
on account of absence, illness or other cause, to perform the functions of
the office, the President shall act as Mayor Pro Tem. At the first meeting
after each general biennial election, the Council shall by ballot elect a
president from its membership as required by the City Charter.

Temporary Chairman. In event of the absence of the Mayor and Council
President, the Deputy Recorder shall call the Council to order and call the
roll of the members; if a quorum is present, those Councilors present shall
elect, by majority vote, a Temporary Chairman for that meeting. Should the
Mayor or Council President arrive, the Temporary Chairman shall relinquish
the chair immediately upon the conclusion of the item of business then in
consideration before the Council.

Employee Duties at Meetings of the Council

241

City Manager. The City Manager shall attend all meetings of the Council,
unless excused by the Council. He or she shall make recommendations to
the Council and shall take part in all discussions concerning the welfare of

Attachment #3

Agenda ltem #9



2.5

242

243

244

245

the City.

Deputy Recorder. The Deputy Recorder shall be the Clerk for the Council
and shall keep minutes of meetings and shall perform such other duties at
the meetings as ordered by the Presiding Officer, the Council or the City
Manager. The Deputy Recorder shall furnish each Councilor with a copy of
the minutes of each preceding meeting in the agenda packet for the next
meeting.

City Attorney. The City Attorney shall either in person or by deputy attend
alt regular Council sessions and other meetings of the Council as directed
by the city manager. Any member of the Council may at any time call upon
the City Attorney for an informal oral opinion. Written opinions shall be
authorized by a majority of the Council. The City Attorney shall be the
Parliamentarian, and shall advise the Presiding Officer on any questions of
order.

The Chief of Police. The Chief of Police or his designee shall attend each
Council meeting, and serve as the Sergeant-at-Arms. For the purpose of
retaining order and decorum at the Council meetings, the Sergeant-at-Arms
shall carry out all orders or instructions upon direction of the Presiding
Officer, or upon any other procedure specifically provided by these rules, as
allowed by law.

Officers and Employees. Any member of the City Council may request
that the City Manager direct any employee to attend regular, special or
executive meetings to confer with the Council on matters relating to the
City.

DECORUM AND ORDER

251

252

253

254

Presiding Officer. The Presiding Officer shall preserve decorum and
decide all points of order, subject to appeal to the Council.

Councilors. Councilors shall preserve order and decorum during Council
meetings, and shall not, by conversation or other action, delay or interrupt
the proceedings or refuse to obey the orders of the Presiding Officer or
these Rules. Councilors shall, when addressing staff or members of the
public, confine themselves to questions or issues then under discussion,
shall not engage in personal attacks, shall not impugn the motives of any
speaker, and shall at all times, while in session or otherwise, conduct
themselves in a manner appropriate to the dignity of their office.

Staff and Public. Members of the administrative staff, employees of the
City and other persons attending Council meetings shall observe the same
rules of procedure, decorum and good conduct applicable to the members
of the Council.

Removal of Any Person. Any person who makes personal, impertinent,

slanderous or unauthorized remarks or who becomes boisterous while
addressing the Council or attending a Council meeting shall be removed

Attachment #3

Agenda ltem #9



255

from the room if the Sergeant-at-Arms is so directed by the Presiding
Officer. In case the Presiding Officer should fail to act, any member of the
Council may obtain the floor and move to require enforcement of this rule;
upon affirmative vote of the majority of the Council present, the Sergeant-
at-Arms shall be authorized to remove the person or persons, as if the
Presiding Officer so directed. Such person or persons may be barred from
further audience before the Council and, in aggravated cases, an
appropriate complaint shall be issued by the Presiding Officer and the
person or persons prosecuted.

Censure. The Council has the inherent right to make and enforce its own
rules and to ensure compliance with those laws generally applicable to
public bodies. Should any Councilor act in any manner constituting a
substantial violation of these rules or other general laws, the Council, acting
as a whole, may discipline that Councilor to the extent provided by law,
including public reprimand.

To exercise such inherent right, the Council has the right to investigate the
actions of any member of the Council. Such investigation shall be referred
to the Committee of the Whole upon a finding that a reasonable ground
exists that a substantial violation has occurred.

The Committee of the Whole shall investigate the actions in executive
session, and present a report to the Council in executive session, unless
the Councilor requests the matter to be held in an open meeting. If held in
and executive session, Nneither the Committee of the Whole nor the
Council or any member thereof shall have the right to make public any
information obtained through such investigation.

Any member accused of a substantial violation of Council rules or any other
general law shall have the right to present a defense to the allegations,
including the right to present rebuttal evidence, and to have representation
by counsel. Upon finding, by a moral certainty, that a substantial violation
has occurred, and that such violation affects the Councilor's ability to
represent the interests of the City as a whole, the Council may, upon
unanimous vote of Councilors other than the Councilor subject to censure
proceedings, impose a proper sanction.

2.6 Duties and Privileges of Council Members

2.6.1.

26.2

Code of Ethics. Councilors shall conduct themselves so as to bring credit
upon the City as a whole, and to set an example of good ethical conduct for
all citizens of the community. Councilors should constantly bear in mind
these responsibilities to the entire electorate, and refrain from actions
benefitting any individual or special interest group at the expense of the City
as a whole. Councilors should likewise do everything in their power to
insure impartial application of the law to all citizens, and equal treatment of
each citizen before the law, without regard to race, national origin, sex,
social station or economic position.

Debate. Any Councilor who has the floor shall confine himself or herself to

Attachment #3

Agenda ltem #9



2.7

the question under debate, avoid personalities and refrain from impugning
the motives of any member argument or vote. No member shall address the
chair or demand the floor while any vote is being taken.

Councilors shall limit their remarks on a subject to five minutes unless
granted additional time by the Presiding Officer or the majority of the
Council. No Councilor shall be allowed to speak more than once upon any
one subject, until every other member choosing to speak thereon has
spoken.

A Councilor once recognized shall not be interrupted while speaking, unless
called to order by the Presiding Officer, or unless a point of order is raised
by any Councilor while he or she is speaking, in which case he or she shall
cease speaking immediately until the point is determined. If ruled to be in
order he or she shall be permitted to proceed; if ruled to be out of order he
or she shall remain silent or shall alter his or her remarks as to comply with
the ruling.

2.6.3 Right to Appeal. Any member may appeal to the Council from a ruling of
the Presiding Officer, and if the appeal is seconded, the member making
the appeal may briefly state his reason for the appeal and the Presiding
Officer may briefly explain his ruling; but there shall be no debate on the
appeal and no other member shall participate in the discussion. The
Presiding Officer shall then put the question, "Shall the decision of the chair
stand as the decision of the Council?" If the majority of the members vote
Aye, the ruling of the chair is sustained; otherwise it is overruled.

264 Dissent and Protest. Any Councilor shall have the right to express dissent
from or protest against any Ordinance, Resolution or decision of Council
and have the reason therefore, entered upon the Council minutes. Such
dissent or protest must be filed in writing, couched in respectful language
and presented to Council not later than the next regular meeting following
the date of passage or the Ordinance, Resolution or decision objected to.

2.6.5 Excusal During the Meeting. No member may leave the Council meeting
while in regular session without permission from the Presiding Officer.

2.6.6 Personal Privilege. The right of a member to address the Council on a
question of personal privilege shall be limited to cases in which his integrity,
character or motives are assailed, questioned or impugned.

ORDER OF BUSINESS AND AGENDA

271 Order of Business. The business of all regular meetings of the Council
shall be transacted as follows; provided, however that when it appears to
be in the best interest of the public, the Presiding Officer may change the
Order of Business:

1) Flag Salute
2) special-orders-ofbusiness Public Comments

3) Consent Calendar

Attachment #3 Agenda ltem #9



N

0 N O W»n

9

1

) eitizen-requested-agenda-items Special Orders of Business
(proclamations & presentations)

) Public Hearings

) Public Contracts and Purchasing

) Ordinances and Resolutions

) Miscellaneous ltems (including policy discussion and
determination)

) public-comments-City Attorney’s Report
city-atterney'srepert City Manager's Report
city-manager'sreport Mayor and Council Comments

10)
1)

2) rayerand-council-comments Executive Session
13)

Executive-Session Adjournment

14)-Adjeurnment

2.7.2 Agendas.

2.7.21

2722

2723

2724

2725

2.7.26

2727

Staff shall prepare an agenda for every regular, and if requested, for
every special Council meeting.

Agendas and informational material for regular meetings shall be
distributed to the Council at least four days prior to the meeting.

The City Manager or Mayor may change the agenda at any time
prior to the start of the Council meeting, and the presiding officer

may change the agenda after the start of the meeting. A request to
add an item fer-Ceuncil-censideration to the Council agenda may be

presented at the Council meeting but shall require a majority
concurrence of the members present to be so added.

The Mayor or a Counselor who wishes to have an item placed on
the written council agenda will advise the City Manager at least one
week prior to the meeting. The City Manager shall determine where

the item is placed on the agenda as an action item or as a
discussion item.

A Council member who wishes to have staff undertake major
research or drafting to prepare an action item shall raise the issue at
a Council meeting, and the City Manager will take direction from the
Council as a whole. The Council should consider requests from

individual Council members in light of Council goals and priorities
and staff workload and availability. Direction to proceed with an
item does not commit the Council or any individual Council member

to supporting an action when it comes before Council for a final
decision.

New business brought before the Council in a meeting may be
referred to the City Manager for a report at a future Council meeting.

Placing a matter for reconsideration on an agenda will require a

motion to reconsider an action of the City Council and must be
made by a member who voted with the prevailing side. It can be

Attachment #3

Agenda ltem #9



seconded by any member. No question shall be twice reconsidered
except by unanimous vote of the City Council except that action

relating to any contract may be reconsidered at any time before the
final execution thereof.

273 Special Orders of Business. Agenda items that are of special
importance to the Council may be treated as Special Orders of Business.
Special Orders of Business agenda items take precedence over all other
items except the Flag Salute, Public Comments, and the Consent Calendar.

2.7.4 Consent Calendar. The approval of minutes, and other routine agenda
items may be placed on the Consent Calendar. Discussion of the Consent
Calendar shall be limited to five minutes. Any item may be removed from
the Calendar and placed in its otherwise appropriate position in the order of
business at the request of the Presiding Officer or of any two members of
the Council.

CONSIDERATION OF BUSINESS

2.8.1 Quorum. A majority of the Council shall constitute a quorum to do
business. A lesser number may meet and adjourn from time to time and
compel the attendance of absent members.

2.8.2 Voting. Unless otherwise provided by statute, ordinance or resolution, all
votes shall be taken by voice; provided, however, upon demand by any
member of the Council, a roll call vote shall be made upon any question
before the Council. No Councilor may explain the reasons for his or her
vote during the roll call.

283 Procedure Generally. When the question has been called for the
Presiding Officer shall first ask for the Ayes followed by the Noes. After a
vote has been taken the Presiding Officer shall announce the results of the
vote.

284 Voting Required. Every member present when a question is called shall
vote either Aye or No, unless the Council, by unanimous consent, excuses
a member for a special reason or unless a member has a conflict of interest
under applicable law, in which case no consent is required. There shall be
no debate on such a request. If any member declines to vote, and the result
of such action would be to create a tie, that member's vote shall be counted
as an aye; in all other situations, that member's vote shall be counted with
the majority.

whele—membe#shm—ef—the—@euneﬂ Cc t [r1]: This is inconsistent with
section 4.5 of the Charter, which states that the
vote of the majority of the Council present is

2.8.5 Ayes and Noes. On the passage of every Ordinance the vote shall be needed to pass any question before the
taken by Ayes and Noes and entered upon the record. Council.
2.8.6 Tie Vote. In case of a tie in votes of any proposal, the proposal shall be

Attachment #3 Agenda ltem #9



considered lost.

2.9 PUBLIC COMMENT

2.9.1

292

293

294

295

Policy. The Council recognizes that public input into the governmental
process is an invaluable aid to informed decision making. Therefore, it is
the policy of the Council that all citizens shall have the right to speak before
the Council on matters of public concern, but each citizen shall be
responsible for abuse of such right. Consequently, to ensure that the
greater public interest is fostered, each citizen or group of citizens who
desires to speak before the Council shall have the duty to exercise this right
in a manner which furthers the greater public interest.

Public Comment Generally. Any member of the general public wishing to
address the Council on a matter of public concern may do so at the time set
for public comments during each regular session of the Council. Any
member so addressing the Council shall be limited to a period of five
minutes within which to make themselves heard. The Council, in its sole
discretion, may extend this time, or may request further information be
presented to the Council on such date and in such manner as it deems
appropriate.

Persons Sharing Common Concerns. If any group of three or more
persons sharing a common viewpoint on any subject wishes to address the
Council during the time for public comment, the group shall select a
spokesperson, who shall present the views of the group to the Council. The
Council, in its sole discretion, may request to hear the views of additional
speakers from the group. Additional support for the views of the group, in
the form of petitions, letter, videotapes, etc., may be presented to the
Council for consideration at the conclusion of the spokesperson's remarks.

Roster. All persons or groups wishing to address the Council during the
time set for public comments shall, prior to the convening of the meeting,
sign the roster provided by the Deputy Recorder, indicating the name of the
person, the residence of the person, and the subject of public concern on
which the persons or groups wishes to address the Council.

Complaints and suggestions to the Council. When any citizen brings a
complaint before or makes a suggestion to the Council, other than for items
already on the agenda, the Presiding Officer shall first determine whether
the issue is legislative or administrative in nature and then:

1) If legislative, and a complaint about the letter or intent of
legislative acts or suggestions for changes to such acts, and if the
Council finds such complaint suggests a change to an ordinance
or resolution of the City, the Council may refer the matter to the
City Attorney, a committee, the City Manager or the Committee of
the Whole for study and recommendation.

2) If administrative, and a complaint regarding administrative staff
performance, administrative execution or interpretation of

Attachment #3

Agenda ltem #9



legislative policy, or administrative policy within the authority of the
City Manager, the Presiding Officer shall then refer the complaint
directly to the City Manager for his or her review if the complaint
has not already been reviewed. The Council may direct the City
Manager to report to the Council when his review has been made.

2.10 PROCEDURE FOR COUNCIL MEETINGS

2.101

2.10.2

2.10.3

2104

2.10.5

2.10.6

2.10.7

Convening the Meeting. At the time appointed, the presiding officer shall
take the chair at the hour appointed for the Council to meet and shall
immediately call the members to order. The Recorder shall enter in the
minutes of the meeting the names of the members present.

Recognition. Every Councilor desiring to speak shall first address the
chair, and await recognition to obtain the floor. No persons other than
members of the Council and the person having the floor shall enter into any
discussion, either directly or through a member of the Council without the
permission of the Presiding Officer.

Requirement of a Second before Debate. No motion shall be debated
until it has been seconded and announced by the Presiding Officer.

Motions Reduced to Writing. Any Councilor may request that a motion
be reduced to writing and read by the Deputy Recorder.

Council Questions to Staff. Every Councilor desiring to question the
administrative staff shall address his or her question to the City Manager,
who shall be entitled to either answer the inquiries or designate some
member of the staff for that purpose. Questions of the City Attorney may
be directed to the City Attorney.

Citizen Participation. Citizens desiring to address the Council shall first
be recognized by the chair and shall limit remarks to the question then
under discussion. All remarks and questions shall be addressed to the
Council as a whole and not to any individual Councilor thereof. Any
remarks and questions regarding administration of the City shall be referred
to the City Manager by the Presiding Officer.

Precedence of Motions. When a question is before the Council no motion
shall be entertained except:

1) To abide by the rules

2) To adjourn

3) Tolay on the table

4) For the previous question

5) To postpone to a certain date
6) Torefer

7) To amend

8) To postpone indefinitely

These motions shall have precedence in the order indicated. Any such

Attachment #3

Agenda ltem #9



motion except a motion to amend shall be put to a vote without debate.

2.10.8  Motions to be Stated by Presiding Officer/Withdrawal. WWhen a motion is
made and seconded it shall be stated by the originator or the Presiding
Officer_if requested, before debate. A motion may not be withdrawn
without the consent of the member seconding it the motion.

2.10.9 Motion to Adjourn--When Not in Order--When Not Debatable. A
motion to adjourn will be in order at any time except as follows:

1) When made as an interruption of a member while speaking
2) When the previous question has been ordered
3) While a vote is being taken

A motion to adjourn is debatable only as to the time to which the meeting is
adjourned.

2.10.10 Motion to Lay on the Table. A motion to lay on the table shall preclude all
amendments or debate of the subject under consideration. If the motion
shall prevail, consideration of the subject may be resumed only upon
motion of a member voting with the majority and with the consent of
two-thirds of the members present.

2.10.11 Division of Question. If the question contains two or more divisionable
propositions the Presiding Officer may upon request of the members shall,
divide the same.

2.10.12 Motion to Postpone. All motions to postpone excepting to postpone
indefinitely, may be amended as to time. If a motion to postpone
indefinitely is carried, the principal question shall be declared defeated.

2.10.13 Adjourned Meetings. Upon motion and majority vote of Council members
present, any meeting of the Council may be continued or adjourned from
day to day or for more than one day, provided that no adjournment shall be
for a period longer than until the next regular meeting thereafter.

3. CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, LAY-COMMITTEES AND COUNCIL COMMITTEES

3.1

City Boards, Commissions, and Lay-Committees. Unless otherwise provided by
statute, ordinance or resolution, the following shall be the procedure for the creation
of and appointments to all City Boards, Commissions, and Lay-Committees:

3.1.1 Creation and Dissolution. At any time, the Council may by motion
ordinance or resolution establish any City Board, Commission or Lay-
Committee deemed necessary and in the best interests of the City. Any
committee so created may contain one or more Councilors as a liaison(s) or
members.

Attachment #3

Agenda ltem #9



3.1.2

Unless otherwise provided, all City Boards, Commissions, and Lay-
Committees so created shall sunset at the end of their mission, but in all
events shall be reviewed at the end of a period three years from the date of
initial creation, and at the end of each subsequent three year period after
reauthorization, and at such time shall either be reauthorized or dissolved.

Qualifications. All appointees to City Boards, Commissions and Lay-
Committees shall be registered electors, and shall have resided in the City
of Coos Bay for a period of one year. No appointee may serve on more than
two City Boards, Commissions or Committees at any one time. No
appointee should serve on more than two City Boards, Commissions, and
Lay-Committees simultaneously. No appointee may serve as a chair of
more than one City Board, Commission, or Lay-Committee at any one time.

Term. The term of all appointments shall be for three years. Appointments
may be renewed for any number of terms.

Vacancies. Any qualified citizen may submit a letter of interest for any open
position on a City Board, Commission, or Lay-Committee. Vacancies shall
be advertised in the local media, and letter of interest shall be received only
during the time set forth in the advertisement.

Nomination and Confirmation. Nominations for positions on City Boards,
Commissions, or Lay-Committees may be made by the Mayor, or by any two
Councilors, and shall be subject to confirmation by the Council. Such
nominations shall be in writing, and shall be submitted for consideration at
least one week prior to the scheduled date for confirmation. Confirmation
may be made by written ballot and shall require majority vote. Nominations

may also be made by application.

Notification of Expiration of Terms. The Deputy Recorder shall give
written notice to the Council of the expiration of the term of office of all
members of City Boards, Commissions and Lay-Committees at least thirty
(30) days prior to expiration date of any appointee's term of office.

Removal. All lay members of City Boards, Commissions or Lay-Committees
serve at the pleasure of the Council except as otherwise provided by law. All
council seats on City Board of Commissions or Lay-Committees are
reserved for sitting Councilors; upon expiration of any Councilor's term, or
upon resignation, removal or death, the Councilor's seat on any City Board,
Commission or Lay-Committee occupied by that person shall be
immediately declared vacant, and a sitting Councilor appointed as a
replacement.

Attachment #3

Agenda ltem #9



3.2 Council Committees

3.21

3.2.2

323

3.24

325

3.26

3.2.7

Creation and Dissolution. Council Committees may be created at any time
by resolution or motion. All Council Committees shall have a Chairman and
Secretary, who may be either appointed by the Mayor, or by a majority vote
of the members of the committee in the absence of such appointment. Such
committee shall report to the Council without unnecessary delay upon
matters referred to them. All Council Committees so created shall sunset at
the end of their mission, but in all events shall be reviewed at the end of a
period three years from the date of initial creation, and at the end of each
subsequent three year period after reauthorization, and at such time shall
either be reauthorized or dissolved.

Membership. Membership on such Council Committees shall include only
sitting Councilors, who shall be appointed by the Presiding Officer, subject to
confirmation by the Council. Council Committee appointments shall be for a
term of one year, and Councilors may be reappointed for an indefinite
number of terms.

Meetings. Council Committee meetings may be called by the Chairman, or
by any two members. A majority of the members of a Committee shall
constitute a quorum to do business.

Committee of the Whole. There shall be one standing committee of the
Council, which shall be known as the Committee of the Whole. This
committee shall sit as a body for investigation or study, as the need may be.
The committee shall not take any official action which in committee, but shall
make findings which shall be the basis of further Council action.

Meetings Subject to Oregon Open Meetings Law. All meetings of any City
Boards, Commissions, and Lay-Committees or Council Committee shall be
subject to and comply with the Oregon Public Meetings law-ORS-192.640-
492.710.

Quorums. A majority of the then sitting members of any City Board,
Commission, or Lay-Committee or Council Committee shall constitute a
quorum to do business.

Registry. The Deputy Recorder shall prepare, keep current and retain on
file in the Office of the Deputy Recorder a list of all appointees to all City
Boards, Commissions, Lay-Committees and Council Committees, the date
of their appointment, the length of their unexpired term, and their addresses
and phone numbers. All councilors shall be given a copy of this list at least
once yearly, or upon any substantial change in membership of any City
Board, Commission, Lay-Committee or Council Committee.

Attachment #3

Agenda ltem #9



4. INTERACTION WITH CITY STAFF

Based on the City Charter, the City utilizes the Council-Manager form of government which
combines the strong political leadership of local elected officials (mayor and councilors

City Council)) with the strong managerial experience of an appointed manager. All power
and authority to set policy rests with the City Council. The City Council in turn hires a

nonpartisan manager who has very broad authority to run the organization.

All Council members will respect the separation between the Council’'s role and the City
Manager’s responsibilities by:

1) Refraining from interfering with the day-to-day administration of city business,
which is the responsibility of the City Manager.

2) Working together as a team within a spirit of mutual confidence and support.
3) Respecting the administrative functions of the City manager and department heads

by refraining from actions which could undermine their authority. The Council will
abide by the City Charter in its dealings with the City Manager.

4) Limiting individual inquiries and requests for information from staff or department
heads to those guestions that may be answered readily as part of staff's day-to-day
responsibilities. Questions of a more complex nature will be directed to the City
Manager. Questions from individual Council members requiring significant staff

time or resources (two hours or more) should normally require approval of the

Council, although the City Manager may determine to follow up on requests from
individual Councilors.

5) Councilors should never express concerns about the performance of a City
employee in public, to the employee directly, or other city employees. Comments
about staff performance should only be made to the City Manager through private
correspondence or conversation.

6) Nothing in this section precludes Council members from obtaining information and
asking questions during Council meetings or from evaluating the performance of
the City Manager.

5. PUBLIC RECORDS / EMAILS

5.1 Public Record Defined. A public record includes any document, book, paper
photograph, file, sound recording, machine readable electronic record or other

material, regardless of physical form or characteristics, made, received, filed or
recorded in_connection with the transaction of public business, whether or not

confidential or restricted in use.

5.2 Electronic Records. All communications on electronic office equipment have the
same public records character as they would have had they been sent on paper.
Any electronic communications that may be exempt from disclosure under state

Attachment #3 Agenda ltem #9



public records law should be clearly marked as confidential and exempt from
disclosure. Electronic records in any way relating to the business of the city
created on electronic equipment not owned or provided by the city may also be
subject review and disclosure under Oregon Public Records law.

5.3 Public Records. Public records created or received by Council members,
including electronic mail messages, will be retained in accordance with Oregon
Public Records Law and the rules of the Secretary of State and State Archivist.

5.4 Electronic Communications between Councilors. City Councilors will be
provided a City email account specifically for City business. While Councilors can
communicate amongst themselves via email, those emails may not include a
quorum and may not be forwarded to others in a manner which creates a quorum.
All emails must be copied to the City Recorder for retention purposes.

6. AMENDMENTS TO COUNCIL RULES

Amendments to these rules shall be by made by resolution.

Attachment #3 Agenda ltem #9



City of Coos Bay

Resolution 12-23

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COOS BAY, COOS COUNTY, OREGON AMENDING
THE RULES OF THE CITY COUNCIL AS PROVIDED IN THE CITY CHARTER,
CHAPTERIV, AS ALLOWED BY THE COOS BAY CITY CHARTER AND THE OREGON
REVISED STATUES.

WHEREAS, Resolution 83-1 adopted December 29, 1983 and amended on
December 1, 1986, March 23, 1987, October 17, 1995, and December 5, 2000 sets forth
the rules by which the City Council conducts its business; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it desirable to amend the resolution to reflect
changes which they chose to make in the rules;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Coos Bay City Council
hereby adopts the amended Council Rules which are attached hereto and made a part
thereby.

The foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Coos
Bay, Coos County, Oregon this 6" day of November 2012.

Crystal Shoji, Mayor

ATTEST:

Susanne Baker, City Recorder

Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



RULES OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF COOS BAY

AUTHORIZATION, AMENDMENT, AND WAIVER

These rules are authorized by the City Charter and the Coos Bay Municipal Ordinances.
The Council shall review these rules periodically. Amendments shall be adopted by
ordinance, as required by the Charter. The Council rules are not intended to replace or
supersede any applicable federal or state laws or regulations or provisions of the City
Charter. The Council may by majority vote in an open Council meeting waive any Council
rule for a specific situation.

COUNCIL MEETINGS
2.1 Meetings of the Council

211 Regular Council Meetings. The Council shall hold two regular meetings,
on the first and third Tuesday of each month, except in those cases where
the Council finds it necessary to designate another date due to conflicts.
Regular meetings shall be convened in the City Council Chambers in the
City Hall, and shall be called to order at 7:00 p.m., and shall adjourn no
later than 10:00 p.m.

21.2 Executive Sessions. Executive sessions may be called by the Presiding
Officer, any two members of the Council, or the City Manager. Executive
sessions shall be held in accordance with Oregon law. Only Council
members, the City Manager, and persons specifically invited by the Council
or the City Manager shall be allowed to attend executive sessions.
Representatives of recognized news media may attend executive sessions,
other than those sessions during which the Council conducts deliberations
with persons designated to carry on labor negotiations. No matter
discussed during executive session may be disclosed by any person
present during such session, pursuant to State Statutes. No elected official
who declares an actual conflict of interest on a topic to be discussed in
executive session shall remain in the room during such executive session
discussion.

Prior to opening an executive session, the Presiding Officer shall:

1) Announce the purpose of the executive session,

2) Announce if the Council intends on returning to an opening
meeting at the conclusion of the executive session.

3) State statute authorizing the executive session,

4) Make notification to all present including the media that matters
discussed in executive session are not to be disclosed or reported
to the public.

An executive session may be held during any open meeting for which

proper notice has been given or outside of any regular meeting when

Rules of the City Council - Page 1
Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



2.2

properly noticed. No formal or final action may be taken during an executive
session, but an opinion or consensus of the Council may be gathered.

213 Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the Presiding
Officer, by request of any three two Councilors, or by the City Manager.
Written notice of all special meetings shall be given at least twenty-four
hours in advance of the scheduled meetings. Notice shall be given to each
Councilor, the City Manager, and the business office of each local
newspaper and radio and television station which has on file a written
request for notice of special meetings, and may be delivered by mail, email,
electronic facsimile (FAX), or by personal delivery.

214 Work Sessions. Work sessions may be called by the Presiding Officer, by
request of any two Councilors, or by the City Manager. Such sessions shall
allow the City Council an opportunity to review forthcoming projects of the
City, determine goals for the ensuing year, receive progress reports on
current programs or projects, or to hold open discussions on any City-
related subject provided that all discussions thereon shall be informal with
no vote or formal action taken. While work sessions shall be open to the
public, public testimony will only be allowed at the discretion of the
Presiding Officer or by a majority vote of the Council members.

215 Emergency Meeting. An “emergency meeting” is a special meeting called
on less than 24 hours’ notice. An “actual emergency,” a random event
which requires immediate action, must exist. The minutes of the meeting
must describe the emergency justifying less than 24 hours’ noticed.
Attempts will be made to contact the media to provide notice of the
emergency meeting.

Meeting Rules

2.2.1 Rules of Order. Unless otherwise provided by law or by these rules, the
procedure for Council meetings shall be governed by Robert's Rules of
Order.

222 Construction of Rules of Order. The Council has an obligation to the
citizens to be clear and simple in its procedures and in the consideration of
the questions coming before it. Therefore, the rules of procedure should be
liberally construed to that purpose, and Councilors should avoid invoking
the finer points of parliamentary procedure when such points serve only to
obscure the issues before the Council as a whole, and confuse the
audience at public meetings and the citizens in general.

223 Public Meetings Law. All meetings of the Council will be held in
accordance with the Oregon public meeting requirements. No final action
by the Council shall have legal effect unless the motion and the vote by
which it is disposed of take place at a proceeding that is open to the public.

224 Anonymous Communications. Anonymous and  unsigned
communications shall not be introduced in Council meetings.

Rules of the City Council - Page 2
Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



2.3

2.4

225 Suspension of Rules. No rule shall be suspended except by the vote of
the majority of Councilors present at the meeting. A motion to suspend a
rule is not debatable.

The Presiding Officer

2.3.1 The Mayor. The Mayor shall preside at all regular and special meetings
and executive sessions of the Council and shall be the recognized head of
the City for all ceremonial purposes. The Mayor shall have all duties and
privileges of any Councilor, and shall not be denied any right or privilege by
reason of his or her position as presiding officer.

23.2 Council President. In the Mayor's absence from any Council meeting, the
president shall act as the presiding officer. Whenever the Mayor is unable,
on account of absence, illness or other cause, to perform the functions of
the office, the President shall act as Mayor Pro Tem. At the first meeting
after each general biennial election, the Council shall by ballot elect a
president from its membership as required by the City Charter.

2.3.3 Temporary Chairman. In event of the absence of the Mayor and Council
President, the Deputy Recorder shall call the Council to order and call the
roll of the members; if a quorum is present, those Councilors present shall
elect, by majority vote, a Temporary Chairman for that meeting. Should the
Mayor or Council President arrive, the Temporary Chairman shall relinquish
the chair immediately upon the conclusion of the item of business then in
consideration before the Council.

Employee Duties at Meetings of the Council

2.4.1 City Manager. The City Manager shall attend all meetings of the Council,
unless excused by the Council. He or she shall make recommendations to
the Council and shall take part in all discussions concerning the welfare of
the City.

242 Deputy Recorder. The Deputy Recorder shall be the Clerk for the Council
and shall keep minutes of meetings and shall perform such other duties at
the meetings as ordered by the Presiding Officer, the Council or the City
Manager. The Deputy Recorder shall furnish each Councilor with a copy of
the minutes of each preceding meeting in the agenda packet for the next
meeting.

24.3 City Attorney. The City Attorney shall either in person or by deputy attend
regular Council sessions and other meetings of the Council_as directed by
the city manager. Any member of the Council may at any time call upon
the City Attorney for an informal oral opinion. Written opinions shall be
authorized by a maijority of the Council. The City Attorney shall be the
Parliamentarian, and shall advise the Presiding Officer on any questions of
order.

Rules of the City Council - Page 3
Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



2.5

244

24.5

The Chief of Police. The Chief of Police or his designee shall attend each
Council meeting, and serve as the Sergeant-at-Arms. For the purpose of
retaining order and decorum at the Council meetings, the Sergeant-at-Arms
shall carry out all orders or instructions upon direction of the Presiding
Officer, or upon any other procedure specifically provided by these rules, as
allowed by law.

Officers and Employees. Any member of the City Council may request
that the City Manager direct any employee to attend regular, special or
executive meetings to confer with the Council on matters relating to the
City.

DECORUM AND ORDER

2.5.1

252

253

254

255

Presiding Officer. The Presiding Officer shall preserve decorum and
decide all points of order, subject to appeal to the Council.

Councilors. Councilors shall preserve order and decorum during Council
meetings, and shall not, by conversation or other action, delay or interrupt
the proceedings or refuse to obey the orders of the Presiding Officer or
these Rules. Councilors shall, when addressing staff or members of the
public, confine themselves to questions or issues then under discussion,
shall not engage in personal attacks, shall not impugn the motives of any
speaker, and shall at all times, while in session or otherwise, conduct
themselves in a manner appropriate to the dignity of their office.

Staff and Public. Members of the administrative staff, employees of the
City and other persons attending Council meetings shall observe the same
rules of procedure, decorum and good conduct applicable to the members
of the Council.

Removal of Any Person. Any person who makes personal, impertinent,
slanderous or unauthorized remarks or who becomes boisterous while
addressing the Council or attending a Council meeting shall be removed
from the room if the Sergeant-at-Arms is so directed by the Presiding
Officer. In case the Presiding Officer should fail to act, any member of the
Council may obtain the floor and move to require enforcement of this rule;
upon affirmative vote of the majority of the Council present, the Sergeant-
at-Arms shall be authorized to remove the person or persons, as if the
Presiding Officer so directed. Such person or persons may be barred from
further audience before the Council and, in aggravated cases, an
appropriate complaint shall be issued by the Presiding Officer and the
person or persons prosecuted.

Censure. The Council has the inherent right to make and enforce its own
rules and to ensure compliance with those laws generally applicable to
public bodies. Should any Councilor act in any manner constituting a
substantial violation of these rules or other general laws, the Council, acting
as a whole, may discipline that Councilor to the extent provided by law,
including public reprimand.

Rules of the City Council - Page 4

Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



To exercise such inherent right, the Council has the right to investigate the
actions of any member of the Council. Such investigation shall be referred
to the Committee of the Whole upon a finding that a reasonable ground
exists that a substantial violation has occurred.

The Committee of the Whole shall investigate the actions in executive
session, and present a report to the Council in executive session, unless
the Councilor requests the matter to be held in an open meeting. If held in
an executive session, neither the Committee of the Whole nor the Council
or any member thereof shall have the right to make public any information
obtained through such investigation.

Any member accused of a substantial violation of Council rules or any other
general law shall have the right to present a defense to the allegations,
including the right to present rebuttal evidence, and to have representation
by counsel. Upon finding, by a moral certainty, that a substantial violation
has occurred, and that such violation affects the Councilor's ability to
represent the interests of the City as a whole, the Council may, upon
unanimous vote of Councilors other than the Councilor subject to censure
proceedings, impose a proper sanction.

2.6 Duties and Privileges of Council Members

2.6.1. Code of Ethics. Councilors shall conduct themselves so as to bring credit
upon the City as a whole, and to set an example of good ethical conduct for
all citizens of the community. Councilors should constantly bear in mind
these responsibilities to the entire electorate, and refrain from actions
benefitting any individual or special interest group at the expense of the City
as a whole. Councilors should likewise do everything in their power to
insure impartial application of the law to all citizens, and equal treatment of
each citizen before the law, without regard to race, national origin, sex,
social station or economic position.

26.2 Debate. Any Councilor who has the floor shall confine himself or herself to
the question under debate, avoid personalities and refrain from impugning
the motives of any member argument or vote. No member shall address the
chair or demand the floor while any vote is being taken.

Councilors shall limit their remarks on a subject to five minutes unless
granted additional time by the Presiding Officer or the majority of the
Council. No Councilor shall be allowed to speak more than once upon any
one subject, until every other member choosing to speak thereon has
spoken.

A Councilor once recognized shall not be interrupted while speaking, unless
called to order by the Presiding Officer, or unless a point of order is raised
by any Councilor while he or she is speaking, in which case he or she shall
cease speaking immediately until the point is determined. If ruled to be in
order he or she shall be permitted to proceed; if ruled to be out of order he
or she shall remain silent or shall alter his or her remarks as to comply with
the ruling.

Rules of the City Council - Page 5
Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



2.7

2.6.3 Right to Appeal. Any member may appeal to the Council from a ruling of
the Presiding Officer, and if the appeal is seconded, the member making
the appeal may briefly state his reason for the appeal and the Presiding
Officer may briefly explain his ruling; but there shall be no debate on the
appeal and no other member shall participate in the discussion. The
Presiding Officer shall then put the question, "Shall the decision of the chair
stand as the decision of the Council?" If the majority of the members vote
Aye, the ruling of the chair is sustained; otherwise it is overruled.

264 Dissent and Protest. Any Councilor shall have the right to express dissent
from or protest against any Ordinance, Resolution or decision of Council
and have the reason therefore, entered upon the Council minutes. Such
dissent or protest must be filed in writing, couched in respectful language
and presented to Council not later than the next regular meeting following
the date of passage or the Ordinance, Resolution or decision objected to.

26.5 Excusal During the Meeting. No member may leave the Council meeting
while in regular session without permission from the Presiding Officer.

26.6 Personal Privilege. The right of a member to address the Council on a
question of personal privilege shall be limited to cases in which his integrity,
character or motives are assailed, questioned or impugned.

ORDER OF BUSINESS AND AGENDA

2.71 Order of Business. The business of all regular meetings of the Council
shall be transacted as follows; provided, however that when it appears to
be in the best interest of the public, the Presiding Officer may change the
Order of Business:

1) Flag Salute

2) Public Comments

3) Consent Calendar

4) Special Orders of Business (proclamations & presentations)

5) Public Hearings

6) Public Contracts and Purchasing

7) Ordinances and Resolutions

8) Miscellaneous Items (including policy discussion and
determination)

9) City Attorney’s Report

10) City Manager’'s Report

11) Mayor and Council Comments

12) Executive Session

13) Adjournment

~— — N —r

2.7.2 Agendas.

2.7.2.1 Staff shall prepare an agenda for every regular, and if requested, for
every special Council meeting.

Rules of the City Council - Page 6
Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



2.7.2.2 Agendas and informational material for regular meetings shall be
distributed to the Council at least four days prior to the meeting.

2.7.2.3 The City Manager or Mayor may change the agenda at any time
prior to the start of the Council meeting, and the presiding officer
may change the agenda after the start of the meeting. A request to
add an item to the Council agenda may be presented at the Council
meeting but shall require a majority concurrence of the members
present to be so added.

2.7.2.4 The Mayor or a Counselor who wishes to have an item placed on
the written council agenda will advise the City Manager at least one
week prior to the meeting. The City Manager shall determine where
the item is placed on the agenda as an action item or as a
discussion item.

2.7.2.5 A Council member who wishes to have staff undertake major
research or drafting to prepare an action item shall raise the issue at
a Council meeting, and the City Manager will take direction from the
Council as a whole. The Council should consider requests from
individual Council members in light of Council goals and priorities
and staff workload and availability. Direction to proceed with an
item does not commit the Council or any individual Council member
to supporting an action when it comes before Council for a final
decision.

2.7.2.6 New business brought before the Council in a meeting may be
referred to the City Manager for a report at a future Council meeting.

2.7.2.7 Placing a matter for reconsideration on an agenda will require a
motion to reconsider an action of the City Council and must be
made by a member who voted with the prevailing side. It can be
seconded by any member. No question shall be twice reconsidered
except by unanimous vote of the City Council except that action
relating to any contract may be reconsidered at any time before the
final execution thereof.

2.7.3 Special Orders of Business. Agenda items that are of special
importance to the Council may be treated as Special Orders of Business.
Special Orders of Business agenda items take precedence over all other
items except the Flag Salute, Public Comments, and the Consent Calendar.

274 Consent Calendar. The approval of minutes, and other routine agenda
items may be placed on the Consent Calendar. Discussion of the Consent
Calendar shall be limited to five minutes. Any item may be removed from
the Calendar and placed in its otherwise appropriate position in the order of
business at the request of the Presiding Officer or of any two members of
the Council.

2.8 CONSIDERATION OF BUSINESS

Rules of the City Council - Page 7
Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



2.9

2.8.1

2.8.2

2.8.3

284

2.8.5

2.8.6

Quorum. A majority of the Council shall constitute a quorum to do
business. A lesser number may meet and adjourn from time to time and
compel the attendance of absent members.

Voting. Unless otherwise provided by statute, ordinance or resolution, all
votes shall be taken by voice; provided, however, upon demand by any
member of the Council, a roll call vote shall be made upon any question
before the Council. No Councilor may explain the reasons for his or her
vote during the roll call.

Procedure Generally. When the question has been called for the
Presiding Officer shall first ask for the Ayes followed by the Noes. After a
vote has been taken the Presiding Officer shall announce the results of the
vote.

Voting Required. Every member present when a question is called shall
vote either Aye or No, unless the Council, by unanimous consent, excuses
a member for a special reason or unless a member has a conflict of interest
under applicable law, in which case no consent is required. There shall be
no debate on such a request. If any member declines to vote, and the result
of such action would be to create a tie, that member's vote shall be counted
as an aye; in all other situations, that member's vote shall be counted with
the majority.

Ayes and Noes. On the passage of every Ordinance the vote shall be
taken by Ayes and Noes and entered upon the record.

Tie Vote. In case of a tie in votes of any proposal, the proposal shall be
considered lost.

PUBLIC COMMENT

2.9.1

29.2

293

Policy. The Council recognizes that public input into the governmental
process is an invaluable aid to informed decision making. Therefore, it is
the policy of the Council that all citizens shall have the right to speak before
the Council on matters of public concern, but each citizen shall be
responsible for abuse of such right. Consequently, to ensure that the
greater public interest is fostered, each citizen or group of citizens who
desires to speak before the Council shall have the duty to exercise this right
in @ manner which furthers the greater public interest.

Public Comment Generally. Any member of the general public wishing to
address the Council on a matter of public concern may do so at the time set
for public comments during each regular session of the Council. Any
member so addressing the Council shall be limited to a period of five
minutes within which to make themselves heard. The Council, in its sole
discretion, may extend this time, or may request further information be
presented to the Council on such date and in such manner as it deems
appropriate.

Persons Sharing Common Concerns. If any group of three or more

Rules of the City Council - Page 8

Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



persons sharing a common viewpoint on any subject wishes to address the
Council during the time for public comment, the group shall select a
spokesperson, who shall present the views of the group to the Council. The
Council, in its sole discretion, may request to hear the views of additional
speakers from the group. Additional support for the views of the group, in
the form of petitions, letter, videotapes, etc., may be presented to the
Council for consideration at the conclusion of the spokesperson's remarks.

294 Roster. All persons or groups wishing to address the Council during the
time set for public comments shall, prior to the convening of the meeting,
sign the roster provided by the Deputy Recorder, indicating the name of the
person, the residence of the person, and the subject of public concern on
which the persons or groups wishes to address the Council.

295 Complaints and suggestions to the Council. When any citizen brings a
complaint before or makes a suggestion to the Council, other than for items
already on the agenda, the Presiding Officer shall first determine whether
the issue is legislative or administrative in nature and then:

1) If legislative, and a complaint about the letter or intent of
legislative acts or suggestions for changes to such acts, and if the
Council finds such complaint suggests a change to an ordinance
or resolution of the City, the Council may refer the matter to the
City Attorney, a committee, the City Manager or the Committee of
the Whole for study and recommendation.

2) If administrative, and a complaint regarding administrative staff
performance, administrative execution or interpretation of
legislative policy, or administrative policy within the authority of the
City Manager, the Presiding Officer shall then refer the complaint
directly to the City Manager for his or her review if the complaint
has not already been reviewed. The Council may direct the City
Manager to report to the Council when his review has been made.

2.10 PROCEDURE FOR COUNCIL MEETINGS

2.10.1 Convening the Meeting. At the time appointed, the presiding officer shall
take the chair at the hour appointed for the Council to meet and shall
immediately call the members to order. The Recorder shall enter in the
minutes of the meeting the names of the members present.

210.2 Recognition. Every Councilor desiring to speak shall first address the
chair, and await recognition to obtain the floor. No persons other than
members of the Council and the person having the floor shall enter into any
discussion, either directly or through a member of the Council without the
permission of the Presiding Officer.

2.10.3 Requirement of a Second before Debate. No motion shall be debated
until it has been seconded and announced by the Presiding Officer.

2.10.4 Motions Reduced to Writing. Any Councilor may request that a motion

Rules of the City Council - Page 9
Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



be reduced to writing and read by the Deputy Recorder.

2.10.5 Council Questions to Staff. Every Councilor desiring to question the
administrative staff shall address his or her question to the City Manager,
who shall be entitled to either answer the inquiries or designate some
member of the staff for that purpose. Questions of the City Attorney may
be directed to the City Attorney.

210.6  Citizen Participation. Citizens desiring to address the Council shall first
be recognized by the chair and shall limit remarks to the question then
under discussion. All remarks and questions shall be addressed to the
Council as a whole and not to any individual Councilor thereof. Any
remarks and questions regarding administration of the City shall be referred
to the City Manager by the Presiding Officer.

2.10.7 Precedence of Motions. When a question is before the Council no motion
shall be entertained except:

1) To abide by the rules

2) To adjourn

3) To lay on the table

4) For the previous question

5) To postpone to a certain date
6) To refer

7) To amend

8) To postpone indefinitely

These motions shall have precedence in the order indicated. Any such
motion except a motion to amend shall be put to a vote without debate.

2.10.8 Motions to be Stated by Presiding Officer/Withdrawal. WWhen a motion is
made and seconded it shall be stated by the originator or the Presiding
Officer, if requested, before debate. A motion may not be withdrawn
without the consent of the member seconding i the motion.

2.10.9 Motion to Adjourn--When Not in Order--When Not Debatable. A
motion to adjourn will be in order at any time except as follows:

1) When made as an interruption of a member while speaking
2) When the previous question has been ordered
3) While a vote is being taken

A motion to adjourn is debatable only as to the time to which the meeting is
adjourned.

2.10.10 Motion to Lay on the Table. A motion to lay on the table shall preclude all
amendments or debate of the subject under consideration. If the motion
shall prevail, consideration of the subject may be resumed only upon
motion of a member voting with the majority and with the consent of

Rules of the City Council - Page 10
Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



two-thirds of the members present.

2.10.11 Division of Question. If the question contains two or more divisionable
propositions the Presiding Officer may upon request of the members shall,
divide the same.

2.10.12 Motion to Postpone. All motions to postpone excepting to postpone
indefinitely, may be amended as to time. If a motion to postpone
indefinitely is carried, the principal question shall be declared defeated.

2.10.13 Adjourned Meetings. Upon motion and majority vote of Council members
present, any meeting of the Council may be continued or adjourned from
day to day or for more than one day, provided that no adjournment shall be
for a period longer than until the next regular meeting thereafter.

3. CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, LAY-COMMITTEES AND COUNCIL COMMITTEES

3.1 City Boards, Commissions, and Lay-Committees. Unless otherwise provided by
statute, ordinance or resolution, the following shall be the procedure for the creation
of and appointments to all City Boards, Commissions, and Lay-Committees:

3.1.1 Creation and Dissolution. At any time, the Council may by motion,
ordinance or resolution establish any City Board, Commission or Lay-
Committee deemed necessary and in the best interests of the City. Any
committee so created may contain one or more Councilors as a liaison(s) or
members.

Unless otherwise provided, all City Boards, Commissions, and Lay-
Committees so created shall sunset at the end of their mission, but in all
events shall be reviewed at the end of a period three years from the date of
initial creation, and at the end of each subsequent three year period after
reauthorization, and at such time shall either be reauthorized or dissolved.

3.1.2 Qualifications. All appointees to City Boards, Commissions and Lay-
Committees shall be registered electors, and shall have resided in the City
of Coos Bay for a period of one year. No appointee may serve on more than
two City Boards, Commissions or Committees at any one time. No
appointee should serve on more than two City Boards, Commissions, and
Lay-Committees simultaneously. No appointee may serve as a chair of
more than one City Board, Commission, or Lay-Committee at any one time.

3.1.3 Term. The term of all appointments shall be for three years. Appointments
may be renewed for any number of terms.

3.1.4 Vacancies. Any qualified citizen may submit a letter of interest for any open
position on a City Board, Commission, or Lay-Committee. Vacancies shall
be advertised in the local media, and letter of interest shall be received only

Rules of the City Council - Page 11
Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



during the time set forth in the advertisement.

3.1.5 Nomination and Confirmation. Nominations for positions on City Boards,
Commissions, or Lay-Committees may be made by the Mayor, or by any two
Councilors, and shall be subject to confirmation by the Council. Such
nominations shall be in writing, and shall be submitted for consideration at
least one week prior to the scheduled date for confirmation. Confirmation
may be made by written ballot and shall require majority vote. Nominations
may also be made by application.

3.1.6 Notification of Expiration of Terms. The Deputy Recorder shall give
written notice to the Council of the expiration of the term of office of all
members of City Boards, Commissions and Lay-Committees at least thirty
(30) days prior to expiration date of any appointee's term of office.

3.1.7 Removal. All lay members of City Boards, Commissions or Lay-Committees
serve at the pleasure of the Council except as otherwise provided by law. All
council seats on City Board of Commissions or Lay-Committees are
reserved for sitting Councilors; upon expiration of any Councilor's term, or
upon resignation, removal or death, the Councilor's seat on any City Board,
Commission or Lay-Committee occupied by that person shall be
immediately declared vacant, and a sitting Councilor appointed as a
replacement.

3.2 Council Committees

3.2.1 Creation and Dissolution. Council Committees may be created at any time
by resolution or motion. All Council Committees shall have a Chairman and
Secretary, who may be either appointed by the Mayor, or by a majority vote
of the members of the committee in the absence of such appointment. Such
committee shall report to the Council without unnecessary delay upon
matters referred to them. All Council Committees so created shall sunset at
the end of their mission, but in all events shall be reviewed at the end of a
period three years from the date of initial creation, and at the end of each
subsequent three year period after reauthorization, and at such time shall
either be reauthorized or dissolved.

3.2.2 Membership. Membership on such Council Committees shall include only
sitting Councilors, who shall be appointed by the Presiding Officer, subject to
confirmation by the Council. Council Committee appointments shall be for a
term of one year, and Councilors may be reappointed for an indefinite
number of terms.

3.2.3 Meetings. Council Committee meetings may be called by the Chairman, or
by any two members. A majority of the members of a Committee shall
constitute a quorum to do business.

Rules of the City Council - Page 12
Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



3.24 Committee of the Whole. There shall be one standing committee of the
Council, which shall be known as the Committee of the Whole. This
committee shall sit as a body for investigation or study, as the need may be.
The committee shall not take any official action which in committee, but shall
make findings which shall be the basis of further Council action.

3.2.5  Meetings Subject to Oregon Open Meetings Law. All meetings of any City
Boards, Commissions, and Lay-Committees or Council Committee shall be
subject to and comply with the Oregon Public Meetings law.

3.2.6 Quorums. A majority of the then sitting members of any City Board,
Commission, or Lay-Committee or Council Committee shall constitute a
quorum to do business.

3.2.7 Registry. The Deputy Recorder shall prepare, keep current and retain on
file in the Office of the Deputy Recorder a list of all appointees to all City
Boards, Commissions, Lay-Committees and Council Committees, the date
of their appointment, the length of their unexpired term, and their addresses
and phone numbers. All councilors shall be given a copy of this list at least
once yearly, or upon any substantial change in membership of any City
Board, Commission, Lay-Committee or Council Committee.

INTERACTION WITH CITY STAFF

Based on the City Charter, the City utilizes the Council-Manager form of government which
combines the strong political leadership of local elected officials (mayor and councilors
(City Council)) with the strong managerial experience of an appointed manager. All power
and authority to set policy rests with the City Council. The City Council in turn hires a
nonpartisan manager who has very broad authority to run the organization.

All Council members will respect the separation between the Council’s role and the City
Manager’s responsibilities by:

1) Refraining from interfering with the day-to-day administration of city business,
which is the responsibility of the City Manager.

2) Working together as a team within a spirit of mutual confidence and support.

3) Respecting the administrative functions of the City manager and department heads
by refraining from actions which could undermine their authority. The Council will
abide by the City Charter in its dealings with the City Manager.

4) Limiting individual inquiries and requests for information from staff or department
heads to those questions that may be answered readily as part of staff’'s day-to-day
responsibilities. Questions of a more complex nature will be directed to the City
Manager. Questions from individual Council members requiring significant staff
time or resources (two hours or more) should normally require approval of the

Rules of the City Council - Page 13
Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



Council, although the City Manager may determine to follow up on requests from
individual Councilors.

5) Councilors should never express concerns about the performance of a City
employee in public, to the employee directly, or other city employees. Comments
about staff performance should only be made to the City Manager through private
correspondence or conversation.

6) Nothing in this section precludes Council members from obtaining information and
asking questions during Council meetings or from evaluating the performance of
the City Manager.

5. PUBLIC RECORDS / EMAILS

5.1 Public Record Defined. A public record includes any document, book, paper,
photograph, file, sound recording, machine readable electronic record or other
material, regardless of physical form or characteristics, made, received, filed or
recorded in connection with the transaction of public business, whether or not
confidential or restricted in use.

5.2 Electronic Records. All communications on electronic office equipment have the
same public records character as they would have had they been sent on paper.
Any electronic communications that may be exempt from disclosure under state
public records law should be clearly marked as confidential and exempt from
disclosure. Electronic records in any way relating to the business of the city
created on electronic equipment not owned or provided by the city may also be
subject review and disclosure under Oregon Public Records law.

5.3 Public Records. Public records created or received by Council members,
including electronic mail messages, will be retained in accordance with Oregon
Public Records Law and the rules of the Secretary of State and State Archivist.

5.4 Electronic Communications between Councilors. City Councilors will be
provided a City email account specifically for City business. While Councilors can
communicate amongst themselves via email, those emails may not include a
quorum and may not be forwarded to others in a manner which creates a quorum.
All emails must be copied to the City Recorder for retention purposes.

6. AMENDMENTS TO COUNCIL RULES

Amendments to these rules shall be by made by resolution.

Rules of the City Council - Page 14
Attachment #4 Agenda ltem #9



